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CORPORATE PROFILE
L9

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited (the “Company”] was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with
limited liability on 22 February 2013. The Company and ifs
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are a fastgrowing manufacturer of recycled
copper products, also known as copper semis, in Southwest China.
The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 21
February 2014 (the “Listing Date”).

We process recycled scrap copper and, fo a lesser extent, electrolytic
copper, to manufacture a range of copper products, including copper
wirerods, copper wires, copper plates and copper granules. Beginning
in 2013, we have also sold a range of communication cables and
power transmission and distribution cables using copper wirerods that
we produce as the principal raw material. We are increasing our
production capacity and plan to broaden our product range and
pursue opportunities for further vertical integration. Beginning in 2015,
we have also extended our product range to aluminium products. In
light of favourable development trends in China and our advantages in
raw material supply, facility location and preferential governmental
policies, we believe we are well positioned to become a leading
integrated recycled copper product supplier in China covering the key
value- creating activities in the indusiry chain.

We currently own and operate several production facilities for recycled
copper products. These facilities are located in Sichuan Province,
Hunan Province, Hubei Province and Henan Province. We are also
operating our frading business of copper, aluminium and nickel
products.

This annual report, in both English and Chinese versions, is available
on the Company’s website at http: //www.cmru.com.cn/.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of languagels) (either
English only or Chinese only or both languages) of Corporate
Communications.

Shareholders may send their request to change their choice of
language(s) of Corporate Communications by nofice in writing fo the
Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar of the Company with
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Lid. at 17M Floor
Hopewell Cenfre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”] of China Metal
Resources Utilization Limited ("CMRU" or the "Company”), | hereby
present the audited consolidated annual results of the Company and its

subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the twelve months ended 31
December 2018.

China’s GDP grew by 6.6% in 2018, the slowest pace since 1990.
For the fourth quarter of 2018, GDP grew by 6.4% on a yearonyear
basis. China further lowered its economic growth target for 2019 to
between 6% and 6.5%. Although the economy is decelerating, the
govermnment is rolling out further stimulus including easing monetary
policy, boosting bank lending fo non-state-owned enterprises, launching
additional tax cuts, and increasing infrasfructure spendings. With the
expected supporting stimulus, the demand for copper products across
the country is expected fo increase. Copper price in China has
increased by approximately 3.8% in the first two months of 2019, a
possible signal of recovery in commodity market.

Although 2018 was a difficult year in macroeconomic environment, the
Group generated a significant increase in sales revenue by 50.2% to
RMB20.6 billion; a 33.2% increase in revenue from trading of
electrolytic copper; a 92.2% increase in revenue from recycled copper
products; a 102.5% increase in revenue from sales of power
fransmission and distribution cables.

In order to take advantage of the expected recovery of the industrial
metal market, the Group underwent an issuance of 75,980,000 new
ordinary shares for HK$364.7 million in October 2018. In order to
grasp the favorable opportunities fo expand our scale, the Group also
completed few acquisitions during the year, namely, Mianyang
Zhaofeng Copper Co., ltd. ("Zhaofeng”), Hubei Rongsheng Copper
Co., ltd. ("Rongsheng”) and Chengxin Copper Copper Co., lid.
("Chengxin”), which have production facilities in Sichuan, Hubei and
Henan, respectively, in 2018.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
ERHE

As mentioned in previous annual reports, included in the 13th Five-Year
Plan, the “Guiding Opinion on Accelerating the Development of
Recycled Resources Industry” (R INIRIEEBEBIREZXZERNIES
B R ) jointly issued by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology, Ministry of Commerce, and Ministry of Technology on 25
January 2017 marked a significant step by the Chinese government to
step up the support fo the resources recycling industry, with mefal
recycling being one of the key areas to develop. The document set out
very exciting targets for recycled resources industry by 2020: scrap
copper consumption to reach 150.0 million tonnes, recycled copper
production to reach 4.4 million tonnes, recycled aluminium fo reach
9.0 million tonnes. The Group is ready to tap on the opportunities
arising from the huge demand for recycled metal products in the near
future.

Thanks to the outstanding leadership skills of our management feam as
well as our proven frack record over the years, the Group is currently a
consfituent stock of the MSCI China Smallcap Index. Having a constituent
status in these indexes enhanced our reputation and position in the
infernational capital market and improved our invesfors’ confidence in the
Group's outlook.

Last but not least, on behalf of the Board and the management, | would
like to thank our entire staff for their dedication and contribution to the
Group during the year. | would also like to thank our shareholders,
investors, customers, suppliers and business partners for their strong
support.

Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Mr. Yu Jiangiu

28 March 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2018, the stable economic growth in China has resulted in an
increase in the demand for copper products across the country. As a
result, the Group recorded an increase in sales volume of copper
products in 2018 as compared with 2017, which translated info an
increase in turnover by 50.2% as compared with last year. Such
increase in sales was confributed not only by the increase in the
Group's trading volume of electrolytic copper but also by the increase
in production volume of its recycled copper products. Along with the
increase in production and sales volume of recycled copper products,
VAT refunds under the Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Policy
also recorded a corresponding increase during 2018. Furthermore, the
significant improvement in the liquidity of our custfomers has resulted in
the recovery of several long overdue trade receivable balances.
Notwithstanding the increase in revenue, the Group recorded a
considerable gross loss in the year caused by the significant fluctuation
of metal prices in the second half of the year under the uncertain
macroeconomic environment.

We see headwinds as well as opportunities amid the trade conflict
between China and the USA. In order fo increase our financial strength
to be well prepared for the future, the Group has agreed with the
bondholder to extend the maturity date of a tranche of convertible
bonds with a principal amount of HK$80.0 million in April 2018 and
completed the issuance of 75,980,000 new shares fo a state-owned
enterprise for raising approximately HK$364.7 million in October
2018. In order to grasp the favorable opportunities to expand our
scale, the Group has also completed the acquisitions of certain target
groups which have production facilities in Sichuan, Hubei and Henan
respectively.

Recently, the upward trend of global interest rates has ceased and
appeared to have reversed. Furthermore, there are continued signs that
the trade conflict between China and the USA may be resolved in the
second quarter of 2019. As a result, the global macroeconomic
environment has turned to be positive in the first quarter of 2019.
Meanwhile, China’s economy remained stable and is targefed to grow
between 6% and 6.5% this year. Moreover, copper prices have
increased by approximately 3.8% in the first two months of 2019,
signalling market expectation of continued strong economic growth in
China. In order to further support the economic growth, the Chinese
government plans to encourage banks to enlarge lending to non-state-
owned enterprises, launch new tax cuts and speed up infrastructure
investments in near future. At this juncture, we have become more
optimistic and will be looking to increase our financial strength so that
we can take full advantage of future opportunities as well as being
able to cope with possible headwinds. At the same time, we shall also
continue to seek suitable acquisition opportunities fo help grow our
business and enhance our shareholder value.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBWRR S

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

Our revenue represents the amounts accepted fo be entfifled for sales of
goods and services in the ordinary course of business. Revenue
recognised is net of VAT and other taxes, refurns and discounts after
eliminating sales within our Group.

B %5 [0 B8

Wy 2

HFm e BB X BT RIHEEY
NIRISH ERWER 2 © 58 - FriERmdas (2
RINBRIBER R EMHRIE  RERIFTH) K
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2017
2017 &F
RMB'O00
ARETT

Revenue from trading of electrolytic BRRE 5 (i)
copper (Note) 10,152,885
Sale of recycled copper products BAWEmES 3,532,396

Sale of power transmission and KEEBEHEE

distribution cables 13,489
Sale of communication cables REEEHE 34,460
Sale of scrap materials REEMEIHE 5,948
Revenue from frading of electrolytic nickel ~ EfFIRE Uz o
Others H A 2,684
13,741,862

Note: The Group has entered into trading activities of electrolytic copper since 2015 whereas
the Group is considered the principal of the transactions as it controls the electrolytic
copper before they are sold to the customers. The gross inflows of the trading acfivifies

are therefore recognised as revenue.

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2018 amounted fo
RMB20,642.6 million, representing an increase of 50.2% from
RMB13,741.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
increase in sales volume was principally from the increase in trading of
electrolytic copper and sales of recycled copper products, which are
contributed from the commencement of new operations in
Liangshanzhou and contribution from the newly acquired subsidiaries.

Revenue from trading of electrolytic copper amounted to RMB13,519.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an
increase of 33.2% from RMB10,152.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. It was mainly an increase of 30.0% in the sales
volume of electrolytic copper from 237,190.5 metric tons for the year
ended 31 December 2017 to 308,241.9 metric fons for the year
ended 31 December 2018, with an increase of 2.5% in average
selling price from RMB42,805 per fon for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB43,860 per ton for the year ended 31
December 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue from recycled copper products amounted to RMB6,790.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2018, representing an
increase of 92.2% from RMB3,532.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. It was mainly an increase of 89.0% in the sales
volume of recycled copper products from 82,866 metric tons for the
year ended 31 December 2017 to 156,589 mefric tons for the year
ended 31 December 2018, with an increase of 1.7% in average
selling price from RMB42,628 per fon for the year ended 31
December 2017 to RMB43,364 per ton for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Revenue from sales of power transmission and distribution cables
amounted fo RMB27.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2018,
mainly representing an increase of 102.2% from RMB13.5 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017.

Cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2018 fotaled
RMB20,876.8 million, representing an increase of 53.3% from
RMB13,618.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Our gross loss was RMB234.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2018, as compared fo the gross profit of RMB123.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2017. Our gross loss margin for the
year ended 31 December 2018 was 1.1%, as compared to a gross
profit margin of 0.9% for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
deferioration of gross profit margin was mainly due fo the significant
fluctuation in copper price in the second half of 2018, causing losses
in frading business.

Our other income and gain for the year ended 31 December 2018
were RMB491.4 million as compared to RMB318.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2017. The increase in 2018 were primarily
atiributable to the increases in government subsidies and grants and
VAT refunds under Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Policy.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBWRR S

Our selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2018 was RMB23.8 million, representing an increase of 16.2% from
RMB20.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The increase
was mainly due to the commencement of operation in liangshanzhou
and contribution from the newly acquired subsidiaries.

Our administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2018
were RMB111.1 million, representing a decrease of 27.7% from
RMB153.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The
decrease was primarily due fo the decrease in professional fee by
RMB10.5 million and the decrease in share-based compensation
expense by RMB14.8 million, following the end of vesting period of
share opfions granted on 2 July 2014 and 7 May 2015.

Our finance costs for the year ended 31 December 2018 were
RMB135.1 million, representing a decrease of 5.7% from RMB143.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2017. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease in the overall balance of interestbearing
borrowings. The balance of inferestbearing bank and other borrowings
as at 31 December 2018 amounted to RMB548.5 million,
representing a decrease of RMB134.6 million from RMB683.1 million
as at 31 December 2017.

This MD&A makes reference to the term “adjusted EBITDA” which is not
a recognized measure under IFRS, and do not have a standardized
meaning prescribed by IFRS. Accordingly, the Company’s use of this
ferm may not be comparable to similarly defined measures presented
by other companies. Management uses adjusted EBITDA to measure
the Company’s efficiency and its ability to generate the cash necessary
to fund a portion of its future growth expenditures or to repay debt.
Investors are cautioned that the non-IFRS measures should not be
construed as an alfernative to net income determined in accordance
with IFRS as an indication of the Company’s performance. The
following table set forth the calculation of adjusted EBITDA.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRER S

2017

20174

RMB'O00

ARETT

Profit before taxation 75t B AR A 256,404
Finance costs YR IDN 143,220
Share-based payment expenses AR BERSRAXS 23,210
Depreciation e 35,848
Amortisation of lease prepayments THE TR B 8 iy 22
Inferest income B WA (1,538
Shares of profits of associates FEAREE & N RDE (4,375
Reversal of provision for doubtful debts, net 8 [B] R BR B {8 F 58 (127,457)
Reversal of provision for inventory BOFERE (5,288)
Adjusted EBITDA 4T EBITDA 322,146

The decrease in adjusted EBITDA for the year was mainly due to the
decrease in gross profit.

Adjusted EBITDA is a nonFRS financial measure calculated as earnings
before deduction of finance expenses and income, income tax,
depreciation and amortisation, impairment loss and write-offs and
share-based payment expense. It excludes the Group's share of results
of associates.

Profit for the year

Our profit for the year ended 31 December 2018 was RMB20. 1
million as compared to RMB184.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2017. The decrease was mainly due fo the deferioration in
gross profit and the decrease in the reversal of impairment loss of trade
and other receivables.
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THBWRR S

Capital structure

requirements for the Group.

As at 31 December 2018, the capital siructure of the Group mainly
consisted of shareholders’ equity, nofes payable, interestbearing bank
and other borrowings, finance leases payables and liability component
of convertible bonds. There is no material seasonality of borrowing

The following table details the inferest rate profile of the Group's tofal
interestbearing borrowings at the end of reporting periods:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEXRGER

R2018F12A31H  REBENERERE
TRABRRED  BHRE  SHERTEHE
i fE R - B A E e FR K Al AE 25 A
BERDFEK - AEEX EEANFEIER

TRBIIAEE B E RN R
FIR S

As at 31 December 2017
W2017F12A31 8

Liability component of
convertible bonds

AREESNR BRI

Weighted

average

effective

inferest
rate % Amount

13
BRFI=% x|
RMB'000
AREFT

Fixed rate borrowings: SEEERK :
Nofes payable ENEiR 2 <
Interestbearing bank st ERITREMERK

and other borrowings 10.98 683,091
Finance lease payables MEEE FEMNRIE 3.96 13,142

1525 548,607

Total fixed rate borrowings

1,244,840
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
THEMRE SN

The following table sets forth the maturity profile of the Group's interest-

bearing borrowings at the dates indicated:

B

As at 31 December 2018
R2018%12A31H

TR AKEE BN PR B2

Inferest-
bearing Liability
bank Finance component of
Notes  and other lease  convertible
payable  borrowings payables bonds Total
FEBTR  MERE TRRES
ENRE  HEttfR  EARE WNAEE? Azt
RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARSI AR®TR ARBTT AR®TR ARET:R
Within one year or repayable —ERFEEREE
on demand 532,408 576,854 1,127,500
After one year but less than two years  —% I HEREAR 16,140 - 17,006
After two years but less than five years &I EEREAR = = 3,360
548,548 576,854 1,147,866
As at 31 December 2017
R 2017%12 318
Inferestbearing Liability
bank Finance  component of
and other lease convertible
borrowings payables bonds Tofal
ATRIRITR MEHRE AR E %
HifE ERRE MRERD st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT AREFT ARBTT
Within one year or repayable —FENHEERER
on demand 682,560 12,451 95,171 790,182
Atter one year but less than —E HEREUA
fwo years 391 360 453,436 454,187
Alter two years but less than MEA FBREUA
five years 140 331 . 471
683,091 13,142 548607 1,244,840
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBWRR S

In respect of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$115,000,000 issued by the Company under the subscription
agreement signed on @ April 2017 (“Tranche Il Convertible Bonds”),
the Tranche Il Convertible Bonds with the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000, together with the inferest accrued thereon, has been
repaid by the Company on 12 April 2018. In addition, the Company
was notified by leading Sky Holdings Limited on 11 April 2018 that
leading Sky Holdings Limited has transferred the Tranche Il Convertible
Bonds with the principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “Remaining
Tranche Il Convertible Bonds”) to Peaceful Wealth International Limited
(the “Transferee”) and the Transferee has exercised ifs right to extend
the maturity date of the Remaining Tranche Il Convertible Bonds for one
(1) year in accordance with the Tranche Il Convertible Bonds terms and
conditions. The Remaining Tranche Il Convertible Bonds shall continue
to be governed by the Tranche II Convertible Bonds terms and
conditions. For details, please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 12 April 2018.

On 26 April 2018, share options were exercised to subscribe for
17,282,000 ordinary shares in the Company at the price of HK$1.13
per share. The net price per share is approximately HK$1.13 per
share. The total consideration is HK$19,528,000 (equivalent to
RMB15,750,000), of which HK$1,728,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,394,000) and HK$17,800,000 (equivalent to
RMB14,356,000] were credifed fo share capital and share premium
respectively. RMB5,374,000 was transferred from share-based
compensation reserve fo share premium account.

The Company received an exercise notice from the warrant holders on
25 April 2018, warrants were exercised fo subscribe for 18,101,372
ordinary shares in the Company at the price of HK$1.39 per share.
The net price per share is approximately HK$1.39 per share and the
closing market price of the share on the date the warrants was granted,
19 December 2014, was HK$1.38. The total consideration is
HK$25,197,000 (equivalent to RMB20,355,000), of which
HK$1,810,000 (equivalent to RMB1,462,000) and
HK$23,387,000 (equivalent to RMB18,893,000) were credited to
share capital and share premium respectively. RMB8,519,000 was
transferred from warrant reserve to share premium account.

On 17 Sepfember 2018, the Company issued 36,730,078 ordinary
shares to the suppliers pursuant to an agreement as disclosed in the
announcement dated 15 August 2017. RMB3,206,000 and
RMBQ0,813,000 had been transferred from consideration share
reserve to share capital and share premium respectively.
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On 4 October 2018, the Company issued 75,980,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.1 at the price of HK$4.80 per share to an
independent third party, Hongkong Fule International Investment Limited
("Hongkong Fule”) pursuant to a subscription agreement dated 13 April
2018 (“Subscription Agreement”). The net price per share is
approximately HK$4.80 per share and the closing market price of the
share on the date of the Subscription Agreement was HK$5.05. The

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBFWRER S

MR2018F10H4B8  ARRIREBBRA
201854 A 13 BMVRIE W& ([ RBEIHZE])
BER4B0BTMNERMBLE=TEEE
LERREBRABITEESR] &7
75,980,000 iR &AX 0.1 BT E AR - TR
HERAKER4.80B T MMV REH
HEIWHERS.05ETT » BITRERMH

net proceeds from the issue of these shares amounted to  FRf8FXIEHEE A 364,704,000 7T (MBAE R

HK$364,704,000 (equivalent to RMB320,922,000). An amount of
HK$7,598,000 (equivalent to RMB6,687,000), representing the par
value of the shares issued, was credited to the Company’s share
capital. The remaining amount of HK$357,106,000 (equivalent to

RMB314,235,000) was credited to share premium.

USE OF PROCEEDS OF FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

Date of issue for cash

AR #320,922,0007T) - & #7,598,000
BT (HER AR 6,687,000 T) RAATET
RihzEE B ARRAZIRA - 13
357,106,000 Tt H-E R A K ¥
314,235,0007T) Bt ABRMEE -

SERDNAERERR

of equity securities Fund raising activity Net proceeds Intended use of proceeds Actual use of proceeds
BITRARS
NBERENA S KEED SRR RS FSRaRERSE BRERERARE
25 April 2018 Exercise of warrant of HK$19,528,000 Purchasing raw materials and copper  Same as infended use of
2018F4 251 18,101,372 ordinary shares 19,528,000t products in order fo increase the Group's  proceeds
171£18,101,372 (r L@k production and trading business. HFT{S FIEE T B2 AR
R E BERMERRER - AMEAREE
KERBHES -
26 April 2018 Exercise of share options of HK$25,197,000 Purchasing raw materials and copper ~ Same as intended use of
201844 4268 17,282,000 ordinary shares  25,197,00047T products in order fo increase the Group's proceeds

4 QOctober 2018
2018 10A4H

171£17,282,00017 % i H%
e

Issue of new ordinary shares
of 79,980,000 Shares
#1775,980,000 fT & #

Btn

HK$364,704,000
364,704,000 %7T

production and trading business. ELPA1SFOAKE BERAER

BERVEMRER  WEATEEH

(i) approximately HK$150,000,000 for - Same as infended use of
reducing the Group's deb fo equily rafio; proceeds
[ii) approximately HK$200,000,000 for EFT{S R IERE B 1ER
paying consideration of any future

acquisition opportunities fo be identified

by the Group, but if no such opportunities

are identified, for purchasing raw materials

and copper products in order fo increase

the Group's production and trading

business; and (i) the remaining amount for
purchasing raw materials and copper

products in order fo increase the Group's
producfion and trading business.

(i) %1150,000,000 8 L AR RUE A& E

) fRIEME AR L ; (ii) £9200,000,000 7%
AR EMAEERREHENE
FIMPHRIEE MIEE - ERDBIZE
AEIBANBERM A RNER - AR
AAEENEERB SRS © Rlii) 8
AR E R R IRER - EAR
SENEEREHER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THBWRR S

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's cash and cash equivalents
(excluding pledged deposits of RMB51.8 million) amounted to
RMB112.9 million (as at 31 December 2017: RMB109.6 million).

The Group's inventories decreased by RMB20.6 million to RMB432.5
million (as af 31 December 2017: RMB453.2 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2018, the overall invenfory turnover days were
7.7 days as compared with 8.9 days for the year ended 31 December
2017. The decrease in inventory furnover days was mainly due fo the
increase in sales from frading of electrolytic copper and the turnover
days of such sales were shorter.

Trade and bills receivable decreased by RMB211.9 million fo
RMB879.3 million as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December
2017: RMB1,091.2 million). Trade and bills receivable turnover day
in 2018 of 17.4 days remains consistent compared to 18.0 days in
2017

Trade and bills payable increased by RMB329.7 million to RMB543.4
million as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB213.7 million), the payable turnover days were 6.6 days,
compared fo 4.1 days in 2017. Payable turnover days for the year
was relatively stable as compared with last year. Furthermore, we
endeavor fo keep our trade and bills payable turover days relatively
low mainly because our prompt payment patftern enhances our
suppliers’ willingness to supply raw materials to us and therefore helps
us secure raw materials.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group's fofal interestbearing borrowings decreased by RMBQ6.9
million to RMB1,147.9 million as at 31 December 2018 (as at 31
December 2017: RMB1,244.8 million). The overall decrease was
mainly due to the decrease in bank loans from RMB683.1 million as at
31 December 2017 to RMB548.5 million as at 31 December 2018
and the repayment of convertible bonds of HK$35.0 million on 12
April 2018. Interestbearing bank loans and other borrowings included
three entrusted loans of RMB100.0 million each (in total: RMB300.0
million) from Mianyang Science Technology City Development
Investment (Group) Co., Id. (G EIRRERIEE (KB )ERAA)
(“Mianyang Development Group”). Pursuant to the entrusted loan
agreement signed among Tongxin, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Mianyang Development Group and the entrusted bank, the
entrusted loans expired on 27 August 2016, 23 September 2016 and
18 November 2016 respectively. Mianyang Development Group, the
entrusted bank and Tongxin have agreed that, the entrusted loan would
not be repayable until further agreed otherwise. As at 31 December
2018 and up to the date of this annual report, the negotiation was sill
on going.

The following table sets forth certain financial rafios of our Group as of
the dates indicated:

Current rafio® SR RO
Quick ratio” SREf LR

TR LR ¢
FEEES L

Debt to equity ratio*
Net debt to equity rafio*

o Total current assets/total current liabilities

Total current assets excluding inventories/fotal current liabilities

*

Total inferestbearing debts/Total equity

“ (Total interestbearing debits less cash and cash equivalents)/Total equity

The deterioration of current ratio and quick ratio as af 31 December
2018 compared with those as at 31 December 2017 were primarily
aftributable fo the increase in frade and bills payable by RMB329.7
million and the reclassification of liability component of convertible
bonds from non-current liabilities o current liabilities.

THBFWRER S

MR2018F12H31H - AEBEH BERK
BER D AR906,900,000TE AR
1,147,900,0007t( ® 20174124318 :
ARK¥1,244,800,0007T) - B T2
HMRRITERA2017F12A31HHAR
% 683,100,0007C B 4 £2018 412 A 31
By AR 548,500,0007T « k20184
4 A 12H35,000,000# TH A] ] IR (E 5 &
& o AR REMERBREERER B E
RIEE(EE)ARARA(REEREE W
=SB R/ARKE 100,000,000 THIERE
B (45 - AR 300,000,0007T) ° 1R
ARABNEZEMBLARIRE REEREE
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EFHRIN201668 278 ~ 2016%F9 A
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S8 XEROTLABWHE - ZEETEE
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TRHFINFARBYPARENE THBL

S

=

As at 31 December
M12A31H

207
2017 &

= MEEELE MEAERRE
RBEERE(TEERFE) /M aEesE
: AR A ks

i (e ERRRERRESEER) BiER

M201812A31H RBLERES L
EEW2017F12A3TBEMREIR ThE
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AR# 329,700,000 © RAI#REFHE
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The decrease in debt to equity ratio and net debt to equity rafio as at
31 December 2018 compared with those as at 31 December 2017
was mainly because of (i} the issuance of 75,980,000 new ordinary
shares for HK$364.7 million on 4 October 2018; |ii) repayment of
convertible bonds of HK$35.0 million on 12 April 2018; (iii) the
decrease in bank loans by RMB134.5 million; and (iv) the net profit for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Charge on assets

The following table sets forth the net book value of assets under pledge
for certain banking facilities, bills payable facilities and finance lease
payables as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

M2018F12H31H - BEMER L K RF
BIREMLL ML 2017612 A31 B
FZ2RE KNE2018FI0A4B & 17
75,980,000 B ¥ & 18 L & 13 364,700,000
% T (i) 201844 A 12 H 35,000,000
AR AR ESER © () RITEFRD T
AR#134,500,0007T : K (iv)&ZE2018 4
12 A 31 BIEFEESHF) -

EEEHA

TREJINARBHERE TRITEE - &
NEEREMBEHERMRAFELERD
BEREFE :

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2017
2017 &
RMB'O00
AREFT
Property, plant and equipment Mm% - BB REE 214,419
lease prepayments HEFRNR 91,853
Inventories 7E SO E)
Deposits with guarantee companies RERAFNRES 1,500
Deposits with banks RIRITHER 12,900
Deposits with lessors of finance leases REEHEARINRES 4,800
Deposits with other companies REAMARNRES 29,037
385,059
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The maijor raw materials used in the production of our recycled copper
products are scrap copper. We are exposed fo fluctuations in the
prices of raw materials as well as finished goods which are influenced
by global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.
Fluctuations in the copper prices could adversely affect our financial
performance. The Group entered copper futures contracts to mitigate
part of ifs exposure against price fluctuations of copper. The market
value of futures contracts are based on the quoted market price as af
the date of consolidated statement of financial position. The Group did
not have outstanding copper futures contracts as at 31 December
2018 (as at 31 December 2017: Nil). Net loss of RMB1.7 million
was recognized for the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: nef
gain of RMB1.3 million).

The functional currency of a majority of the entities within our Group is
RMB and most of the transactions are setftled in RMB. However, we are
exposed fo currency risk primarily related fo the cash and cash
equivalents, the convertible bonds and contingent consideration
liabilities, all of which are mainly denominated in HKD. The balance of
cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2018 including
HK$9.41 million and USD?,201 (in total equivalent to approximately
RMB8.03 million) were held in banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group's interestbearing bank and other
borrowings and finance lease payables were denominated in RMB but
the convertible bonds were denominated in HKD, with an aggregate
principal amount of HK$680.0 million. During the year ended 31
December 2018, the Group has complefed the acquisitions of certain
farget groups, the considerations are subject to adjustment pursuant fo
earm-out arrangements and will be settled partly by cash considerations
in HKD and partly by allotment and issue of consideration shares which
are denominated in HKD. The Group did not commit fo any financial
instruments fo hedge ifs foreign exchange exposure during the year
ended 31 December 2018. During the year ended 31 December
2018, the Company incurred an exchange difference on translation of
financial statements of entities outside of mainland China equivalent to
RMB51.3 million, part of which was resulted from translating the
convertible bonds and contingent consideration liabilities from HKD to

RMB.

Except for investments in subsidiaries and associates, the Group did not
hold any significant investment in equity interest in any other companies
during the year ended 31 December 2018.

THBFWRER S
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On 15 December 2017, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with Yuanxin Ventures Limited (“Yuanxin”), pursuant
to which the Company agreed fo purchase, and Yuanxin agreed to
sell, 100% of the issued share capital in Silver Eminent Group Limited
(“Silver Eminent”) for an aggregate maximum consideration of
HK$317,647,000, of which HK$158,823,500 shall be settled in
cash and HK$158,823,500 shall be settled by way of allotment and
issue of consideration shares. The consideration is subject to adjustment
pursuant to the eam-out arrangement. Assuming the maximum number
of consideration shares is being allotted and issued to Yuanxin,
41,796,000 shares will be issued under the sale and purchase
agreement. Silver Eminent owns 100% equity interests in Mianyang
Zhaofeng Copper Co., lid. (“Zhaofeng”) The transaction has been
complefed in March 2018. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 15 December 2017 and 29 December 2017 for
further details.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Silver Eminent and its
subsidiaries made a net loss of RMB10,169,000 under IFRS. No
consideration shares are issuable to Yuanxin in 2018 under the sale
and purchase agreement.

On 7 February 2018, the Company entered info a sale and purchase
agreement with Sure Victor Global Limited (“Sure Victor”), pursuant to
which the Company agreed to purchase, and Sure Victor agreed to
sell, 100% of the issued share capital in Value Link Developments
Limited ("Value Link”) for an aggregate maximum consideration of
HK$741,175,000, of which HK$287,647,000 shall be settled in
cash and HK$453,528,000 shall be settled by way of allotment and
issue of consideration shares. The consideration is subject fo adjustment
pursuant fo an earn-out arrangement. Assuming the maximum number of
consideration shares is being allotted and issued to Sure Victor,
94,485,000 shares will be issued under the Sale and Purchase
Agreement. Value Link indirectly owns 100% equity interests in Hubei
Rongsheng Copper Co., lid. [‘Rongsheng”] The transaction has been
completed in April 2018. Please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 7 February 2018 for further defails.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

For the year ended 31 December 2018, Value Link and its subsidiaries
made a net profit of RMB41,223,450 under IFRS, as such,
16,609,419 consideration shares will be issued to Sure Victor. The
number of consideration shares to be issued is calculated on the
following mathematic formula under the sale and purchase agreement:

(A = B)x (C+Dx HK$4.8) - C/HK$4.8

A = actual net profits of the target for the first year

B = performance target for the first year, i.e. RMB45,000,000

C = cash consideration, i.e. HK$287,647,000

D = the maximum number of consideration shares to be issued for the

first year, i.e. 23,621,000 Shares

On 19 October 2018, the Company entered info a sale and purchase
agreement with Advance Splendid Limited (“Advance Splendid”),
pursuant to which the Company agreed to purchase, and Advance
Splendid agreed to sell, 100% of the issued share capital in the Sky
Harvest Global Limited (“Sky Harvest”) for an aggregate maximum
consideration of HK$509,164,969, of which HK$180,000,000
shall be settled in cash and HK$329,164,969 shall be settled by way
of allotment and issue of consideration shares. The consideration is
subject to adjustment pursuant fo an earn-out arrangement. Assuming
the maximum number of consideration shares is being allotted and
issued fo Advance Splendid, 65,833,000 shares will be issued under
the sale and purchase agreement. Sky Harvest indirecily owns 100%
equity interesfs in Chengxin Copper Copper Co., lid. ["Chengxin”) The
fransaction has been completed in November 2018. Please refer fo
the announcement of the Company dated 19 October 2018, 31
October 2018 and 16 November 2018 for further details.

Under the sale and purchase agreement, the first year of earn-out
period is 2019, as such, no consideration shares are issuable to

Advance Splendid in 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, save as disclosed above,
the Group did not have any material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Capital expenditures

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group's capital
expenditures payments represent additions fo property, plant and
equipment (including construction in progress) and land use rights of
approximately RMB68.3 million (2017: RMB28.7 million). The capital
expenditures were mainly financed from infernal resources.

Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2018, the capital commitments in respect of the
acquisition of property, plant and equipment and lease prepayments
on lands confracted for but not provided in the consolidated financial
statements amounted to RMB31.4 million (as at 31 December 2017:
RMB76.9 million).

Contingent liabilities
Other than the contingent considerations of three acquisitions as

mentioned above, the Group had no material contingent liabilities as at
31 December 2018.

Events after the Reporting Period

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company or
by the Group after 31 December 2018 and up to the date of release
of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Yu Jianqiu (813 %K), age 54, is the founder of the Group and the
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Yu is primarily responsible for the overall business and
strategy of the Group. He also serves as a director of our certain
subsidiaries. Through his personal inferests and holdings in Epoch Keen
Limited ("Epoch Keen”), Mr. Yu is a major controlling shareholder of the
Company. Mr. Yu has over 20 years of experience in corporate
operations and management in the pefrochemical, automobile and
renewable energy sectors. He was the chairman and principal
executive officer of Gushan Environmental Energy Limited (“Gushan”), a
company whose American depositary shares were listed on the New
York Stock Exchange from December 2007 to October 2012. Mr. Yu
also founded a number of subsidiaries of the Gushan group between
1996 and 2008. Mr. Yu received his degree of Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes Commerciales de
Paris on 13 December, 2010. In 2002, he was elected as a member
of the Fuzhou Committee of the 10th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Committee and a member of the Santai County Committee
of the 11th Chinese People’s Political Consultative Committee. He was
appointed as a director of the Company on 22 February 2013 and
redesignated as an executive director on 16 August 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREER

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun, Wilson (B} {£15), age 53, is an executive director
of the Company. He is in charge of the corporate and strategic
development of the Company. Mr. Kwong is also a director of our
certain subsidiaries, and a director of our associates companies: Deda
Holdings Limited and Hongkong Fujian Investments Limited. Mr. Kwong
was the president of Gushan. He is also an independent non-executive
director of C.banner International Holdings Limited, the principal
business of which is the manufacture and sale of branded fashion
footwear, since 26 August 2011, China Outfitters Holdings Limited,
the principal business of which is the design, manufacture, marketing
and sale of apparel products and accessories in China with a focus on
menswear, since 8 June 2011, Shunfeng International Clean Energy
Limited, the principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of
solar wafers, solar cells, solar modules and related products as well as
developing and operating solar power plants, since 16 July 2014,
China New Higher Education Group Limited, the principal business of
which is the rendering of education services, since 20 March 2017,
and Koolearn Technology Holding Limited, the principal business of
which is the provision of online afterschool tutoring and test preparation
service in China since 15 March 2019, which are listed on the Stock
Exchange since 23 September 2011, 9 December 2011, 13 July
2011, 19 April 2017 and 28 March 2019, respectively. Mr. Kwong
has over 10 years of experience in corporate finance and equity
capital markets in Asia, having previously worked at a number of
investment banks in Hong Kong. Prior to joining Gushan in 2006, he
was the managing director of investment banking and he held the
position as the head of Hong Kong and China equity capital markets
at CLSA Equity Capital Markets Limited since March 2004. From
2002 to 2003, Mr. Kwong was a director and the head of equity
capital markets for Cazenove Asia Limited, an investment bank. After
graduating from University of Cambridge, England with a bachelor’s
degree in Arts in 1987, he qualified as a chartered accountant in the
United Kingdom in 1990. Mr. Kwong is currently an associate member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Kwong was
appointed as an executive director of the Company on 16 August

201135,
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Huang Weiping (& & 5%), age 58, is an executive director of the
Company. Mr. Huang cofounded Xiangbei in 2010 and is currently a
director of our certain subsidiaries in China, Mr. Huang is in charge of the
overall operation, production technology and engineering of the Group.
Mr. Huang has more than 10 years of experience in the PRC metfal
material industry. Prior fo the establishment of Xiangbei, Mr. Huang was a
manager at Fujian lingzhi Environmental Technology Co., lid. (f8&2& &
IRIRBIB AR A F]), the principal business of which is the design and
construction of environmental projects, from 2009 to 2011, Fuzhou Kebi
Chemical Materials Co., Limited (& M & b8 TM BB R A 7l), the
principal business of which is the manufacture and sale of synthetic wax,
from 2006 to 2009 and Tricon Chemicals Inc., the principal business of
which is the trade of chemicals and metal materials, from 2001 to 2005.
He is a fellow member of the Investment Casfing Institute and an executive
member of China Precision Casfing Branch Association of China Foundry
Association (Bl SE & EE iED ® ). Mr. Huang also serves as an
executive member of the Chinese and Foreign Entrepreneurs’ Club of
Fujian Province (18 B & H SN & % K 5 3 &) and the Association of
Entrepreneurs of Private Companies of Fuzhou City (&M T FL & 5K 1%
& ). Mr. Huang received his degree of Executive Master of Business
Administration (EMBA) from Hautes Etudes Commerciales de Paris on 6
July 2015. Mr. Huang was appointed as an executive director of the
Company on 16 August 2013.

Ms. Zhu Yufen (%R E%F), age 56, is an executive direcior of the Company.
Ms. Zhu has over 20 years of experience in accounting and financial
management. She is primarily responsible for the financial reporting
and accounting affairs of the Company. Ms. Zhu is also the vice
president in charge of the finance of Jinxin, since July 2009. Prior to
joining Jinxin, she was a vice general manager and the head of
finance department of Mianyang Santai Vise Co., lid. (A8l =8 &% &
$H A PR 2 A]), the principal business of which is the manufacture and
sale of vises, from 1978 to 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as an
executive director of the Company on 16 August 201 3.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREER

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny (Z#3R), age 51, is an independent non-
executive director of the Company. Mr. Llee was appointed on 16
August 2013. Prior to the appointment, he was an independent non-
executive director of Gushan. From 2002 to 2007, Mr. lee was the
chief financial officer of NetEase.com, Inc., one of the China’s leading
infernet and online game service providers listed on the NASDAQ
Clobal Select Market. He currently serves as a non-executive director
on the board of NetEase.com, Inc. Prior to joining NetEase.com, Inc.,
Mr. lee worked in the Hong Kong office of KPMG for more than fen
years. Mr. lee currently also serves as independent non-executive
directors of the following four companies (i) New Oriental Education &
Technology Group Inc., the provider of private educational services in
China, (i) Concord Medical Services Holdings Lid., the principal
business of which is the operation of a network of radiotherapy and
diagnostic imaging centers in China, (3) NIO Inc. the principal
business of which is design, jointly manufacture, and sell smart and
connected premium electric vehicles, and (iv) Jianpu Technology Inc.,
the principal business of which is operation of open platform for
discovery and recommendation of financial products in China, all of
which are listed on the New York Stock Exchange. Mr. lee graduated
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University and was awarded the
Professional Diploma in Accounting in November 1990. He is a fellow
of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Pan Liansheng (3&& ), age 54, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Pan is engaged in nonferrous metal and
carbon fiber composite materials research and possesses rich
knowledge on the nonferrous metal industry. Mr. Pan also worked for
the Third Research Institute of the then Ministry of Astronautics of the
PRC (PR EIM AR T 2205 =H135h< ), which is involved in the research
of aerospace mefals and carbon fibre composite materials, between
1990 and 1993, focusing on research relating to non-ferrous metal
and carbon fiber composite materials. From 1993 to 1994, Mr. Pan
was seconded fo Sanwa Machinery Trading Co., lid., the principal
business of which is the design and manufacture of electrical
machinery. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Pan worked as an assistant
professor at Waseda University. From 1998 to 2008, Mr. Pan worked
as a chief researcher in the research and development center of
Toshiba Ceramics Co., ltd. (3R 2 ¥ & #% =X & 4t), the principal
business of which is the research and production of high-end electronic
ceramic and silicon semi-conductors. From 2008 to April 2013, Mr.
Pan worked as the general manager at Toshiba Ceramics Co., lid.
Currently, Mr. Pan is the Chairman of Thinkon Semiconductor
Technology (Shanghai] Corporation (B ER¥E 8RR (LE) BRA
dl), the principal business of which is the supply of semiconductor
material technology, a position which he has held since April 2013.
Mr. Pan graduated with a bachelor’s degree from Beijing University of
Aeronautics and Astronautics where he focused on research relafing fo
nonferrous metal and carbon fiber reinforced composite in 1985. He
further obtained his doctorate degree from Waseda University in
1998. Mr. Pan was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 16 August 201 3.

Ms. Ren Ruxian ({E3%#8), age 43, is an independent non-executive
director of the Company. Ms. Ren is currently the head of finance of a
leading group in China performing live video matching communication
platform for overseas markets. Ms. Ren has over 16 years working
experience in finance management and financial reporting, including
in 2 international audit professional firms and in the internet industry,
during which she acted as the acting chief financial officer of
Changyou.com Limited, a NASDAQ listed company, in 2014. Ms.
Ren was awarded a Master in Economics and Bachelor in Economics
from the Finance School of Renmin University in 2001 and 1998,
respectively. Ms. Ren is currently a member of each of The Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Certified
Management Accountants. Ms. Ren was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company on 30 November 2015.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EFREREER

CHANGE IN DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B of the Listing Rules, the Company sef out the
changes in information about Directors during the year 2018.

1. M. lee also serves as independent non-executive directors of
NIO Inc. and Jianpu Technology Inc..

2. Ms. Ren Ruxian is the head of finance of a leading group in
China performing live video matching communication platform for
overseas markets.

3. Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson also serves as independent non-

executive director of Koolearn Technology Holding Limited since
15 March 2019.
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The Board is pleased to present the audited consolidated results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required by
Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, including a
description of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and
an indication of likely future development in the Group's business, can
be found in the Management Discussion and Analysis section. The
discussions forms part of this directors’ report.

The Group is a manufacturer of recycled copper products, also known
as copper semis, in Southwest China. Beginning in 2013, the Group
started to sell a range of communication cables and power transmission
and disfribution cables using copper wire and copper rods produced
by the Group as the principal raw material. Beginning in 2015, the
Group also extended its product range to aluminium products and
entered into trading activities of electrolytic copper.

During the year and up fo the date of this annual report, the directors of
the Company were as follows:
Executive Directors Appointed on

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer]

22 February 2013 and redesignated
as an executive director on
16 August 2013 and reelected
on 6 June 2014 and 6 June 2016
16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2014, 6 June 2016 and
6 June 2018
16 August 2013 and reelected on
9 June 2015 and 6 June 2017
16 August 2013 and reelected on
9 June 2015 and 6 June 2017

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors

16 August 2013 and reelected on
Q June 2015 and 6 June 2017

16 August 2013 and reelected on
6 June 2016 and 6 June 2018

30 November 2015 and reelected on
6 June 2016 and 6 June 2018

Mr. Pan liansheng
M. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Ms. Ren Ruxian
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors and senior management of the
Group are sef out in the section headed "Directors” in this report of the
directors.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Each of the independent non-executive directors has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors to be
independent in accordance with Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in notes 9, 21 and 38 respectively to the financial
statements and in this annual report, no director or any entity connected
with a direcfor had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, in
any fransaction, arrangement or confract of significance to the business
of the Group fo which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party during the year.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable within one year without payment
of compensation other than statutory compensation.

CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors”, there was no
change to any of the information required to be disclosed in relation o
any direcfor pursuant fo paragraphs (a) to (e) and (g) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules since the listing Date.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2018, the interests and short positions of the
directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i)
recorded in the register required to be kept under section 352 of the
SFO, or i) otherwise nofified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Llisting Rules (the “Model
Code") were as follows:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company
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(1) REQXIRGHER

Mr. Yu Jiangiu Beneficial owner 30,964,000 1.18%
AEM L EmfEB A
Inferest in a controlled corporation? 1,006,390,400 38.49%
R EE R
Mr. Huang Weiping Inferest in controlled corporations!® 310,317,000 11.87%
=IEFRE R AR
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner 3,272,600 0.13%
BREELE BB A
Notes: BIEE -

(1) The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number

of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2018.

(2) The shares were held by Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company, together with Epoch Keen Llimited, a company wholly-owned by
Mr. Yu Jiangjiu.

(3)  The shares were held by First Harvest Global Limited, Gold Wide Enterprises
Limited and Ocean Through Limited. All these companies are wholly-owned by
Mr. Huang Weiping.

(1] BIERKRTEEEERAARRAN20184F
12 A 31 EEHTRHHIEE °

(2) REERNDAARBIERVTESTMERE
EERMENEERBEREANARBEAR
ARFFA ©

B) BRERGHFYERERAF  SHOES
RAARFEARAALE - HARKSAT
MR EESRESERA -
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EFERE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED

CORPORATIONS (Continved)

(2) Long Position in the underlying shares of the Company

EERIEARASREATRE
AR I 19 B 40 SR AR B AR 19 o A2

N V"N
BXRE )

(2) RAERQBEERGHER

Share Option Scheme of the Company on 31 May 2016. Please see the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details.
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Mr. Huang Weiping Beneficial owner 667,000 0.03%
BEFEE BHERAW
Ms. Zhu Yufen Beneficial owner”! 3,334,000 0. 18%
KEFHL BERBEAAL
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson Beneficial owner® 5,000,000 0.19%
BEELE BERFEAAY
Mr. Pan Lliansheng Beneficial owner”! 1,000,000 0.04%
BB L BHEEAAV
M:r. Lee Ting Bun Denny Beneficial owner®® 1,000,000 0.04%
R T BERBEAAE
Ms. Ren Ruxian Beneficial owner® 1,000,000 0.04%
Bzt BERFEAAY

Nofes: BT :

([4)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Huang Weiping 4) ZEBRATETIARRBRBEARRABRETE
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the R2014F7 B2 BRFREF LA 2 BIE -
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details. R EHIEH2MH B8] —&7 -

[5)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Zhu Yufen under the (5] ZERAGTETIARRBBEARRABRETS
Share Option Scheme of the Company on 2 July 2014. Please see the section M2014%7 A2 BRTFRESL L 2B -
headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details. BEHIEF2H [BAEE ] —4 -

[6)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Kwong Wai Sun 6) ZERFITETARBEARRRBERETS
Wilson under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015. R2015F 57 BERTRBERLEZREIKE -
Please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details. BEEHEF2H (Bt E ) —4 -

[7)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Mr. Pan Liansheng under (7) ZEBRATETIARRBREBEARRBBRESE
the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015. Please see the M2015F5 B7 BRTERBES L E 2 BAHE
section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details. BLHIBES0 (B E] —f -

(8)  These equity derivatives were share opfions granted to Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 8) RERAFTETARBRBARRBRETS
under the Share Option Scheme of the Company on 7 May 2015. Please see R2015F5 A7 BR FREM L E 2 B -
the section headed “Share Option Scheme” for further details. BEHIEFELM B E] —f -

[9)  These equity derivatives were share options granted to Ms. Ren Ruxian under the Q) ZEBRATETARBRBEARRRERESS -

R2016FE5H3 BR FERBL L 2R
B ELFHIEHE2MH [ERETE] -
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ERFETBRAEREALQFRE
5% B Y IR 40 I AE RA AR 42 Y fE 2

S A
RE (

(3) Short Position in the underlying shares of the Company (3) RAEATHEERGEXE
Mr. Yu Jiangiu Inferest in a controlled corporation(® 133,779,264 SRl
B E ZEHEEER
Note: BaE -

(10)  China Huarong International Holdings Limited (“Huarong”) and Prosper Rich
Investments Limited (“Prosper Rich”) have entered info the call option agreement
on 31 July 2017 whereby Prosper Rich has a right to request for the acquisition
of the Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of HK$200,000,000 from
Huarong for an amount equal to the principal amount of such Convertible Bonds
plus a premium, provided, however, Huarong has a right to decline such request
from Prosper Rich. In the event that Huarong turns down the call option request by
Prosper Rich under the call option, pursuant to the backup call option agreement
entered into between Epoch Keen Limited and Prosper Rich on 31 July 2017,
Epoch Keen Limited has agreed to, amongst other things, grant Prosper Rich a
call option over such number of Shares Prosper Rich would have been entitled to
under the call option had Huarong consented to Prosper Rich’s exercise of
option, at a price per Shares equivalent to HK$2.990 per share on the date of
exercising the Call Option and in such case, pay Prosper Rich a fee. At the
option of Epoch Keen Limited, Epoch Keen Limited may cash seftle its obligations
under the backup call option. Prosper Rich also can require the lending of certain
Shares from Epoch Keen Limited upon occurrence of certain events.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, so far as is
known to any director or the chief executive of the Company,
none of the directors or the chief executive of the Company had
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or ifs associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were (i) recorded in the
register required fo be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or {ii)
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

(10) HEFRERZERARAR(FR ZEFR
BERAR[EF]ER201747 A31 BAT
TREHERE B SEREERUMR
EREHRRESASEINEENSE
I7) 2E b Ui % 7K & 58 200,000,000 7 7T i 7] #4
BfErm EERAREBTEZEFR - WE
REBTERERBHENRBESEESR
REBEFZAERARESER201747A3]
FRINMAERRBHNRGS  BEARAF
ERE(EFREE) BFsEREEERA
EFEOERBEHNRSMRERENEAE
AESHERBRNEKE <RBEDE  SRE
BRERBBRETEBHR 2ER2.990ET
RRZERT  XNTE—FER - BR2
BRAREE BEAERARAINREHEH
HRARBRERTER - TERAINE
EETEHRRRBERZARAFALEE TR

1/\ %

B EXFREESI - W2018F 12 A
31 MARRMEMESFHTETH
ABFTA > ARAIBEEHEBTERAR
MERAR R KEMBAE (& RE
7 M EIE R GIZE XV BD) ;A {7 - 18REAR
MREFT A (| RIFFESF ARG
FI2GREATHRENELCMATE -
(| REFETRIFAHE R EANE
RRARE RS IOAR
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, no rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company were granted to any director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were any such rights exercised by
them, nor was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party o any
arrangement fo enable the directors, or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, to acquire such rights in any other
body corporate during the year ended 31 December 2018.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2018, the following persons (not being a director
or chief executive of the Company) had 5% or more inferests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as

recorded in the register required fo be kept by the Company pursuant
fo section 3306 of the SFO:

(1) Long position in the shares of the Company

ESREROIEZHER

BRAFHREMBEOWEEIN REBEE
2018 12A31HILFE #iER TEM
E=REEEZIRBARMISENTL
BIBEARR R RIEZFH T A MERA
BB RETEEMZZEN > TEAX
NREHEEAMBRARELLTHUNSERS
BER B ZEMBIARM 185 F LN EM
HAE NERERFZTER -

FERRRAEQ RS REBEKRD
MRS RRE

M20184 12 A31 A « BAR R RBES
R (DI 336 AT FRMBRMA
8 UTFAL(LIAAAEERBATHR
AB) AR AR SAABR 1 5 5% 3
WA LD RERSSUA R ¢

(1) RERFIARGHFR

Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling 2 Beneficial owner 135,000,000 5.16%
Mining Investments Limited

EAPRBARBAREBRAF BEaERAA

Liangshan Mining and Metallurgy 2 Interests in a controlled 135,000,000 5.16%
Investment Holding Corporation corporation
Limited

RN AR EERAREELRF R EE R

Liangshan State-Owned Investment 2 Interests in a controlled 135,000,000 5252
Development Limited corporation

RIWNBEBEREEREGREELF XEthEEE R

State-Owned Assets Regulafory 2 Inferests in a confrolled 135,000,000 5.16%

Commission of liangshan Yi corporation

Autonomous Prefecture
RLEEBAMNEAEEEEER

BEZEE

S EEE S

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)

Long position in the shares of the Company (Continued)

(1)

(2)

Notes:

(1)

(2)

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares divided by the number
of the Company's issued shares as at 31 December 2018.

Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling Mining Investments Limited is wholly-owned by
Liangshan Mining and Metallurgy Investment Holding Corporation Limited,
74.00% equity interest of Liangshan Mining and Mefallurgy Invesiment Holding
Corporation Limited is held by liangshan State-Owned Investment Development
Limited; 62.00% equity interest of Liangshan State-Owned Investment
Development Limited is held by State-Owned Assets Regulatory Commission of
Liangshan Yi Autonomous Prefecture. Accordingly, each of Liangshan Mining and
Metallurgy Investment Holding Corporation Limited, liangshan State-Owned
Investment Development Limited, State-Owned Assets Regulatory Commission of
Liangshan Yi Autonomous Prefecture is deemed fo be interested in the shares of
the Company held by Hong Kong Zhongliang Recycling Mining Investments
Limited .

Long position in the underlying shares of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

FERRRAEQARD R EBEKRD

MRS ROK B ()

RAATRG G R (&)
fia -

(1)

(1) BOHRKRK2018F 12 431 BH AR FE
BIREEBRARRREBITROEKE -

(20 BEPRBEBAKREBRIBERLIMNE
BRAEZBREREEATNZERER @ MR
MR REERAREEAFTERUMBEE
REBRBRETDRIFAH74.00% 88 R
WHEBRAEZFREREEARBRUER
BANBEEEESBERZEE15H62.00%
ARAE - EBE - SRIUMBAREEREREFE
AT RUMNBEREBRRAREELA
RLUEKREAMNBEEEREEEZREE
BHRANERETRBERAREERAR
FAMARRRMD PSR -

(2) RADFREBERDOEFR

Mianyang Science Technology City &
Development Investment (Group)

interests in shares

Co., ld.

SHEMEHERRE (RE)ARAR

HRAE RS

China Huarong Asset Management 4 Inferest in controlled
Co., lid corporation
mEEREEEERNERAA R EE#R

Persons having a security

310,317,000 11.87%

ohei

502,660,559 19.22%

Notes:

(3)

On 15 August 2014, Silver Harvest Holdings Limited, Ocean Through Limited,
First Harvest Global Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises Limited, shareholders of
the Company, has each entered into share charges in respect of their respective
shareholding of 103,205,200, 39,401,600, 167,952,400 and
102,963,000 shares of the Company in favour of Mianyang Development
Group as the secured party. On 10 November 2014, Epoch Keen entered info
a share charge with Mianyang Development Group, pursuant fo which Epoch
Keen agreed fo charge by way of first fixed charge all its rights, fitle, interest and
benefit in 200,000,000 ordinary shares of the Company in favour of Mianyang
Development Group as the secured party. On 31 December 2015, share
charges were released for Silver Harvest Holdings Limited and Epoch Keen
Limited in respect of 103,205,200 and 200,000,000 shares of the Company.

(3) R2014%F8 158  REBRBERAR » *
EHRAT ELUBRERAFARSECE
BRAF(HARRFRR) & ARBERAE
A 8 2103,205,2008% * 39,401,600 %
167,952,400 % & 102,963,000 B% B& 17 2 A%
W AERB—THEEEREEEAZEA
SRR o 201411 B 108 -« B &
HEBEREEBTIRMDARL Bt B2
AEAE—BEEHoh XN IEFELRAQF
200,000,0008 @Ak 2 FrA R - FTAH
kA AEFR -GG EEEER
Z2EAN o R2015F12A31 0 - LIREKRE
RARIKREEBERAADIGEARAZ
103,205,200 B% & 200,000,000 f% #] 37 ¥ %
DIPEC O ARG o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)

FERRRAEQARD R EBEKRD

MRS NRRE (8)

(2) Long position in the underlying shares of the Company (2) RAERQIFEERGHWEE (&)
[Continued)
Notes: MfsE -
(4) Pursuant fo Huarong CB 2017, assuming full conversion of the convertible bonds (4) W20 7E sl i ELS - BRI ES
at an inifial conversion price of HK$2.99 per share, the convertible bonds will RO HRBER2.09BITBEEIER - AT
be convertible into approximately 133,779,264 new shares (subject to MREH #& TR AR XY 133,779,204 R FTRR 1
adjustment). (7] F2A%) -
On 8 August 2017, Epoch Keen Limited entered into a share charge with R20174E8A8H r BEAR AT MEERT
Huarong pursuant fo which Epoch Keen Limited charged 278,000,000 shares SRR B BEARAFNERS
in favour of Huarong as security for the payment and discharge of obligations Z 2 AR 278,000,000 8% B 15 - 1E A At
owing from the Company to the Investor pursuant to, amongst others, the Investor MEBRARRRE(EPEE)REERER
Subscription Agreement and the convertible bonds. ERIBRRESREAREEBRTZEEZE
R o
According to the disclosure forms filed by China Huarong Asset Management BEPREREESERMBERATN2018
Co., ltd. on 21 December 2018, the following interest in shares of the F1282 BERHEBRERE  BEAAR
Company were held as follows: R HERIAT ¢
Huarong Real Estate Co., Lid. China Huarong Asset Management 100 N long position 502,660,559
Co., ltd.
ERMEEAREELRA PREREEEERNDERAT & we
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & China Huarong Asset Management 100 N long position 502,660,559
Management Co., ltd. (@cHRliic)s
EMBEREEREREERAT HEREREETERMARAT & IE
Huarong Huarong Real Estate Co., Lid. 88.1 > long position 502,660,559
b ERMEFBREELNA = 7E
Huarong Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & 11.9 by long position 502,660,559
Management Co., ltd.
= ERIEREETEAREMEAR = A

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY (Continved)

(3) Short position in the underlying shares of the Company

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

EERRNAA TR RABRS
oS R AR ()

(3) RAEQTHEERGHRXE

China Huarong Asset Management 5 Inferest in controlled 66,889,632 2.56%
Co., lid corporation
FEEREEEERNERA TG ER R
Note: Bt 3E
(5) Huarong and Prosper Rich Investments Limited have entered into the Call Option (5) ERESEEN20I17E7A31 AT 2E

on 31 July 2017 whereby Prosper Rich Investments Limited has a right fo request
for the acquisition of the convertible bonds in the principal amount of
HK$200,000,000 from the Huarong for an amount equal fo the principal
amount of such convertible bonds plus a premium, provided, however, Huarong

has a right fo decline such request from Prosper Rich.

According fo the disclosure forms filed by China Huarong Asset Management
Co., ltd. on 21 December 2018, the following interest in shares of the

HiE - B TEARERUEERERA
BEREHFACENEENSTE - MERKE
7K 4 %8 200,000,000 F Tt A R E S - 1
ERMEREBRTEIER

BROEEREETERMAR IR 2018
F12A21 BERKEBRERK ' IFEAAR

Company were held as follows: RO RERSINT ¢
Huarong Real Estate Co., lid. China Huarong Asset Management Co., ltd. 100 N Short position 66,889,632
ERBEXBREALAR HEZEREEEERNERAR B KB
Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & China Huarong Asset Management Co., Lid. 100 N Short position 66,889,632
Management Co., Lid.
ERIEREEEEREMLNA TEEREEEERNERAR & RE
Huarong Huarong Real Estate Co., lid. 88.1 i Short position 66,889,632
g ERBEXEREEAR = KB
Huarong Huarong Zhiyuan Investment & 11.9 Y Short position 66,889,632
Management Co., lid.
R ERBEREEEFREEAA = KB

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2018, the
directors had not been nofified by any person [not being the
directors or chief executive of the Company) who had 5% or
more inferests or short positions in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
pursuant fo Section 336 of the SFO.

F?J:XF)T%Z&%%?I\' NPICHECE: HBPS

18 EEFRAL(LIARFES
Iﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁAE)%ﬂ@%%Eﬁéﬁﬂﬂ
RO FARER O T EAREE S MG
ﬂﬂﬁﬂ%%éﬂﬂ%\%rﬁﬁﬁ &C it P 50
8% 5% HIA LRV RERE IR ©
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at 31 December 2018, none of the directors or their respective
associates had any business or interests in businesses which compete
or are likely to compete, either direcily or indirecly, with the businesses
of the Group.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had a fofal of 864 employees
(2017: 521). The Group's sfaff costs for the year ended 31 December
2018 were approximately RMB55.2 million (2017: RMB54.8 million).
The Group offers its staff competitive remuneration packages. In
addition, discrefionary bonuses and share options may also be granted
fo eligible staff based on individual and Group's performance. The
Group is committed to nurturing a leaming and sharing culture in the
organization. Heavy emphasis is placed on the fraining and
development of individual staff and team building, as the Group's
success is dependent on the contribution of all functional divisions
comprising skilled and motivated professionals. The Group is also
committed to social responsibility as seen in its employment of disabled
staff and providing appropriate working conditions and protection to
them.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 1 June
2019 to 6 June 2019, both days inclusive, during which no transfer of
shares can be registered. To qualify for the attendance and voting af
the AGM, shareholders must ensure that all transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share cerfificates be lodged with the
Company'’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on 31 May 2019.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

ESENHEFXRBIRES
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the arficles of
association of the Company (the “Articles of Association”), or the laws
of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a proTata basis to existing shareholders.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on pages 92 and 93
respectively of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
nofe 13 fo the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements of the share capital of the Company are set out in note 30
to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

The directors’ emoluments are defermined by the Board with reference
fo their dufies, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. Defails of the direcfors’ emoluments and the five highest paid
individuals are set out in notes @ and 10 fo the financial statements
respectively.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

A remuneration committee was set up to develop the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for remuneration of the directors and
senior management of the Group, having regard to the Group's
operating results, individual performance of the directors and senior
management and comparable market practices.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

B il

AR EES A (AR ]) %5
EHEAPETIEAMELBRENR
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ES 958
REEBZE2018F12A31HIEFERHE
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Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group's subsidiaries in the PRC participate in defined contribution
refirement benefit schemes (the "PRC Schemes”) organized by the local
authorities whereby the subsidiaries are required to make contributions
fo the PRC Schemes based on a percentage of the eligible employees’
salaries. Contributions to the PRC Schemes vest immediately. Under the
PRC Scheme, refirement benefits of existing and refired employees are
payable by the relevant scheme administrators and the Group has no
further obligations beyond the annual contributions.

The Group enrolled all employees in Hong Kong in the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF") (together with the PRC Schemes, the
"Retirement Benefit Schemes”), which is a defined contribution
retirement benefit scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the
consolidated income statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF. The Group contributes 5% of the relevant
payroll costs to the MPF subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000, and which contribution is matched by the employees.
The assefs of the MPF are held separately from those of the Group, in
funds under the control of trustees. Contributions from the employer are
100% vested in the employees as soon as they are paid to the MPF
and subject to cerfain conditions being met, all benefits derived from
the mandatory contributions must be preserved until the employee either
reaches the normal refirement age of 65 or meefs certain specified
conditions whichever is earlier.

The Group's contributions to Retirement Benefit Schemes charged to the
consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018

were RMB4,003,000 (2017: RMB2,270,000).

No confract for the management and administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Company was entered info
or existed during the year.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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RESERVES AND DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in note 43 fo
the financial statements and the consolidated statement of changes in
equity respecfively.

As at 31 December 2018, the Company’s distributable reserves
available for distribution amounted to RMB925,138,000, calculated
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies law (2012
Revision) of the Cayman Islands.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year affributable fo the
Group's maijor suppliers and cusfomers are as follows:

Purchases
—  the largest supplier: 25% of cost of sales

—  five largest suppliers combined: 44% of cost of sales

Sales
—  the largest customer: 36% of revenue

— five largest customers combined: 62% of revenue

The scrap copper that we process comes from a variety of sources,
including used household appliances, electrical equipment and
transportation equipment, used cables and wires and scrap materials
from certain industrial manufacturing processes. We purchase our scrap
copper mainly from domestic suppliers located near our production
facilities and elsewhere in other provinces of China. We conduct
rigorous quality control tests at different stages of our production
processes, including rigorous quality tests of our raw materials. Before
enfering info a business relationship with a new supplier, we conducted
due diligence on the supplier’s background and reputation in the
market fo assess ifs suitability. In addition, we physically inspect each
delivery of raw materials to ensure its compliance with contract
specifications, including purity and copper confent.

Maintaining strong relationships with our customers is important to us
and we believe that our customers’ willingness to work with us reflects,
among others, our record of producing high quality products that meet
industry standards and customer requirements.

None of the Directors of the Company or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and five largest suppliers.
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The continuing connected transactions during the year ended 31
December 2018 were as follows:

Delivery cost charged by Mianyang Jin Xunhuan
Finance Storage Limited ("MJXFSL"), a company
wholly owned by Sichuan Jin Xunhuan Ecommerce

frading Co. lid. ("JX Ecommerce) RMB®, 509,000

On 1 May 2018, the Company and MJXFSL entered into Delivery
Services Agreement, pursuant to which MJXFSL agreed to provide fo the
Group delivery services for a period of 20 months commencing from 1
May 2018.

As at the date of the Delivery Services Agreement, MJXFSL was
indirectly confrolled by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jiajia, daughters of
Mr. Yu Jianqiu, the chairman and executive director of the Company.
MJXFSL was therefore a connected person of the Company.
Accordingly, the entering into of the Delivery Services Agreement and
the transactions contemplated under the Delivery Services Agreement
constituted a continuing connected transaction for the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For the purpose of complying with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, the
Company has estimated that the aggregate fees payable by the
Company fo MJXFSL for the delivery services during the term of the
Delivery Services Agreement shall not exceed RMB48.5 million (the
"Annual Cap”) [RMB20 million for the period from 1 May 2018 to 31
December 2018 and RMB28.5 million for the period from 1 January
2019 to 31 December 2019).

Given the ferms of the Delivery Service Agreement were negotiated on
an arm's length basis and gone through public tendering, the Directors
(including the independent non-executive Directors) are of the view that
the terms of the Delivery Services Agreement, including the Annual
Cap, are on normal commercial terms, in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Company and are fair and reasonable and in the
inferests of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Continved)
The Company's external auditor was engaged fo report on the Group’s
confinuing connected transaction. For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of
the Listing Rules, the auditor of the Company has provided a lefter to
the Board confirming that nothing has come to their attention to cause
them to believe that the confinuing connected transaction:

(i) has not been approved by the Board;

(i)  was not enfered info, in all material respects, in accordance with
the Delivery Services Agreement; and

(i) has exceeded the Annual Cap.

A copy of the auditor’s lefter has been provided by the Company fo the
Stock Exchange.

Except the above and disclosed elsewhere in the annual report, there

were no continuing connected transactions during the year ended 31
December 2018.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to provide incentive and/or reward fo eligible persons for
their contribution to, and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
our Company. The Share Option Scheme was conditionally approved
by a wriffen resolution of the then shareholders of the Company on 28
January 2014 and has came info effect upon the Company’s listing on

21 February 2014.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide incentive and/
or reward to Eligible Persons for their contribution to, and continuing
efforts to promote the inferests of, our Company.

Who may join

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options (“Options”) to
subscribe for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set
out in the Share Option Scheme to any director or employee of the
Group and any other person (including a consultant or advisor) who in
the sole discretion of the Board has contributed or will contribute to the
Group (“Eligible Persons”).
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The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of our Group shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the listing Date (i.e. 209,832,160 shares) (the
"Scheme Mandate Limit"). Our Company may at any time as the Board
may think fit seek approval from our shareholders to refresh the Scheme
Mandate Limit, save that the maximum number of shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and any other schemes of our Company shall not
exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at the date of approval by
shareholders in general meeting where the Scheme Mandate Limit is
refreshed.

Our Company may seek separate approval from our shareholders in
general meeting for granting Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that the Options in excess of the Scheme Mandate Limit
are granted only to the Eligible Person specified by our Company
before such approval is obtained. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and vet fo be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
options granfed and yef fo be exercised under any other scheme shall
not exceed 30% of our Company's issued share capital from fime to
time. No opfions may be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of our Company if this will result in such
limit being exceeded.

The Scheme Mandate Limit was refreshed by a resolution passed at the
annual general meetfing held on @ June 2015. The number of further
options that can be granted by the Company was refreshed to
210,514,560 share options.

The tofal number of shares available for issue under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company was 179,662,720 shares, which was
approximately 6.87% of the issued share capital as at 31 December

2018.

No Option may be granted to any one person such that the tofal
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of Options
granted and fo be granted fo that person in any 12-month period up fo
the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of our Company’s issued share
capital from time fo time.
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Subject to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the Board shall be
entitled at any time within 10 years after the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme to offer the grant of an Option to any Eligible
Person as the Board may in its absolute discrefion select to subscribe at
the subscription price for such number of shares as the Board may
[subject fo the terms of the Share Option Scheme) determine (provided
the same shall be a board lot for dealing in the shares on the Stock
Exchange or an integral multiple thereof).

Subject to the terms of the Scheme, the Board may in its absolute
discretion when offering the grant of an Option specify such conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation therefo in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as the Board may think fit when making
an offer to an Eligible Person (including, without limitation, as fo any
performance criteria which must be satisfied by the Eligible Person
and/or the Company and/or its Subsidiaries, and any minimum
period for which an Option must be held, before an Option may be
exercised, if any), provided that such conditions shall not be inconsistent
with any other terms or conditions of the Share Option Scheme.

An Optfion shall be deemed to have been granfed and accepted by
the Eligible Person and fo have taken effect when the duplicate offer
letter comprising acceptance of the offer of the Option duly signed by
the grantee together with a remittance in favor of our Company of
HK$1.00 by way of consideration for the grant thereof is received by
our Company on or before 30 days after the offer date. To the extent
that an offer is not accepted within the time stated in the offer for that
purpose, it shall be deemed to have been irrevocably declined and
shall immediately lapse.

The subscription price in respect of any particular Option shall be such
price as the Board may in ifs absolute discrefion determine at the time
of grant of the relevant Option (and shall be stated in the letter
containing the offer of the grant of the Option) but the subscription price
shall be at least the highest of:

(a) the closing price of a share as sftated in the Stock Exchange's
daily quotations sheet on the offer date, which must be a business
day;

(b) the average closing price of a share as stated in the Stock
Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days

immediately preceding the offer date; and

(c)]  the nominal value of a share.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Confinved)
An Option shall be exercised in whole or in port WITl’]In the option
period which is the period to be defermined and notified by the Board
fo the grantee during which period the Option may be exercised and
in any event shall not exceed fen years commencing from the dafe on
which the offer in relation to such Option is accepted.

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
10 years from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme [i.e.
28 January 2014, after which no further options will be granted or
offered but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in
full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise
of any subsisting Options granted prior to the expiry of the 10-year
period or otherwise as may be required in accordance with the
provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

Movements of the Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31
December 2018 are as follows:

f R ST 8l (4
%kﬁ%azﬁéﬁﬁ
e N
(EEEFERELRBAFARA - BN - B
BAER FAO6E - AEEMERT - hiEmE
FBRES Y BRI TERBTEF -

,U H

BAERT Sl R ERT S| A A (AN 2014

FIARA)EFTFERER 2R TEE
—FRANIREZR T BRE - EEEER S

ZIEXDBR T RBARER - BfEE+F
H e A SRR PR BB A AT B (RS FT RE AR E 2
HA 77 AR B E A BB T1TE -

B E2018F12A31BILFE - BR#E
S 2EFHIT -

Directors
g2
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson 7 May 2015 5,000,000 - - - 5000000 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
BEREE 2015%5R78 2015€5A70%

2025%5R6R
Mr. Huang Wai Ping 2 July 2014 667,000 - - - 667,000  2July 2014 1o 1 July 2024 145 1.07 -
BEMAE 201457428 2014%78208%

2024%7R18
Ms. Zhu Yufen 2 July 2014 3,334,000 = = - 3334000  2July 201410 1 July 2024 1.13 1.07 =
REART 2014%7R2A 2014£7A20%

2024%7R18
Mr. Pan Liansheng 7 May 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 7 May 20150 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
BEBLE 2015%5A87H 2015€5870%

2025%5R6H
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 7 May 2015 1,000,000 - - - 1,000000  7May 2015 o 6 May 2025 1.68 1.68 -
FERBEE 2015%5A7A 201585702

2025€5R6H
Ms. Ren Ruxian 31 May 2016 1,000,000 - - - 1,000,000 31 May 201610 30 May 2026 3.66 3.05 -
Bkt 2016558318 2016F58318%F

2026%5A 308
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BIRESTE (2
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BRENECESHE(E)
Price of share of
the Company
ARARGER
Number Number of
of shares shares atthe at the
options Lopsed/ options Exercise grant exercise
held ot Granted ~ Exercised  cancelled  heldat 31 price dote dote
1 January during during during  December  Exercise period of share of share of share
Date of grant 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 of share options opfions options options
120185 120185
1818 12318
BEZ  RO1BE  RW18F  R018F KAz BRE BRE BRE
BREHE R fiff &%/2% BRERE BRETHED fiEE  RYUBH  TRAS
HK$ HK$
-9 o
Eligible persons other
than directors
EZ2NAERAL
Eligible persons other 2 July 2014 26,753,000 - (17,282,000 (1,544,000) 7,927,000  2July 201410 1 July 2024 =l 1.07 5
thon directors
BEMIAERAL 2014%7R28 2014%7R28%
2024%7R18
Eligible persons ofher 7 May 2015 88,600,000 = - 7,130,000 81,470,000 7 May 2015 o & May 2025 1.68 1.68 =,
thon directors
BEMIBERAL 201565AR78 201565702
20255 5R6H
Eligible persons other 31 May 2016 31,080,000 = - [440,000) 30,640,000 31 May 2016 to 30 May 2026 3.66 3.05 =
thon directors
BEMIAERAL 2016558318 2016%5A318F
2026%5A30R
Eligible persons ofher 12 December 2017 29,564,000 - - - 29,564,000 12 December 2017 fo 370 370 -
thon directors 11 December 2022
BEMIRERAL 20174128128 2017%12R128%
202%12R118
Total 187,998,000 — (17,282,000 (9,114,000 161,602,000
&5t
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physical delivery of shares.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued)
The key terms and conditions related to the grants under the share
option scheme are as follows; all options are to be seffled by the

eS8l (@)

B AR 812 B 2 AR ()

SRIREB AR BRSO E 25
HEMEM T - A AR AR B B R A A
BADREE -

Options granted to directors
RyEsnBRE

— On 2July 2014
— 1201447 A28

— On7 May 2015
—R2015%¥5R7H

— On 31 May 2016
—R2016%E5H 318

Options granted to employees
RyEEMBRE

— On 2 July 2014
—R2014%7 A28

— On7 May 2015
—R2015€5H7H

— On 31 May 2016
—R2016F5H31H

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BBIREERTE(2)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (Continued) BIRETE s ESEE (&)
Options granted to certain
eligible participants
RY&ETRERSEA
i)y
— On 23 July 2015 7,600 On the first anniversary of the date upon which the Six months commencing
— R2015%7A23H share options are Six months commencing from the from the expiry of the
expiry of the first anniversary of the date of first anniversary of the
accepred subject fo the grantees remaining as date of acceptance
eligible persons af the date of vesting and expiring on the
PRERERERNE—BF BLs R EA last day of the
HEEARARNEBEHANAGERAL 6 month-period
EmAEE B
FRRFNER
N E A B & (&
—RARILZAEA
— On 31 May 2016 5,200  On the first anniversary of the date upon which the 10 vears
— R2016F5A31 A share options are accepted subject fo the grantees 104
achieving the predetermined annual sales farget
REREEEZRNE—BFER - HARA
RATKETFREHERR
— On 12 December 2017 29,564 On 31 March 2019 subject to the grantees achieving 6.3 years
—R2017%12R12H the pre-determined performance farget for the period 6.3

from 1 December 2017 to 31 December 2018
and the grantees remaining as eligible persons af
the date of vesting

R2019F3 A 31 B » EARARTKIEER
201712 A1BE20185F 12 A31 BEY
FERRAARANGERRAERASERAL

Total share options granted

ERHBREAR 285,654
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved)
Further details of the Share Option Scheme (C ed)
The fair value of the Relevant Share Options gronted were estimated as

at the dates of grant using a binomial model, taking into account the
terms and conditions upon which the Relevant Share Options were
granted.

The following table sets out the inputs to the model used:

eS8l (@)
B AR AR B BB S AR (4
B> AR 2 AT R B

A-RAREGEE
AR B MRAE

 BERR LA REBAE

IRBINAIRIE 2 B ABUE -

REtEREZ

Fair value ot measurement

dote (HKS) AF{E(ET) 0.44 0.39 0.71 0.58
Share price (HK$) G 1.07 1.07 1.68 1.68
Exercise price [HK$) 1EE(BT) (18 509 1.68 1.68
Expected volafility EERE 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20%
Historical volatility i1 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20%
Expected life EHFH 10 years 10 years 10 years 10 years

105 [0F:3 10F 10 %
Expected dividends HHRE 3% 3% 3% 3%

Riskree interest rate (based BB FIE (AF S
on Hong Kong Exchange  NEE S ZHF|%

Fund Noes) REE) 2.059% 2.059% 1.745% 1.745%
Exercise muliiple TEfEE 28 7 28 Y
Postvesfing exit rafe BEERAE 0% 5.44% 0% 16.12%

No other feature of the Relevant Share Options was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

The value of the Relevant Share Options is subject fo the limifations of
the binomial model and a number of assumptions which are subjective
and difficult to ascertain. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Further defails relafing to the Share Option Scheme and share options
granted thereunder are set out in nofe 2.4 and note 31 to the financial
statements and the announcements of the Company dated 2 July 2014,
7 May 2015, 23 July 2015, 31 May 2016 and 12 December
2017. Apart from the above, the Company had not granted any share
options under the Share Option Scheme to any other persons as
required to be disclosed under the Rule 17.07 of the Listing Rules
during the year ended 31 December 2018
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0.22 1.22 1R 1.45 1.45
1.67 3.05 3.05 3.05 3.70
2.16 3.66 3.66 3.66 3.70
49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 41.61%
49.43% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 41.61%
1.5 years 10 years 10 years 10 years 6.3 years
155 104 104 105 6.3%F
3% 1.47% 1.47% 1.47% 0.92%
0.239% 1.286% 1.286% 1.286% 1.647%
= 2.8 2.2 = =
= 9.22% 9.22% = =
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PLEDGE OF SHARES BY CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

On 8 August 2017, Epoch Keen entered into 2017 Share Charge
with Huarong. Please refer to "ISSUE OF THE HUARONG
CONVERTIBLE BONDS 2017" under "EQUITY LINKED
AGREEMENTS" in this report and the announcement of the Company
dated 8 August 2017 for further details.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS

Share Option Scheme

Details of the Share Option Scheme of the Company are sef out in the
section above headed “SHARE OPTION SCHEMES".

Warrants Issued In 2015

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000 warrants fo
7 subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each
warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe for one share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$1.30 per share. The warrants will be
vested in phases according to the vesting conditions. The vesting
condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the fransactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant fo which the
suppliers in aggregate, agree to supply 49,500 tons of copper scrap
raw materials fo the Group in 2015 af a fixed discount of RMB1,000
per fon.

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued 102,000,000 warrants
to 3 subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each
warrant will entitle its holder fo subscribe for one share of the Company
at a subscription price of HK$1.50 per share. The warrants will be
vested in phases according to the vesting conditions. The vesting
condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the fransactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant to which the
suppliers, in aggregate, agree to supply 30,000 fons of copper scrap

raw materials fo the Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016
at a fixed discount of RMB2,000 per fon.

As at 31 December 2018, 9,612,578 warrants were issued and
remain unexercised. Upon full exercise of the subscription rights
attaching fo the issued but unexercised warrants, 9,612,578 Shares
may be issued and allotted. Please refer fo the announcements of the
Company dated 19 December 2014 and 5 February 2015 for further
details.
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Movements of warrants during the for the year ended 31 December
2018 are as follows:

19 January 2015 .30 19,385,878
20151 A19H
24 February 2015 .50 8328 0772
20152 A24H

D790

On 13 April 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds to the
Huarong in an aggregate principal amount of USD32,610,000. The
convertible bonds bear a fixed inferest rate of 10% with inferest to be
paid on a quarterly basis. The convertible bonds will expire at the
second anniversary of the issue date and are convertible into ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company af
an initial conversion price of HK$1.40 per share (subject to
adjustment]. The terms and conditions of the convertible bonds restrict
the exercise of conversion right up fo an aggregate principal amount of
the convertible bonds of USD16,300,000, which is convertible to
approximately 90,555,555 ordinary shares of the Company (based
on a condifion in the ferms and conditions which provides that based
on the agreed exchange rate, the principal amount of the convertible
bond shall be deducted by USDO. 18 upon the issue of one conversion
share). Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 27

March 2015 and 13 April 2015 for further details.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continved)

Issue Of Convertible Bonds On 13 April 2015 (Continved,
On 17 August 2016, pursuant to the adjustment provisions of the
conversion price as stated in the terms and conditions of the convertible
bonds, the conversion price of HK$1.40 per ordinary share has been
adjusted to HK$1.39 per ordinary share as a result of the issue of the
135,000,000 ordinary shares. All other terms of the convertible bonds
remain unchanged. The adjustment has become effective as of 17
August 2016, being the date on which the 135,000,000 ordinary

shares were issued. Based on the adjusted conversion price, the

convertible bonds is convertible to approximately 90,881,295
ordinary shares of the Company.

On 18 April 2017, convertible bonds of USD16,300,000 had been
converted info 90,881,295 ordinary shares. The remaining convertible
bonds of USD16,310,000 were fully repaid in cash.

Issue Of Convertible Bonds On 12 April 2017

On 12 April 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000. The convertible
bonds bear a fixed interest rate of 12% with inferest fo be paid on a
quarterly basis. The original maturity date of the convertible bonds is
the first anniversary of the issue date, subject to the bondholder’s right
to extend the maturity date initially for a period of up to one year (the
"Extended Maturity”) and also for a period of up fo one year affer the
Extended Maturity by nofice in writing fo the Company (the “Further
Extended Maturity”). The bondholder has the right to convert the
principal amount of the convertible bonds into ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company from the first business day following the
first anniversary of the issue dafe up fo and including the day preceding
the Extended Maturity of Further Extended Maturity at an initial
conversion price of HK$3.0 per share (subject to adjusiment). Please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated @ April 2017 and
12 April 2017 for further details.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 11 August
2017, on the same day, the Company has redeemed the convertible
bonds in the principal amount of HK$ 135,000,000 (the “Early
Redemption”). The Early Redemption was fully funded by the internal
resources of the Group. The Early Redemption will enable the Company
fo restructure its portfolio debts in a more costefficient manner and
accordingly, the Directors are of the view that the Early Redemption is
in the inferest of the Company and the shareholders as a whole.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EFERE

2 3 N 8 1 o (40

R20155F4 13 B RTARKRES (4)
R20164%8A8178 - B
135,000,000 A E i@ A% - RIE I HRAASH
R AR B LR E ARG A RES
RILBAR1.A0BTE BEAGRL B39
BT A RRESA A B ERER T
o B R2016F8A17A( B % 77
135,000,000 8% @A E B ) £ - ERE
FEBLE - AIBRRESFALBRSARRN
90,881,205 B & @R -

AR AP2017F 4 A 18H # 16,300,000
ETLZ AR EFERR0,881,205 %
A& - 88T 16,310,000 T 2 A] AR & 7
NIREBHBERE

R2017 F4 B 12 B RTHARRES
M2017F4R8128 » KRBETASER
/250,000,000 7 JTHY AT AR (B 55 » AIHAAR
BHERETEMERI2NAE  MEREEX
- ARERESFNRIHEAETAHRE—
BER - EESKEAGRERNIZIHA
E—F((ERIHBE D - MEBRARRE
HEMAARERIMARBLER—F (£
—JEREHAE] - EFHEARERET
FRE-BFREAEXAEERBRER
HHBERE-FERINBMAFZ B FURNE
SBMEFKRI.0ET (A THAE) G BERE
FRAGRER AR NTFREEO AT
VEBK c BRE—THE  F2HALQA
HERR2017F4R9BR2017F4H12H
HAE °

BOARARIBEA2017F8A11 ANAE
FEE REBXAREELERAEREAR
135,000,0007% 7T &9 A] #2 B & 25 ([ 1R /&
E]) - RFEOERAAEEN AN ERE
- REEOB S ARRIAE ARARED
HAABREEAER  ANESTRRRRE
B & AR F RIRIR 2 EEHE -

Annual Report 2018 © —ZF— \FF R “




REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
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In respect of the convertible bonds in the aggregate principal amount
of HK$115,000,000 issued by the Company under the subscription
agreement signed on @ April 2017 (“Tranche Il Convertible Bonds”),
the Tranche Il Convertible Bonds in the principal amount of
HK$35,000,000, together with the interest accrued thereon, has been
repaid by the Company on 12 April 2018. In addition, the Company
is nofified by leading Sky Holdings Limited on 11 April 2018 that
leading Sky Holdings Limited has transferred the Tranche Il Convertible
Bonds in the principal amount of HK$80,000,000 (the “Remaining
Tranche Il Convertible Bonds”) to Peaceful Weallth International Limited
(the “Transferee”) and the Transferee has exercised ifs right to extend
the maturity date of the Remaining Tranche Il Convertible Bonds for one
(1) year in accordance with the Tranche Il Convertible Bonds terms and
conditions. The Remaining Tranche Il Convertible Bonds shall continue
to be governed by the Tranche II Convertible Bonds terms and
conditions. For detail, please refer to the announcement of the

Company dated 12 April 2018.

On 11 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$400,000,000 to Huarong
("Huarong CB 2017"). The convertible bonds bear a fixed interest rate
of 8% with inferest to be paid on a quarterly basis. The convertible
bonds will expire at the second anniversary of the issue date and are
convertible info ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share
capital of the Company at an initial conversion price of HK$2.99 per
share (subject to adjustment). Please refer to the announcements of the

Company dated 31 July 2017 and 11 August 2017 for further details.

On 8 August 2017, Epoch Keen, a company wholly owned by Mr. Yu
Jiangiu, entered into a share charge (“2017 Share Charge”) with
Huarong, pursuant to which Epoch Keen charged 278,000,000
ordinary shares of the Company in favour of Huarong as security for
the payment and discharge of obligations owing from the Company to
Huarong pursuant to, amongst others, the subscription agreement of
Huarong CB 2017. Please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 8 August 2017 for further details.
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EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continved)

Issue Of The Prosper Rich Convertible Bonds 2017

On 11 August 2017, the Company issued convertible bonds with an
aggregate principal amount of HK$200,000,000 to Prosper Rich. The
convertible bonds bear a fixed interest rate of 8% with inferest to be
paid on a quarterly basis. The convertible bonds will expire at the
second anniversary of the issue date and are convertible into ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each in the issued share capital of the Company at
an initial conversion price of HK$2.99 per share (subject to
adjustment]. Please refer to the announcements of the Company dated

31 July 2017 and 11 August 2017 for further defails.

The Directors are of the view that the above convertible bonds issue
represented good opportunities for the Company to raise funds to
strengthen its financial position and to finance the Group's future
development and expansion. The Direcfors consider that raising funds
by way of issuing the convertible bonds would enable the Company to
obtain funds with a lower financial cost considering the recent debt
and equity market conditions.

Signing Of Annual Procurement Agreement Involving Issue Of
consideration shares Under General Mandate

On 15 August 2017, the Company entered into respective annual
procurement agreements with four suppliers, pursuant to which each
supplier agreed to supply a target amount of copper scrapped raw
materials to the Company from 15 August 2017 to 14 August 2018,
the purchase price of which shall be partly satisfied with cash and
partly safisfied with consideration shares. For each ton of copper scrap
raw materials supplied by a supplier, the Company will pay i) up fo
RMB3,000 by way of issuance of a maximum number of 1,172
consideration shares at an Issue Price of HK$3 per consideration share;
and |ii) the remainder of the balance in cash. The arrangements under
the annual procurement agreements are expected fo encourage such
suppliers fo achieve the fargefed raw material supply amount with a
view fo broadening the Group's supplier base fo cater for the Group's
production needs.

As the targeted amount of supply of copper scrap raw materials from
the suppliers is 56,000 tonnes in aggregate, the maximum number of
consideration shares that the Company may issue pursuant fo the
annual procurement agreements is 65,632,000 Shares. Each of the
subscribers is a wholly-owned company of the relevant supplier. Please
refer o the announcement of the Company dated 15 August 2017 for
further details.

On 17 September 2018, 36,730,078 ordinary shares had been

allotted and issued to the subscribers.
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EFERE

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS (Continued)

Signing Of Annual Procurement Agreement Involving Issue Of
Consideration Shares Under General Mandate (Continved)

On 15 June 2018, the Company entered info respective annual
procurement agreements with fourteen suppliers, pursuant to which
each supplier agreed to supply a target amount of copper scrapped
raw materials to the Company from 16 June 2018 to 15 June 2019,
the purchase price of which shall be partly satisfied with cash and
partly safisfied with consideration shares. For each ton of copper scrap
raw materials supplied by a supplier, the Company will pay i) up fo
RMB3,000 by way of issuance of a maximum number of 734
consideration shares at an issue price of HK$5 per consideration
share; and |ii] the remainder of the balance in cash. The arrangements
under the annual procurement agreements are expected fo encourage
such suppliers to achieve the targefed raw material supply amount with
a view to broadening the Group’s supplier base to cater for the
Group's production needs. As the targefed amount of supply of copper
scrap raw materials from the suppliers is 160,000 tons in aggregate,
the maximum number of consideration shares that the Company may
issue pursuant to the annual procurement agreements is 117,440,000
shares. The consideration shares will be allotted and issued to the
subscribers within 10 business days from 15 June 2019. Each of the
subscribers is a wholly-owned company of the relevant supplier. Please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 15 June 2018 and

19 June 2018 for further details.

Signing Of Sale And Purchase Agreement Involving Issue Of
Consideration Shares Under General Mandate

Details of the consideration shares under earn-out arrangements in the
acquisitions of 100% issued share capital of Silver Eminent, Value Link
and Sky Harvest are set out in the section above headed “MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES" in this report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or any of
its subsidiaries, of the listed securities of the Company from the Listing
Date up to 31 December 2018.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Yu Jiangiv and Epoch Keen, being controlling shareholders of the
Company, enfered info a deed of non-competition ("Deed of Non-
Competition”) dated 6 February 2014, defails of which have been sef
out in the paragraph headed “Non-Competfition Undertaking” in the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Prospectus.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION (Continued)

The Company has reviewed the annual declaration from the parties on
compliance with their undertaking under the Deed of Non-Competition.
The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status of
compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under the Deed of
Non- Competition have been complied with by the parties.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company
confirmed that based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, the Company
had maintained sufficient amount of public float as required under the
Listing Rules and agreed by the Stock Exchange.

AUDITORS

During the year, KPMG resigned as auditors of the Company and Ernst
& Young were appointed by the directors fo fill the casual vacancy so
arising. KPMG has confirmed that there are no matters in respect of
those circumstances that in their opinion need fo be reported to the
shareholders of the Company. The Board also confirmed that there is
no disagreement between KPMG and the Company, and there are no
other matters in relation to the resignation of KPMG that need to be
brought to the affention of the shareholders of the Company. There
have been no other changes of auditors in the past three years. A
resolution for the reappointment of Emst & Young as auditors of the
Company will be proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE RECOMMENDED

If any shareholder is unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any
rights in relation to the Shares, it is advised to consult an expert.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant fo article 164 of the Articles, every Director is entifled fo be
indemnified and secured harmless out of assefs of the Company from
and against all acfions, cosfs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which any of them, their or any of their heirs, executors or
administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act,
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices or trusts (except such is
incurred or sustained through his own fraud or dishonesty). Such

provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year ended 31 December 2018.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed fo mainfaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure susfainable
development of ifs business. To the best knowledge of the Directors, the
Group has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Group in relation tfo its business
including health and safety, workplace conditions, employment and the
environment. The Group understands that a better future depends on
everyone's participation and contribution. It has encouraged all
employees to participate in environmental and social activities which
benefit the community as a whole.

The Group ifself is operating in the environmental protection industry by
virtue of recycling scrap metal materials in the society. Contribufing fo
resolve a significant part of pollution problem in the vicinity of our
plants, the Group was highly praised and encouraged by the local
governments. The Group is also committed to social responsibility as
seen in its employment of disabled staff and providing appropriate
working conditions and protection fo them. The Group also advocated
conservation of resources in office and encouraged employees fo
develop good habits, conserve resources and energy fo build a green
and comfortable office environment.

For a more comprehensive review, please refer to the 2018
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company that will
be dispatched to the shareholders of the Company and available on
the website of the Company and the Stock Exchange in due course.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Since the listing Date, the Company has applied the principles of and
is in compliance with all code provisions of the Corporate Governance
Code as set forth in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules save as disclosed
below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the
Group and has extensive experience in operations and management,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Yu taking up both roles for continuous effective management and
business development of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE (Continued)

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non- executfive Directors should attend general meetfings
of the Company. Code provision E.1.2 provides that the chairman of
the board should aftend the annual general meefing and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, to attend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

Due fo other business engagements, two executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director were not able fo attend the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2018.

In the future, the Company has arranged and will continue to arrange
to furnish all Directors with appropriate information on all general
meefings and take all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in
such a cautious way that all Directors can attend the general meetings.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE REQUIRED STANDARD OF
DEALINGS IN SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities fransactions on terms not less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules. After specific enquiry made by the Company, all directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standards set out in
the Model Code and the code of conduct regarding the directors’
securities transactions since the Listing Date.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors would like to take this opportunity to express our sincere
thanks to all the shareholders and business associates for their
continuous support and the entire staff for their dedication and
contribution to the Group during the year.

By order of the Board

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
Chairman

Yu Jiangiv

Hong Kong, 28 March 2019
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELIRE

The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report in
the Company’s annual report for the year ended 31 December 2018.

The Group recognizes the vital importance of good corporate
governance to the Group's success and sustainability. We are
committed o achieving a high standard of corporate governance as an
essential component of quality and have introduced corporate
governance practices appropriate fo the conduct and growth of our
business.

The Company has applied the principles of and is in compliance with
all code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code as set forth in
Appendix 14 of the listing Rules save as disclosed below.

Code Provision A.2.1 provides that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and Chief Executive should be clearly established and set out in
writing. Currently, Mr. Yu Jiangiu is both the Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the
Group and has extensive experience in operations and management,
the Board believes that it is in the best interest of the Group to have Mr.
Yu taking up both roles for continuous effective management and
business development of the Group.

Code provision A.6.7 provides that the independent non-executive
Directors and non-executive Directors should aftfend general meetings of
the Company. Code provision E. 1.2 provides that the chairman of the
board should attend the annual general meeting and also invite the
chairmen of the audit, remuneration, nomination and any other
committees (as appropriate) to attend. In their absence, he should invite
another member of the committee or failing this his duly appointed
delegate, o aftend. These persons should be available to answer
questions at the annual general meeting.

Due fo other business engagements, two executive Directors and an
independent non-executive Director were absent from the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 6 June 2018. In the future,
the Company has arranged and will continue fo arrange to fumish all
Directors with appropriate information on all general meetings and take
all reasonable measures to arrange the schedule in such a cautious
way that all Directors can affend the general meetings.

Key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company as
well as details relating to the foregoing deviation are summarized
below.
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The Board is responsible for overall management and control of the
Company. The Board's main roles are fo provide leadership and fo
approve strategic policies and plans with a view to enhancing
shareholder value. All Directors carry out their duties in good faith and
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, taking decisions
objectively, and acting in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders at all times.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant information as
well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary and senior
management, with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable laws and regulations are followed.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters of the Company,
including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters, overall
strategies and budgets, infernal confrol and risk management systems,
material fransactions (in particular those that may involve conlflict of
interests), financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

Directors have full and timely access to consult with the Company's
senior management independently. Any Director and Board Committee
may request independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expense, upon making reasonable
request fo the Board.

The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for day-to-day
management and operation of the Croup fo the senior management of
the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the Company's affairs, the
Board has established three Board committees, namely the audit and
corporate governance committee (the “Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee”), the remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”), the nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) (together, the “Board Committees”). The Board has
delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as set out in their
respective ferms of reference.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this annual report, the directors of the Company were
as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Jiangiu (Chairman and Chief Executive Oficer)
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson

Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Independent Non-executive Directors
M:r. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan Lliansheng

Ms. Ren Ruxian

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the section headed
"Directors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company has been in
compliance with the requirements of Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the
Listing Rules relafing to the appointment of at least three independent
non- execufive direcfors with af least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has also complied with the requirement of Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-
executive directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Director has confirmed his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them fo be independent.

All Directors have brought a wide range of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for ifs efficient
and effective functioning. Moreover, through active parficipation in
Board meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all independent
non-executive directors make various contributions to the effective
direction of the Company.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has a board diversity policy whereby it recognizes and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board and sees increasing
diversity af the Board level as an essential element in maintaining the
Company's competitive advantage. A truly diverse Board will include
and make good use of differences in the talents, skills, regional and
industry experience, background, gender, age and other qualities of
the members of the Board. These differences will be considered in
defermining the opfimum composition of the Board and when possible
should be balanced appropriately. All appointments of the members of
the Board are made on merit, in the content of the talents, skills and
experience the Board as a whole requires fo be effective.

The Nomination Committee will review the board diversity policy, as
appropriate, make recommendations on changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Under Code Provision A6.5, Directors should participate in appropriate
continuous professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant.

Directors are encouraged fo parficipate in continuous professional
development so as to refresh their knowledge and skills for discharging
their duties and responsibilities. For the year ended 31 December
2018, relevant reading materials including regulatory update and
seminar handouts, efc. have been provided to the Directors for their
reference and studying.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT (Continued)

A summary of trainings received taken by the Directors during this year
is as follows:

RBREEERERE @)

EEAFEETNEIIBEZHINOT

Mr. Yu Jiangiu

Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
Mr. Huang Weiping

Ms. Zhu Yufen

Mtr. Lee Ting Bun Denny

Mr. Pan liansheng

Ms. Ren Ruxian

NN SN NG NN

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

Mr. Yu Jiangiu is Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company. As Mr. Yu is the founder of the Group and has extensive
experience in corporate operations and management, the Board
believes that it is in the best inferest of the Group to have Mr. Yu taking
up both roles for continuous effective management and business
development of the Group.

The Board considers that the current structure of vesting the roles of
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in the same person will not
impair the balance of power and authority between the Board and the
management of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The appointment of independent non-executive directors, subject fo re-
nomination and re<election by the Company in general meetfing, shall
be for a term of two years unless previously terminated in accordance
with the terms and conditions specified in their appointment.

The director’s fee specified in the letter of appointment of each of
independent non-executive Directors are HK$200,000 per annum.

All independent non-executive Directors possess extensive academic,
professional and/or industry expertise and management experience
and have provided their professional advice to the Board.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

None of the directors who is proposed for re-election af the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any service contract which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

The rules and procedures governing the appoiniment, refirement, re-
election and removal of directors are set out in the Articles of
Association of the Company. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the Board structure, size and composition and making
recommendations fo the Board on the appointment and re-appointment
of direcfors and succession planning for directors.

Independent non-executive directors are appointed for a specific ferm,
subject to re-election. In accordance with the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting of the Company ("AGM"), at least one
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-
third) shall retire from office by rofation, provided that each Director
shall be subject fo retirement af an AGM at least once every three
years.

Any new director appointed fo fill a casual vacancy on the Board or as
an addition to the existing Board shall be subject to re-election at the
next AGM after his appointment.
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The Board intends to hold board meetings regularly af least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. Notices of not less than
fourteen days will be given for all regular board meetings to provide all
directors with an opportunity to attfend and include matters in the
agenda for regular board meetings.

For other Board and Board committee meetings, reasonable nofice will
generally be given. The agenda and accompanying board papers are
dispatched fo the directors or Board committee members at least three
days before the meetings to ensure that they have sufficient time to
review the papers and be adequately prepared for the meetings.
When directors or Board committee members are unable fo attend a
meeting, they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given
an opportunity to make their views known to the chairman prior to the
meeting.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board committee meetings are/will
be recorded in sufficient defail fo include the matters considered by the
Board and the Board committee and the decisions reached, including
any concems raised by the directors. Draft minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting will be sent to the directors for
comments within a reasonable time affer the date on which the meeting

is held.

According fo the Articles of Association, a Director shall not vote nor be
counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board approving any
confract or arrangement in which he or his associates is materially
interesfed.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

ExgRTHRTESES S HSFED
BITEREZMABERFTERTEZ A
PIiTEEeex BN ERRTHED 14
BX22RESE BETHLESE AN
PIITESEZBZREAHAMENHNEE °

REMESERBEFRESERME * AR
Al-REFLEEBRN - FRELEBESS
XHERRERCHRINELIETTESHE
EZBEKE  URRKEA T ERHEEH
BRAXHEERERERD ER - HEFHE
EREERERELFESH  AINFLES
RTHmNEERRNEHAFAEHENE
EREREZIRR

EZgeahESTZEeea C iR
g/ BEARTH UHAEETERESE
EEMEENEEMTERNATE  BFRE
ERENEMTHE SEZTQERNEEZ
BEgR R E RN ERR1TE
BRZAEBREATEERSES  UHEKF
RHEBR -

RIBABEREAR  ERESTERIER
FWZBBAREPHEAEAESNEMS
HWRZENTAETERERRE - TTE
SEAEEAEA ©



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS AT MEETINGS

The annual general meeting was held on 6 June 2018 whilst 14 Board
meetings were held during the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the atfendance of the individual directors at these meetings is set out
below.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted its own Code for Securities Transactions by
Officers on terms no less exacting than those set out in the Model Code
as its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Specific enquiry has been made of the Company’s directors and all the
existing directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standards set out in the Model Code throughout the period
from 1 January 2018 to the date of this annual report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which are posted on the Company's website
"http: //www.cmru.com.cn” and are available to shareholders upon
request. All Board committees report to the Board on their decisions or
recommendations.

All Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge
their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expense.
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The Nomination Committee comprises Mr. lee Ting Bun Denny, Mr.
Pan Lliansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian (Chairperson) who are all
independent non-executive directors. The functions of the Nomination
Committee primarily are fo:

(i)  review the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually and
make recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategy;

(i) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board on the
selection of individuals nominated for directorships;

(i)  assess the independence of independent non-executive directors;

(iv)] make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of directors and succession planning for directors, in
particular the chairman of the Board and the chief executive; and

[v] to determine the policy for the nomination of directors, the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria adopted to
select and recommend candidates for directorship.

For considering the appointment of directors, the Nomination
Committee assesses the candidate on a variety of criteria such as
reputation of infegrity, qualification, knowledge and experience in the
industry, ability to commit time and effort to carry out the duties and
responsibilities and Diversity in all its aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
Having taken into accounts of the above factors and obtained all the
information as the Nomination Committee considers necessary, the
recommendations of the Nomination Committee will then be put to the
Board for decision, and if the candidate will stand for election at a
general meefing, a circular will be sent to the shareholders.

On 16 April 2014 the Nomination Committee adopted a board
diversity policy. The Board Diversity Policy applies to the Board and
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
maintaining the Company’s competitive advantage. The Nomination
Committee will review annually the structure, size and composition of
the Board and where appropriate, make recommendations on changes
to the Board to complement the Company's corporate strategy, and
will make recommendation to the Board on the measurable objectives
for achieving board diversity. The Company aims to maintain an
appropriate balance of diversity perspectives of the Board that are
relevant to the Company business growth.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Continued)

The Nomination Committee held one meetfing during the year ended
31 December 2018 fo, inter alia, (i) review the size and composition
of the Board as well as review the board diversity policy; (i) assess the
independence of the independent non-executive directors and fo review
that reappointment of directors; and (iii) discuss other matters related to
the foregoing.
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The Nomination Commitiee recommended Mr. Yu Jiangiu, Mr. Huang
Weiping, and Ms. Zhu Yufen as executive directors of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee comprises Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny, M.
Pan Lliansheng (Chairperson) and Ms. Ren Ruxian who are all
independent non-executive directors.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee include the following:

()  to make recommendations fo the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure for all directors’ and senior management's
remuneration and on the establishment of a formal and
fransparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;

[i)  fo review and approve the management's remuneration proposals
with reference fo the Board's corporate goals and objectives;

liii) to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management;

liv] to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of
non- executive directors:

[v] to consider salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Company and ifs subsidiaries;
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Confinved)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

fo review and approve compensation payable fo executive
directors and senior management for any loss or termination of
office or appointment to ensure that it is consistent with confractual
terms and is otherwise fair and not excessive;

fo review and approve compensation arrangements relafing fo
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct to ensure that they
are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise
reasonable and appropriate;

fo ensure that no director or any of his associates is involved in
deciding his own remuneration; and

fo determine the policy for the remuneration of executive direcfors,
assess performonce of executive directors and approve the terms
of executive directors’ service confracts.

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2018 are set out in note 9 fo the financial statements
contained in this annual report.

Remuneration of senior management other than Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

FTMEESS (@)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Mg

ma R ERRITEZRSREEEMR
H IR AR IE RIS s RAE MRS TR BR
8 NERZERERSORR K
AARBEESOGR -  BETARF
B T2AES

mE R ERE T RRE MR ESE
REBEFISRAERERYE - AR
AELHFERANRR— - HARERS
MR —2 ARRBETAREEE

BREMESHAEEMAERANGZHE
BRIHBHMHH &

BEHITESHFMBER  FHEATE
SRR ERTESIRB A R F

o
A °

BEEREZE2018F12HA31 BIEFEW
FENFHISE N AN FRU ERARMES ©
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Number of executive

Total remuneration bands 428 35 T &5 [ ITHABEE
A
ACHI T =
Nil to RMB 1,000,000 Tz AR 1,000,000 7T |
RMB1,000,001 to RMB 1,500,000 ANEEE I QR0 Ames
AEE 1 500,000 7

RMB1,500,001 to RMB2,000,000

RMB2,000,001 to RMB2,500,000

AE¥ 1,500,001 TZ#
AR 2,000,000 7T
AE¥ 2,000,001 TZ
AR#2,500,0007T
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (Confinved)

Two meetings of the Remuneration Commlﬂee was held during the year

ERELIRE

HMESE @)
EA@ZQQO BFI2ASIHLEFE  HME

TUH

ended 31 December 2018 fo review the existing remuneration EB&HETT = /)\E.u%% L/\§$?$ T%%&
packages of Directors and senior managements of the Company. The SEREREB 2 HMTB - TR 2
recommended remuneration packages have been approved by the E’fﬁf%%‘\}k/&
entire Board.
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 2l FEEXH ST A 2
Mr. Pan liansheng 2 EERB A 2/2
Ms. Ren Ruxian 2/2 (E22°¢ k-G 2/2
AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE BB R GLXELEZES
The Audit and Corporate Governance Committee comprises Mr. lee TR R ACEECEE@ETERLE(E
Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson), Mr. Pan liansheng and Ms. Ren Ruxian  f&) - sE@E B & R{EL L+ - 251545
who are all independent non-executive directors. BN IEMITESE -
In relation fo reviewing the Company’s financial information, the Audit BB A A RMPBER TS @ BRI
and Corporate Governance Committee’s duties mainly are to: ELEEBeNTERE AT
(i  review the financial statements and reports and consider any (i) ExEEeR  BERAEEMEERE

significant or unusual items raised by the financial officers of the
Group or external auditors before submission fo the Board;

(i) review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process;

(i) make recommendation to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of external auditors; and

(iv] review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, internal control system and risk
management system.

&#&i W EEAEEIEAEHINE
REED IR 2 (ERE AL FIAE ¢

(i) @RI EEIRINE R ERED 2 BN - BB

HEREZBIE 2R
i) BMEL BEERRRIMNEZBEMAES

SRIER &

(iv) REARRMHREHIE - AEDEIEH
- RREEHNEESERARE
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EREIWE

AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE
(Continued)

In relation to its corporate governance functions, the Audit and
Corporate Governance Committee’s responsibilities are o

()  develop, review and update the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices and to make recommendations

to the Board,

(i) to review and monifor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management,

(i) to review and monifor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,

[iv] to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and directors, and

[v] to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ERELHRSE
AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE V&u—.%kk‘l‘
Four meetings of the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee EW%V&&% BWEEeHETHNRE
were held during the Year. The work performed by the Audit and o B M E g,gié\@ﬁ(\ﬂ&ir T8
Corporate Governance Committee during the Year included the If’E@%LATXIE\ g
following:
(i)  reviewed the annual report and results announcement of the (i) BHARAFTEHZE2017FE12A31 81k
Company for the years ended 31 December 2017; FEMFERREENE
(i)  reviewed the inferim report and inferim results announcements of (i) BEIARATEHZE20184F 6 A30H 1E/X
the Company for the six months ended 30 June 2018; B AR HIRRE B E NS
(iii)  reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the (i) BRI & B FrERAB € 5T ECR RIEHIF
Group and other financial reporting matters; HMBERRET

(iv] reviewed the results of external audit and had discussion with  (iv) BEIIMNBEZRER - j’[?jﬁ{?gﬂ%ﬁ%ﬂiﬁ
external auditors on any significant findings and audit issues; NETEH EINEZ BT R

[v)  reviewed the results of internal review and had discussion with  [v) BREANIBENER - Wt EAEAZ
intfernal audit consultant on any significant findings and internal I8 K% H fb QB ES 12 5 e B A 2l 3 2 B Y
control issues; EITR R

(vi) discussed with the external auditors before the audit commenced,  (vi) R EE4 G144 Al B INIE 422 Bh Bl 51 5 224 Y
the nature and scope of the audit and the respective relevant MHERBENRSERER

issues;

(vij considered and approved the resignation of auditors, the  (vii] ZE R /ERSENERE. (T ap 2 AR A

appointment of external auditors as well as approve its service NAFEENZEBMREE 4
contract for the Year;

(viii) received the continuing connected transactions for the year ended  (viii) EBRIE Z 20184 12 A31 BILEEW

31 December 2018; and HEWERS
[ix) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the Corporate  (ix) BTHARARESTEEE AR RAD
Govemance Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance EERAMEMNIFTE -
Report.
Mr. Lee Ting Bun Denny 4/4 FEEXH A 4/4
Mr. Pan liansheng 4/4 EERB A 4/4
Ms. Ren Ruxian 4/4 (E27°¢ ket 4/4

There had been no disagreement between the Board and the Audit & E2018E 12831 HILEE 252 H
and Corporate Governance Committee during the year ended 31 BEEAL¥ELESBLEDI o

December 2018
Annual Report 2018 & —F— \F4FHf
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ERELIRE

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Ernst & Young was appointed as our external auditor by the Board on
21 November 2018 until the conclusion of the 2019 AGM. It is
primarily responsible for providing audit services in connection with the
annual consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to Emst & Young and
is set out below:

BB &
LKERTANEBAN2018F 11 A21 A&
ARREEG RN EA - FHE 2019
FRIBFARABIL - HEEBREAREF
A BB RRIBHE LR -

XN T oK A EHAAME O
T

Audit services (audit fee for the year ended
31 December 2018)

EZIRS (B2 20184
12A31 BIEFEZEZE)

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 which give
a true and fair view of the affairs of the Company and the Group and
of the Group's results and cash flows.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an
informed assessment of the Company's financial statements, which are
put to the Board for approval. The Company provides all members of
the Board with monthly updates on the Company’s performance,
positions and prospects.

The Directors have made an assessment on the liquidity position of the
Group as to whether the Group is able to continue as a going concem
for af least the twelve months from the end of the reporting period. The
Directors are in the opinion that it is appropriate fo prepare the
consolidated financial statement on a going concern basis.
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INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is the responsibility of the Board fo
mainfain an adequate infernal control system to safeguard shareholder
investments and Company assefs and review the effectiveness of such
system on an annual basis.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal
confrol system of the Company and considers the internal control system
fo be effective and adequate.

The Company has arranged appropriafe insurance cover in respect of
legal action against its directors.

The Board has established an internal audit function, which reports
directly to the Audit Committee fo determine whether the internal control
procedures are properly carried out throughout the year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk management
and internal confrol systems and reviewing their effectiveness on an
ongoing basis. Such risk management and internal control systems are
designed for managing risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure o
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The Board
has delegated its responsibilities (with relevant authorities) of risk
management and internal control to the Audit and Corporate
Governance Committee. The Audit and Corporate Governance
Committee (on behalf of the Board) oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems. During the Year, the Board had conducted
review of the risk management and internal control system of the
Company before the date of this report through effort of the Audit and
Corporafe Governance Committee.

During 2018, the Group has engaged an external consultant to
provide assistance in the development of a structured approach to risk
management and perform internal control review.

ERELIRE

PR 12
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®  Determines the business strategies and objectives of the Group, o
and evaluates and determines the nature and extent of risks it is
willing to take in achieving the Group's strategic objectives;

®  Ensures that the Group establishes and maintains appropriate and e
effective risk management and infernal control systems; and

e Oversees management in the design, implementation and e
monitoring of the risk management and internal control systems.

®  Assists the Board to perform its responsibilities of risk management
and internal control systems;

e reviews the Company’s corporate governance policies and e
practices (including risk management policy) and to make
recommendations to the Board:;

®  Ensures the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and e

experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

e Considers key matters on risk management and internal control,
and reports and makes recommendations fo the Board.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

BRELIWE

RISK. MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL [ELR B e A EBBEHE ()

Confinved)

ﬁgfa‘f;at/ures of the risk management and internal control EREERANPEZEFHIENEZHHE
%ng:;up’s risk governance structure and the main responsibiliies of A& B 7 E B B AL EIA R REBER S B
each level of the structure are summarised below: FTEREBINAOT :
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

(Continued)

Main features of the risk management and internal control

systems (Continved)

Management

®  Designs, implements and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and infernal control sysfems;

e  I|dentifies, evaluates and manages the risks that may potentially
impact the major processes of the operations;

®  Monifors risks and takes measures to mitigate risks in dayto-day
operations;

®  Gives prompt responses fo, and follow up on risk management
and internal control matters; and

®  Provides confirmation fo the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control sysfems.

Internal control consultant

®  Reports to the Audit Committee the findings of the infernal control
review and makes recommendations to the Board and
management fo improve the material systems deficiencies or
control weaknesses identified.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

For the purpose of handling and disseminating inside information in
accordance with the Llisting Rules and the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Cap 571 of the laws of Hong Kong, the Group has faken
various procedures and measures, including arousing the awareness o
preserve confidentiality of inside information within the Group, sending
blackout period and securities dealing restrictions notification to the
relevant directors and employees regularly, disseminating information to
specified persons on a needto-know basis and regarding closely to the
"Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities
and Futures Commission in June 201 2.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was in
compliance with all the laws and regulafions applicable to the business
operations of the Group.
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ERELIRE

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group's business performance and strategies. The Company also
recognizes the importance of transparency and timely disclosure of
corporate information, which enables shareholders and investors to
make the best investment decisions.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at "http://www.cmru.com.cn”, where extensive information and
updates on the Group's business developments and operations,
financial information, corporate governance practices and other
information are available for public access.

Shareholders and investors may send writfen enquiries or requests fo the
Company as follows:

Address:  Unit 4402-03, COSCO Tower,

183 Queen’s Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong
(For the attention of Corporate Communications Department)
Fax: +852 2587 7199

Email: ir@cmru.com.cn

Enquiries are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

The Board welcomes views of shareholders and encourages them to
attend general meetings fo raise any concerns they might have with the
Board or the management directly. Board members and appropriate
senior staff of the Group are available at the meetings to answer any
questions raised by shareholders.

The Company continues to enhance communication and relationship
with ifs investors.

Designated senior management maintains regular dialogue with
institutional invesfors and analysts to keep them informed of the Group's
developments.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, there had been no
change in the constitutional documents of the Company.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Group adopted a dividend policy on
summary of the policy is disclosed as below.

18 January 2019. A

The Company considers sfable and sustainable retums to shareholders
fo be its goal and endeavours to maintain a balance between meeting
shareholders’ expectations and prudent capital management with a
stable and sustainable dividend policy.

In accordance with the article of association of the Company and
subject to the relevant laws under Cayman lIslands, the Company in
general meeting may from time to time declare dividends in any
currency fo be paid to the shareholders but no dividend shall be
declared in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

Dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of the
Company, realised or unrealised, or from any reserve set aside from
profits which the Directors determine is no longer needed. With the
sanction of an ordinary resolution dividends may also be declared and
paid out of share premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with the relevant laws
under Cayman Islands.

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in determining the
dividend amount, the Board may take into account, amongst other
things, the actual and expected financial performance, the eamings,
distributable reserves, debts to equity ratio, refurn on equity, working
capital requirement, future expansion plans, and any other factors that
the Board deem appropriate.

The Board shall review this policy from time fo fime, as appropriate, to
ensure the effectiveness of this policy and shall discuss any revisions
that may be required.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary of the Company is Mr. Cheung Ying Kwan.
Mr. Cheung has been informed of the requirement of the Rule 3.29 of
the Listing Rules, and he confirmed that he had affained no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31
December 2018
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ERELIRE

To safeguard shareholders” inferests and rights, separate resolutions are
proposed at shareholders” meefings on each substantial issue, including
the election of individual directors, for shareholders’ consideration and
vofing.

Under article 58 of the Articles of Association, the Company's
shareholders may convene an extraordinary general meetfing or put
forward proposals at shareholders’ meetings pursuant to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than onetenth of the paid up capifal
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secrefary, require an exiraordinary general meeting fo be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition.

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at a general
meeting in accordance with the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the Atticles of Association.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director, the
procedures are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the Company and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company has not made any changes to ifs Arficles of Association
throughout the year ended 31 December 2018. An upto-date version
of the Articles of Association is available on the Company's website
and the Stock Exchange's website. Shareholders may refer to the
Articles of Association for further details of their rights.

All resolutions put forward at shareholders’ meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant fo the Listing Rules and the poll voting results will be
posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (http: //www.cmru.com.cn) immediately after the relevant
general meetings.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

Ernst & Young TG TR SE AT Tel E35: +852 2846 9888
22/F, CITIC Tower IR EE1YE Fax {8 H: +852 2868 4432
1 Tim Mei Avenue sk E2218 ey.com

EY =x

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Central, Hong Kong

We have audited the consolidated financial statfements of China Mefal
Resources Utilization Llimited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”] set out on pages 92 to 100, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statfement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes fo the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2018, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Audifor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriafe to provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond
to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Business combination and goodwill measurement
EBaORBBRTE

During the year, the Group acquired entire equity inferests
of Mianyang Zhaofeng Copper Co., lid 435Ik 2% H
PR A 7] ("Zhaofeng”), Hubei Rongsheng Copper Co., Lid
Ml R 2B & mB R 2 7 ("Rongcheng’) and
Chengxin Copper Co., lid MR BMEBR A A
("Chengxin”) for purchase considerations of RMB64
million, RMB292 million and RMB355 million,
respectively. Following the purchase price allocation on
identifiable assets and liabilities acquired at acquisition
dates, goodwill of RMB64 million, RMB291 million and
RMB308 million were recognised, respectively. The
additional goodwill contributed 14% of total assets and
39% of total non-current assets of the Group. Accordingly,
the acquisitions were material and significant judgements
and estimates were required in relation fo the purchase
price allocations including the resulting goodwill.
Management, assisted by external valuation specialists,
determined the fair values of the identifiable assets and
liabilities and contingent considerations. The contingent
considerations included earn-out payments based on future
profits of the acquirees in the coming two fo three years.
These contingent consideration payables were measured
at fair values, based on a probabilit-weighted expected
return analysis of cash flow assumptions, which related to
the expected performance and growth of the entities
acquired, discounted to a present value. Revaluation of
the contingent consideration payables were recognised in
the consolidated profit or loss. The judgements involved in
deriving estimated future profits and associated probability
weightings, and determining an appropriate discount rate
is an area considered to be at risk of material
misstatement.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

BHEEBERMNARRA A
(RS EZMAL A HR A FMLRER

Our procedures in relation to the accounting of business
combination included, among others:

BERXGAMHETNEFEHE

= Assessing the competence and relevant
experience, independence and objectivity of the
external valuation specialists engaged by
management;

“a FHEEE R A SNBRT S ERAVEE ) KR AR
KEe - BUIMNEEIL

g Testing on a sample basis the cutoff of sales and
expenses at the acquisition dates;

7 MG E B SNHERER

e Assessing the valuation methodologies used by
management by comparing against external data
for purchase price allocation; and

i FEBEBEEDEMIIMNIBIRETLE - 4
EREREANMGETE &

— Assessing the valuation methodologies used by
management and testing the key assumptions
against historical trends for contingent
consideration payables.

= FHEEREEEANGEETE  YREBERAKE
e TRIBROEE LB 25 R A BR SR fRAR o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

FR BEEBERBREKEREZAERAR(TKE])
LR BHBERAR((RR ) RFHH™TRER
XER2R(RE]D 280 5E  KBAEIHR/AR
# 64,000,000 7T -+ A R #292,000,0007T & A K #
355,000,0007T - &t iE B EAFA IR AT BB B EE ) B
AN EBEER - 2 hIHEREE AR 64,000,000
7T AR #291,000,0007T Kk A K # 308,000,000
T BINEEN BESRERABEMNIALRIERBDEE
REN39% - At - WEERBEARAFTEBEE
DE(BRANKELNEE) FHERHE KRG - &
BEENISBEEERNHS T  EEABEERE
BEUNEARENAFE  AREEERREREE
TARKMEB =ZFBAASOBAEHBARK - ZFXA
REBMNFADRAKEEROFAHRE MIERAH
MRERERR (MREERE) WX NEREME RS
o AR FERFE - IARBENTENERETIR
FAEBRMmRPER - HEEMGSRIOEN M AEREBE R
BARBTEEE MR RGN ROHHRRSFEE
R R BRI R o
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BHEEBERMNARRAA
(REIEFEZMAL AR A FMLRER

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of goodwill included, among others:

ERARBRENGNEFEE

= Assessing the competence and relevant
experience, independence and objectivity of the
external valuation specialists engaged by
management;

— FHEE IR R A A SN ERRT S B R A 1) MAR
Rk BUMMERINML

= Obtaining an understanding of the basis
adopted in the value in use calculations
prepared by management;

i THREEBMRAENEREETEMEAN
B

= Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist fo assess the valuation method used by
management and evaluating certain key
assumptions for goodwill impairment
assessment;

= BEANRTEERBYFEEREEANG
B7h%  WAHERERENGHNE TERRK

.
F‘X'



To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continved)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

BHEEBERNARRAT
(RS EZMAL A HR A FMLRER

BREZSE#)

Management is required fo test the recognised goodwill
for impairment both annually and if there is a trigger for
festing. The impairment test involved significant judgements
and assumptions including uncertainties around future
market or economic conditions made by management.
ERERASFELRBEAAERZNER THE®R
NEEETTRERNR - MEANFS REBRHEHRERE
BIRE IR B AR KT I5 RABMR DA A HEE EEHEY
Bl R

The related judgements and estimates, goodwill and
business combinations are disclosed in notes 3, 16 and
33 1o the consolidation financial statements.

A E RAET  BBREREHRGEY BRI
3 16K 337 HFEE ©

Testing the appropriateness of the key inputs
applied by management including revenues,
cost of sales and operating expenses by
benchmarking them against the economic and
industry data;

BB T B ABURRKGEMITREERE
ETHE - ASREEERANEI28H AR
MEEE BREERE HERKARES
FH

Assessing the key factors in defermining the
discount rate and comparing fo discount rafes
adopted in the industry; and
AMEEERRRRAEENBERRESE  WHET
FRAMBRREETHEER &

Evaluating the sensitivity analysis performed by
management in respect of the growth rafe to
evaluate the extent of impact on the calculations
of the value in use.
HEEEEHERRETOSRBESN - U
AHEEHEREEFENFERE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Revenue recognition

ERENER

The Group's principal activities are the manufacturing,
sale and trading of copper and related products.
BEEENTIEXKEDAFLBHEEMNLEE  HE
KBS o

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
recorded total revenue of RMB20,643 million of which
manufacturing revenue accounted for RMB3,101 million,
representing 15% of total revenue while trading revenue
accounted for RMB17,542 million, representing 85% of
fofal revenue.

HE2018F12A31HILFE X EEEHFELEE
AR 20,043,000,0007T - HPHEEZEAA
K#3,101,000,0007T - (h# L XM 15% ME S
EHEFHEARK17,542,000,0007C « G4 EBH
85% °
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BHEEBERMNARRAA
(REIEFEZMAL AR A FMLRER

Qur procedures in relation fo revenue included, among
others:

BEEREXBERANEFEE (AT e)

= Obtaining an understanding of the processes
relating fo revenue recognition and assessing
the design, implementation and operation of key
controls over the recording of revenue;

- THRELXEEABANET RERBEER
RIS EIT AV ERGT - T RIRVEETTRIE

= Inspecting samples of sales confracts to identify
key terms and conditions and the point at which
control of the products were transferred and
assessing the Group's accounting policies for
revenue recognition with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;

= M EHESNWNETE F 2RI RGN
NEREHEREZENR[E  T2ERT
GERE G EEERHLERAREAN
SRR



To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We identified revenue recognition as a key audit matter
because revenue is one of the key performance indicators
of the Group which gives rise to an inherent risk that
revenue could be subject to manipulation to meet
expectations or performance targets; and the Group is
entitled to government grant for refunds of 30% of the net
value added tax paid/payable generated from
manufacturing revenue. The impact of any errors in
manufacturing revenue recognition could be material to
the consolidated financial statements in terms of the
government granf income to be recognised.
EEREXBNERCAS —HRREZFE  BER
e BEEEN-EEEXREAERF g5/REXREA
ReRENMEI AP EEEENRERR : & &
SEARESHNHE  ZERBELETMN
IR {E %58 30% AR B o S 74 S B 52 B9 IR 0 B U
A BUEEEBERNE R AR e B HRER
TEERK o

The relevant disclosures of revenue are contained in note
5 to the consolidated financial statements.

BREXENREEHNINGE S MIEHRRMES -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR S

BHEEBERMNARRA A
(RS EZMAL A HR A FMLRER

Checking samples of revenue transactions
recognised during the year with the related sales
contracts, sales invoices, delivery document,
cash receipts and other relevant underlying
documentation;
MEREFANEHERLE XA HEAEEH
HEGK HEER REE HAaUER
E A8 R X

Checking samples of revenue transactions
recorded before and after year end with the
sales confracts, sales invoices, delivery orders
and ofher relevant underlying documentation fo
assess if the related revenue was recorded in
the appropriate accounting period;
MEREFRARATHENEEBIFIER
HEIFEAN  HERR XBEEBENHMWERH
X URHE RSB R AR ENS
FHEAM

Performing background search on key
customers; and

HIZEPETESHAST &

Considering the adequacy of the financial
statement disclosures.

ZRENMBRMRBEENTOME -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Recoverability of advance payment to suppliers
BTSRRI Y AT [ Wi

The Group has made significant advance payment to
suppliers in order to secure the supply of raw materials.
These advance payments were principally for the purchase
of scrap copper and were mostly made to individuals and
private companies. The outstanding balance of advance
payments fo suppliers was RMB 1,334 million as af 31
December 2018, representing 28% fofal assefs.
EEERMHERBNERIE  UERFREMHHE -
HEBRRTELRBEENF - BT EXNTFEARLA
NAF 22018 12 A 31 HMMHER X MAIRERBEK
AR AR AR 1,334,000,0007T - HEREELED
28% °

Management assessed the recoverability of advance
payments to suppliers with reference fo their past histories
of the supply of goods to the Group. Based on
management’s assessment, no provision for impairment
was required in respect of the advance payments to
suppliers as af 31 December 2018.
EEEL2ERSEER BEEEHEERNESL
AHE BN ERERIRMN A B - EREE B -
R20184F 12 A 31 BEARBNHEBEFEIRRE
B e

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

FHEEEERMNARRAF
(REIEFEZMAL AR A FMLRER

Our procedures in relation to recoverability of advance

payment fo suppliers included, among others:

BEERBNHERTIAR A BRI RANEF 85 (E

hEE) :

— Assessing the design, implementation and
operation of confrols over the monitoring and
utilisation of advance payments fo suppliers and
the related impairment assessment;

~ BB K fE A B e R kIR M AR R (E R
AT MRRAT » BT IR IEETTRIAS

= Performing background search on material
suppliers;

<5 HEAREHETERAST

s Assessing the historical loss record of advance
payments to suppliers with reference to the ageing
analysis of the balances, the past history of each
supplier, including previous defaults or delays in
the delivery of goods, sefflement records and post
year end deliveries, on a sample basis;

= DEEBNRERON  SHEFBERESE (8
RATENNEERNEM) AELHERF
R RO 8L - FEET (4 2 R R IR B
e SRR



To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We identified the assessment of recoverability of advance
payments fo suppliers as a key audit matter because
advance payments were significant to the Group as at 31
December 2018 and the advances were made fo many
individuals and private companies and therefore
significant management judgement is required to be
exercised to assess their recoverability which can be
inherently uncertain.
EERBMHERAIEN A EER RREREREE
TEAM2018F 12 A3 BRFRYE BEEEMSEBEK
BBRDARZEARFARBESL - BT EER]E
WiERAEIEBIELERHE - MEFERNENTRE
FENE o

The relevant disclosures of judgements and esfimates and
advance payment to suppliers are confained in nofes 3
and 20 o the consolidated financial statements.
BRAFE - Mt BN HERRIENREERENE
BB HERMFEI K20 -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BHEEBERMNARRAA
(RS EZMAL A HR A FMLRER

Involving our internal valuation specialists to
assist fo assess the valuation method used by
management and evaluating forward looking
adjustment by checking to market dafo;
BN EER B A EEREERNG
B3 YEBREMSBETGAELA
#*®

Conducting, on a sample basis, site visits to
material suppliers to assess the existence and
size of the suppliers;
HEAREBETHEEMESR - AFEH
FER IR R ARAR

Obtaining confirmation, on a sample basis,
from maijor suppliers to confirm the balances at
31 December 2018 and performing alternative
procedures by comparing defails with purchase
orders, bank payments and related
documentation; and

X 2HERESEARER - IHER2018F
12831 HeV&EsR - WiB B MY L EREERT
B RITANREEE X RETERERRF
&

Performing a refrospective review by comparing
management’s assessment of the recoverability
of advance payments to suppliers as at 31
December 2017 with actual utilisation and
recoveries of these balances in the current year.
BB ERER2017F 12 A 31 BRNHE
7 KR F] @ U 1 Y T R R B RN AN R
BV BB A R B BN ELLE - EITRPIE

LA
e

I o
AR A
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statfements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability fo continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic altfernative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are fo obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
fowards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected fo influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout
the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate fo
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not defecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
infernal control.

e Obfain an understanding of infernal control relevant fo the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

s HEREELAARER RIS

ORVR S

HHEEEBERINAERAT
(RS EZMAL A HR A FMLRER
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ORVR A

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

e  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtfained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
fo events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to confinue as a going concem. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

®  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying fransactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business acfivities within the
Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Commitiee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the shareholders of China Metal Resources Utilization Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
defermine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Ip Hing Lam.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FalRaR

Year ended 31 December 2018 EtZ 20184 12531 AL F/E

2017
2017 &
Notes RMB'O00
B 5 ARETIT
REVENUE =E ] 5 13,741,862
Cost of sales SHE R R (13,618,255)
GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) £ (E8) 123,607
Other income, gain/(loss), net HMEU A - Wzt (EB8R) 6 318,340
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHMAX (20,519
Administrative expenses TR (153,636
Reversal of provision for RERE I IFRR
doubtful debts, net 19 127 A5/
Finance costs B FE AKX AN 8 (143,220
Share of profits of associates {1 Bt 2 1% B A 4,375
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BiRER Za 256,404
Income tax expense PSR i) (71,821)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE A=A RI#EE ABEGERZEF
TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY 18755858
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREF 12
Basic (RMB) EXR(ARBT) 0.08
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARKT) 0.07

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 431 A1 F/&F

FEZEkaR

2017
20174
RMB'O00
ARETT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRRF 184,583
Other comprehensive income/{loss) for the year: FRE M2 E Kz (EHE) -
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will REEHRBBETeEFTHES
not be reclassified to profit or loss BEMHEMEE
in subsequent periods: W/ (Ei8) :
Exchange differences on translation of BERR R REINETEH
the Company and the foreign operations N =5 3,897
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) ARRBEEAEGREAZE
FOR THE YEAR, ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS Uz~ (f&i8) 4 58
OF THE COMPANY 188,480
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

FaMBRAR

31 December 2018 20184 12 431 A

2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
Bt = ARETTT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB K& 118 568,460
Prepaid land lease payments Tt LA E R 14 95,672
Interests in associates NS 15 166,810
Goodwill mE 16 LSl
Pledged deposits [REELYER 27 4,800
Prepayments, other receivables R - B RUGRIA K
and other assets Hth&E 20 31,846
Deferred tax assets RIET IR & 17 20,039
910,854
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories s 18 453,169
Trade and bills receivables B S RBGRIE R EWEE 9, [ el
Prepayments, other receivables FARR - E A EKRIE &
and other assets Hu&EE 20 784,351
Amounts due from associates JFE Y B 28 X R FROR 21 6,221
Amounts due from related parties JrE Ui B8 B 5 2k TE 21 10
Pledged deposits B HER 22 43,437
Cash and cash equivalents RekFHeFEER 29 109,595
2,487,981
CURRENT UIABILITIES RBAR
Trade and bills payables B HENFIARENRE 23 213,658
Note payable ANEE 24 &
Other payables and accruals H b FRIE KRR & 25 356,638
Finance leases payables AMERERARIE 26 A A
Inferestbearing bank and other ST RRIT REAER
borrowings 2o 682,560
Amounts due to associates JE T B 2 A RIKIA 21 4,638
Amounts due to a related party JE - — & B 75 IR 21 z
Liability component of convertible ﬂ?ﬁ%%#ﬂ’ﬂ%{a%ﬁﬁ
bonds 28 O S
Tax payable e IR 36,481
1,401,597
NET CURRENT ASSETS FREEE 1,086,384
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRBAE
LIABILITIES 1,997,238

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

maMBRAR

31 December 2018 20184 12 431 A

2017
2017 &
Notes RMB'O00
B 5 ARET T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Finance leases payables AT ERE 26 691
Inferestbearing bank and other SHERITREMER
borrowings 27 3]
Liability component of convertible bonds AT # & &4 &) & EEFH 28 453,436
Contingent consideration liabilities HARRBEE =
Deferred government grants ELEBR B 29 6,204
460,862
NET ASSETS REE 120 3OR3AO
EQUITY s
Share capifal A& 30 197,495
Reserves i 32 1,338,881
TOTAL EQUITY 4 RE L IESR O8O

Yu Jiangiu
ATEM
Director

EF

Kwong Wai Sun Wilson
BERE

Director

EFE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FeEEBR

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 431 A1 F/&E

Share
premium

RipaE
RME'000
ARBTT

Nofes
i AR ST T

At 31 December 2017

R2017%124318 197495 1,016,229

At 31 December 2018

R2018%12A318 210244 1468419

Exchange
reserve

Bt
RMB'000

N S

(1,529

(62,783)*

Capital
reserve

BAGR
RMB'000
AEBTR

132,055

132,055*

Attributable fo equity shareholders of the Company
ALNRRERRES
Share-bosed
payment
reserve
DY it
ERf
AR
RMB'000
ARMTT

Consideration
share
reserve

Converfible
Warrant ~ bonds equity
reserve  resenve

Totol
equity

Accumulated  Revaluation
losses reserve

Statutory
reserves

ARER  TERES
fEfe  EEGE
RMB'000  RMB'000
AEBTR  AR%TR

RERG
il
RMB'000
ARRT R

e
RMB'000
AEBTR

ZitbR
RMB'000
ARBTT

B
RMB'000
ARBTR

L1
RMB'000
ARBTT

87,128 81,270 1209 40,6% 48970 (68017) 1,536,376

Effect on adoption of RARRAHREEN
RS 9 net of tax £0%MTe Nk
#E ) (83,263) (73,683
At 1 January 2018 (restoed) R2018F1A1H
(5 %51) 197495 1,016,229 (11529) 132,055 81,270 12,079 48970 (151,300 1,462,693
Profi for the year Fhigf = - - - - - - 20,123 20,123
Other comprehensive loss EREHEEER:
for he year:
Exchonge diferences on BEARAR
franglfion of e Companyand ~ E5 ERE £ H
the foreign operations ERER (51,254 (51,254)
Totol comprehensive loss FREAFRLE
for he year (51,254) (31,131)
Issuarce of ordinary shares RTERR 30,32 314,235 - - 320922
Brercise of share opions I ERE 30,31, 32 19730 (5,374 - 15,750
Appropriafion fo siotvory reserve  EHEEE G 3 = = (22,895) =
Eouisefled shore opfion IEREENERE
anangemen's T KAS L] - 7,563 - 7,563
lapse of share opfions BRELR 31,32 - (2,984) 2,984 -
Redempion of convertble bonds BRI AR ER 2,32 - - 157 -
Consideration shore arongements  ER (A% 32 - - - - 109,625 - 109,625
Issuance of consideration shores ~ Z{TRERR 30 3,206 90,813 - - (94,019) - -
Exercise of warronts ERRES 30,32 1,462 7412 - (8,519) - - 20,355

110,023* 80,475 3,560* 645760 (150,931 9,600° 1,905,777

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB1,695,533,000 %
[2017: RMB1,338,881,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR

ZERBEECEGAUBRARANG S
&% AR % 1,6055330007T (201746 : AR ¥
1,338,881,0007T) °



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

g f=1 DiES

Year ended 31 December 2018 #Z 20184 12 431 A1 F/&F

Atribuioble o equity shareholders of the Company
ARAEEHRREL

Sharebased Converfible  Considerafion
Share Share  Exchonge Capial Stotutory payment  Warrant  bonds equify share  Accumulated Total
capilal premium feserve feserve fesenves feserve feserve resenve resenve losses equity
IWRR
e AREE  TARES RERHR
fx  RfYEE @ EXRE  EARE  EERE  ARER fE  EaDy fE  ZHER EER
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RIVB'000
i ARETr ARETR ARETr ARETT ARETr ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR
At 1 Jonuary 2017 R2017E1R18 182,579 602,992 [15426) 132,055 80,917 59,680 12,079 # - (247,068 807,708
Profitfor he year FREH = = = = - - - - - 184,583 184,583
Other comprehensive income ~~ FRE M 2K
for the year:
Exchange differences on BEARFR
fronslotion of the Company BNEBEER
and the foreign operations ] - - 3,897 - - - - - - - 3,897
Totol comprehensive income ENEENREE
for the year - - 3,807 - - - - - - 184,583 188,480
Issuance of ordinary shares BITERR 30,32 6,455 162,523 - - - - - - - - 168978
Exercise of share opfions TEERE 30,31,32 308 9,035 - - - (841) - - - - 8,592
Appropriation fo statuiory reseve BB EAT itk 32 = = = = 6,211 = - = - [6,211) -
Equitysetfed share opfion IEREENERE
arrangements T 31,32 5 = & = = 23,210 = = = = 23210
lapse of share opfions BRERM 31,32 - - - - - 779 - - - 779 -
Conversion of convertible bonds BRI ERT
fo equity s 2832 8,063 241,075 - - - - - - - - 9138
Issuance of convertible bonds  E{TAI IR ER 28,32 - - = e = & - 41,300 = = 41,300
Redemption of convertible bonds ~ BB A% (B % 28,32 - 604 - - - - - [604) - - -
Considerafion share arongements B (7 &k 32 - - - - - - - - 48,970 - 48,970
At 31 December 2017 R2017%£128318 197495 1016229  (11,529) 132,055 87,128 81,270 12,079 40,696 48970 (68,017) 1536376
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERKRER

Year ended 31 December 2018 EtZ 20184 12531 AL F/E

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax

Adjustments for:

Finance costs

Equity-setiled share option expense

Consideration shares for inventory
procurement

Depreciation

Deferred expense

Amortisation of prepaid land lease
payments

Interest income

Share of profits of associates

Loss on disposal of property, plant
and equipment

Foreign exchange differences, net

Changes in fair value of derivative
instrument

Changes in fair value of contingent
consideration liabilities

Reversal of provision for

doubtful debts, net

Reversal of provision for inventories

Decrease/increase) in inventories

Decrease/(increase) in trade and
bills receivables

Increase in frade and bills payables

Increase in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

Increase in other payables and accruals

Cash generated from/(used in)
operations

Income fax paid

Notes
B 5
RETEBESHENE
BB B
KUATIE B FAE -
B FS A AN 8
DARRRE4E E B i i A 2 7
FERBORERSD
e 74
IR
AN LA ER K
 5H 7
HEUA 6
PGB 2 X ) g Al 6
HEYE - BEREEZ
&8 7
VR =R
PTETEMNRFEEE
6
IAREBEELAFEEE
6
RERB R EFEE
19
FERERE 7

FERL (M)
B 5 RUHIE R EREE

(R A), /10
S ENZIB RN EE
#h0
FENR - EtEREAERE
ftb & EE 1 N
Hib e Zoar EtE A
30
EEBAR (A BES

B ATEE

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

2017
2017
RMB’000
ARETT

256,404

143,220
23,210

48,970
35,848
888
2,122
(1,538
(4,375)

7
(17,024)

(2,233)

(127,457)
(5,288)

SOP7C)
(239,681)

(702,011)
122,889
(44,245)

Q7,341

(412,928)

(13,386)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FeReRER
Year ended 31 December 2018 #2 20184 12 4 31 H1FF/E
2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
Bt = ARETT
Net cash flows from/(used in) RESEBFNE,(FTH)
operafing activities HEERE (426,314)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REZHMEBRERE
ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYZE  BMELEXREEER
plant and equipment (28,697)
Proceed from disposal of items of HEWE - BFEM&kE
property, plant and equipment TR B PSR N
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEE M B A ) 32 5
Investment in an associate R—EBERRZRE 15 (125,000
Interest received B KFLE 1,538
Acquisition of a prepaid land WHETE L & 3k
lease payment =
Net cash flows used in investing BEESMAFRERE
activities (152,159
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METHMESRERE
ACTIVITIES
New bank loans and other borrowings ¥R 17 & 5k I EAb & 3k 551,075
Repayment of bank loans and ERRITER KM ERK
other borrowings (568,270)
New note payable EN R i
Repayment of nofe payable BRENFER =
Repayment of finance lease payables EEmERaErEMIuE (12,391)
Decrease/[increase) in pledged deposits  #E I F R A, (3&50) 11,239
Guarantee fees and other charges ERERIHEMES (5,802
Advance from/(repayment fo) R B BB K B A B AY
related parties and associates B35 (RIREE: A &
/NI o /) (8,920
Net proceeds from exercise of warrants 171 ZRR%AE &
FTSRUIEF 3R =
Net proceeds from issuance of BITRBRESRZ
convertible bonds PSR F 5 28 RO 2
Net proceeds from issuance of BITEBRCFTSHIEFEE
ordinary shares 30 168,978
Proceeds from exercise of share options 1T B #E Z FT 15 RB 30 8,992
Repayment of convertible bonds EBEARRES (227,210
Interest paid ENFE (103,377
Net cash flows from financing activities ~ BEEBEFEFESRE S22 20
Annual Report 2018 & —F— \F4FHf m




FERKRER

Year ended 31 December 2018 EtZ 20184 12531 AL F/E

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
Bt = ARETTT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH BE&RBESEEEBEW
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AR GD) 53,347
Cash and cash equivalents af FYHEeMEEFEERR
beginning of year 164,142
Effect of foreign exchange rate [E RSB HET L
changes, nef (1,200)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FREERBEEEEER
AT END OF YEAR 22 109,595

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARREEEHR
China Mefal Resources Utilization Limited (“the Company”) was FRHRESEEEMNBBERAT([ARXT])
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 22 February 2013. MR2013F2 A22 AERAERFSTMAK
I o
The Company and its subsidiaries (fogether referred to as “the AATIRERBAR (GBI AER])
Group”) are principally engaged in the manufacturing, sales and TENRENRABERNLEE  BHER
trading of copper and related products. The shares of the B5%% - BH 20145 2R821 B
Company have been listed on the Main Board of The Stock AARBRPELEETEHAER AR
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”) since 21 NEl (BT TR EHe- EERA
February 2014. In the opinion of the directors, the holding NN IE0b 2 NI DNE ¢ 22 /NG =i
company and ultimate holding company of the Company is BERAR(FE]  ZARNREER
Epoch Keen Limited (“Epoch Keen”), which is incorporated in the THE ([EBELEE )M
British Virgin Islands (“BVI").
Information about subsidiaries ERMELSNESR
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: AARMBARNFEET :
Engen Invesiments Limited BVI United States dollars 100% = Investment holding
["Engen’)** ABEUES ('USD") 10,225 RERR
BeRERRLRA(RE]) 10,225% (%))
True Excel Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$ 1 = 100%  Investment holding
("True Excel’) ) 187 REER
REERERAR([RE])
Alpha legend Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
(Alpha Legend'| &R 18T RERB
BRERARA R (2505 ])
Alpha Business Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$ 1 = 100%  Investment holding
(" Alpha Business') e 18T REER
BERERRLR(EH])
Alpha Universe Group limited Hong Kong HK$ 1 = 100%  Investment holding
(" Alpha Universe') e 18T REER
BasBERAR(BH])
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=
RA %5 48 R Pl 5
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)
1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Confinued) ERENMBATNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: ARRMBARNFHEOT : (8)
[Continued)
Fanmay Limited |"Fanmay’)* * BVI HK$1 100% = Invesiment holding
ZXBRAR(EE]) RERAES 1AL RERR
China Recycling Aluminium Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Investment holding
("Recycling Aluminium”| BE 1T RERR
PEERERERAA
([MfEREX))
Cosmo Hope Limited BVI USD1 100% = Invesiment holding
("Cosmo"|** RERAES B RERR
China Mefal Resources Corporation  BVI USD1 100% - Investment holding
Limited {"CMR")** RBRAES 1T RERB
Hong Kong Jin Xunhuan Group Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
Limited ("HKIXH") BB 10087 RERR
BEeRREEERAT
([BEeRR])
China Mefal Resources (Hong Kong| Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
Limited ("CMR HK') &g 1007 RERR
THEBER(BE)ARAA
((hELEERETE])
China Zhaofeng Copper Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
PEREREERLA B 10087 RERR
Value Link Developments Limited BV USD100 100% - Investment holding
("Value Link)** RBRAMS 1007 RERR
HARRERAR ([ME])**
m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © R EI&E&ERAAHR A 7




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1.
[(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Confinved)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

[Continued)

NEIREBER (&)

BRMEDRNER (#)
ARFNBRRANZEEDT « ()

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRAEE/
BT

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business
EmAL/
SRR

Percentage of equity
attributable fo the Company

Principal acivities

ANAEEESE D
Direct Indirect

EE b3

FEXRE

Silver Eminent Group Limited BVI Usb100 100% - Investment holding
("Silver Eminent’)** RBRIHS 100%7T REER
RiFEEERNA ([FiF]) **
Sky Harvest Global Limited BVI usb100 100% ~  Investment holding
(Sky Harvest'|* * EBRAES 100%7T REER
ERFBRAR(RE])**
China Sanmei Copper limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
PE=EMERBR AT BB 10087 RERBR
China Rongsheeng Mefal limited ~ Hong Kong HK$100 = 100%  Investment holding
TERREEERLA &g 100787 RERR
Mianyang Jinxin Copper Co., lid.  The People’s Republic ~ RMB100,000,000 A 100%  Processing of scrap copper
(“Jinxin”)** of China (the “PRC") AR 100,000,0007T and electrolytic copper
REeBMEARAA(E8]) PEARLAR for the manufacturing of
(TR copper related products
MIEEREREER
P R0 BE R [ = i
Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei Copper ~ The PRC RMB80,000,000 = 100%  Processing of scrap copper
Co., ltd. (*Xiangbei"|*/** i AK#80,000,0007T and electrolyfic copper

AR R AR
(AL ) */*+

Annual Report 2018 o —ZF— N\FFHH m

for the manufacturing of

copper related products
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Confinued) ERENMBATNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RRABIMBARNEBAT : ()
[Continued)
Mianyang Tongxin Copper The PRC RMB50,000,000 = 100%  Processing of scrap copper
Co., ltd. ("Tongxin"|*/** FE AR 50,000,0007T and electrolytic copper
wEAEHE AR for the manufacturing of
(THg]) */** copper+elated products
MIAEFRRER
FfT PR B R 1 S
Sichuan Baohe Xinshiji Cable Co.,  The PRC RMB150,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of

Ltd. ("Baohe Xinshiji’|*/** I AR 150,000,000 power fransmission and
M)l RAE R R BER AR, distribution cables
(TRANETHEAZ |) */** EERFERREE
Mianyang Baohe Taiyue The PRC RMBB0,000,000 = 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Communications Cable f AR 80,000,0007T communication cables
Co., ld. ["Baohe Taiyue')*/** EERHEBEEE
BERNRUBEESEERAR
(TRANZRML]) */**
Mianyang Jin Xunhuan Mefal The PRC RMB30,000,000 - 100%  Manufacturing and sale of
Materials Co., Lid. R AR 30,000,0007C anodic copper and
"lin Xunhuan")*/** frading of electrolytic
wEERREBMEERAA. copper
(T&fBIR)) */* 4 B RIHE B RRN
BEESHN
Shanghai Epoch Keen Metal The PRC HK$60,000,000 = 100%  Trading of copper related
Trading Co., lid. H 60,000,000 7T products
("Shanghai Shijian’|*/** BEEHAMER

LEREERHEARDA
([ LR ]) */**

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

[(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Confinved)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

[Continued)

Mianyang Xinhuan Aluminium Co.,

lid. ["Xinhuan Aluminium"|*/**
wERREFERAT
(TBRIBE) */*

Shanghai Bujiang Mefal Material
Co., lid. ['Bujiang")*/**

EFIeBHRARAR
(T

Sichuan Boxin copper Co., lid
["Boxin"|*/**

mIEEREERLA
([B&])*/*

Sichuan Epoch Keen Recycling

Resources Development Co., Lid.

("Sichuan Shijian”)*/**
mEEBLERAEERAR
(Tl ) */*+

Mianyang Yuxin Recycling
Development Co., ltd.
s

BHEEBLARRE
ARAR((RE]) Y/

Place of incorporation/
registration

and business
EmAL/
SRR

The PRC
G

The PRC
3

The PRC
i

The PRC
i

The PRC
HE

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRAEE/
BT

RMB30,000,000
AR 30,000,000

Registered capital

of RMB30,000,000
AMER

AR 30,000,000

RMB 10,500,000
AK#10,500,0007T

Registered capital

of RMB50,000,000
EMEX

AR 50,000,0007

RMB50,000,000
AR 50,000,000

1. REIREEER #)

BRMEDRNER (#)
ARFNBRRANZEEDT « ()

Percentage of equity
attributable fo the Company
FAREEREEDL
Direct Indirect
EE GF:
= 100%
= 100%
= 100%
= 100%
= 100%
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Principal acivities

FEXRE

Trading of aluminium
related producs

BERHEBER

Inactive

TEXY

Processing of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper
for the manufacturing of
copper related products

MI&EREBER
FiT R B0 BE S S

Inactive

LEXY

Trading of copper related
products

BEWHEBER




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION 1. ARIREEER @)
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Confinued) ERENMBATNER (&)
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows: RRABIMBARNEBAT : ()

[Continued)

Hunan Yinlian Xiangbei The PRC Registered capital 100%  Trading of copper related
Nonferrous Metal Co., lid. M of RMB50,000,000 products
["Xiangbei Youse'|*/** A A BERREER
HERERLEE BN AR 50,000,000t
BRAR(HILEE]) */**
Sichuan Zhixin Mefal Materials The PRC RMB49,470,300 100%  Trading of copper related
Co., ltd. (“Zhixin"|*/** i AR 49 470,300 7T products
M) EEL B EERAR BEEHAMER
(IB&])*/*+
Mianyang Yixinda Trading The PRC Registered capital 100%  Inactive
Co., ld. ["Yixinda"|*/** hE of RMB100,000,000 TEXK
wEEEEEHERAR AMERARE
(Mg ) */** 100,000,0007¢
Shenzhen Qianhai Zhongjin The PRC Registered capital 100%  Inactive
Nonferrous Metal Co., Lid. g5 of RMB100,000,000 BEEK
"Qianhai Zhongjin’|*/** AMERARS
AEET e EELBIH 100,000,000
BRAR(TATEHRE]) */**
Fuging Zhongjin Nonferrous The PRC RMB100,000,000 100%  Trading of copper related
Metal Co., ld. h AR% producls
(Fuqing Zhongjin”)*/** 100,000,0007% BEEWRWER

BAPEEEEBHHERAH
(R E]) */*

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Confinved)

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:
[Continued)

RA %5 80 2% P E

AAREBER )

AR EAANER ()
ADFIMBRAOFENT : (#)

Chengxin Copper Co., lid The PRC RMB 10,000,000
["Chengxin'|* * olE ARE
RBREARAA(ZE)) 10,000,0007¢
Ganzhou Sanmei Copper Co., lid** The PRC Registered capital
BM=XREBRAR** hE of HK$12,000,000
EMER
12,000,000/ T
Mianyang Zhaofeng Copper The PRC Registered capital
Co., lid ['Zhaofeng"|** H of RMB10,000,000
wEKBHEERAR(KE])** AMERARS
10,000,0007¢
Hubei Rongsheng Copper The PRC RMB7,602,000
Co., lid ["Rongsheng"|* * hE AR%7,602,0007T
HLRREBRRBRAR
(TR&1)**

The English translation of the name is for reference only. The official names of
these companies are in Chinese.

* %

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst &
Young global network.

All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies
incorporated/established in their respective place of
incorporation/establishment.

During the year, the Group acquired 100% equity interests in
Zhaofeng, Rongsheng and Chengxin from independent third
parties. Further details of these acquisitions are included in note
33 to the financial statements.

z 100%  Processing of scrapped
copper for the
manufacturing of copper
related products

MI4EFREER
P PR O RE 4

= 100%  Investment holding
RERB

= 100%  Trading of copper related
products
EEMIEBER

= 100%  Processing of scrapped
copper for the
manufacturing of copper
related producs

MIAERARER
PR BE SR
* ABMEXEXEESH- REAANES

HW/HX

**  R#&Emst & Young, Hong Kong 8% 22 7k & &t Kl
EBHENPE S KB ARET -

PA_E PR Y B8 2 R) B 300 AT B 4 R L 11
IDAVE:E V= AVAR:E i 1D AV = Aviva
BREERAF] -

FR - ARERBLE=FKBKE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Internafional Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) {which
include all International Financial Reporting Standards,
International Accounting Standards ("1ASs”) and Interprefations)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”),
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for contingent consideration liabiliies, which
have been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presenfed in Renminbi ("RMB”) and all values are rounded fo the
nearesf thousand except when otherwise indicated.

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and ifs subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2018. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company.
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable refurns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee
[i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether it has power over an investee, including:

(o) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continved)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent
accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated
from the date on which the Group obtains confrol, and continue
fo be consolidated unfil the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income
are attributed fo the owners of the parent of the Group and fo the
non-controlling inferests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
fransactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full
on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership inferest of a subsidiary, without a loss of confrol,
is accounted for as an equily transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises |i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, {ii) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration received, |ii) the
fair value of any investment refained and (i) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group's share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or refained profits, as appropriate, on
the same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assefs or liabilities.
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RA 35 80 R B o

DISCLOSURES

Amendments to IFRS 2

Amendments to IFRS 4

IFRS @
IFRS 15

Amendments to IFRS 15

Amendments to IAS 40

IFRIC Interpretation 22

Annual Improvements

2014-2016 Cycle

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs for
the first time for the current year's financial statements.

Classification and Measurement of
Share-based Payment Transactions
Applying IFRS @ Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Financial Instruments

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

Clarifications to IFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers

Transfers of Investment Property

Foreign Currency Transactions and
Advance Consideration

Amendments to IFRS 1 and IAS 28

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Confinued)
Except for the amendments to IFRS 4, Amendments to IAS 40 and
Annual Improvements fo IFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle, which are not
relevant to the preparation of the Group's consolidated financial

statements, the nature and the impact of the new and revised
IFRSs are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 2 address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a cash-seffled
share-based payment transaction; the classification of a
share-based payment transaction with net setlement features
for withholding a certain amount in order to meet an
employee's tax obligation associated with the share-based
payment; and accounting where a modification fo the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment fransaction
changes its classification from cash-sefiled to equity-seftled.
The amendments clarify that the approach used to account
for vesting conditions when measuring equity-settled share-
based payments also applies to cash-seffled share-based
payments. The amendments infroduce an exception so that
a share-based payment fransaction with net share seftlement
features for withholding a cerfain amount in order o meet
the employee'’s tax obligation is classified in its entirety as
an equity-seftled share-based payment transaction when
cerfain conditions are met. Furthermore, the amendments
clarify that if the terms and conditions of a cash-seftled
share-based payment transaction are modified, with the
result that it becomes an equity-setiled share-based payment
transaction, the transaction is accounted for as an equity-
seffled transaction from the date of the modification. The
amendments have had no impact on the financial position
or performance of the Group as the Group does not have
any cash-setiled share-based payment fransactions and has
no share-based payment transactions with net setflement
features for withholding tax.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continved)

(b)

IFRS 9 chtncta/ /nsirumenfs replaces IAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, bringing
together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement, impairment
and hedge accounting.

The Group has recognised the transition adjustments against
the applicable opening balances in equity at 1 January
2018. Therefore, the comparative information was not
restated and continues fo be reported under IAS 39.

Classification and measurement

The following information sets out the impacts of adopting
IFRS @ on the statement of financial position, including the
effect of replacing IAS 39’s incurred credit loss calculations
with IFRS 9's expected credit losses ("ECLs").
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(Continued)

Classification and measurement (Continved)

A reconciliation between the carrying amounts of financial
assefs and liabilities under IAS 39 and the balances
reported under IFRS @ as af 1 January 2018 is as follows:

(b

AS 39
measurement
AR EstE
N5 2itE

Category
£Hl
Note
fiE
Financial asefs THEE
Tode and bils eceivotles B AEMGUARENEE i LéR'
Finonciol asses incloed ~~ FARfTHE i L&
in prepaymerts, EHEYGER
ofher recefvables R AR
ond ofher assels SHAE
Amounts dug from ossocicles ~ EREBE DA L&'
Amoun's due fom reloted ~ ERBBAFZA L&'
companies
Plecged deposts BERR &R
Coshand cosh equivalents B & RBE£5EER L&R'
Financil libiles LHAR
Tiode ond bils poyobles ~~ BAENFERENZE
Financioliabiles incuded in AR RERTEER
ohher poyables and accrels — EFEBEEBAR
Finonce leases poyobles ~ BAREIRHE
erestbearing bonkond -~ FFBRITREMIER
olher borowings
Amoun's due fo ossocicles  FERBHEAFISUA
liailly component of TaREsNEERA
converfble bonds

! L&R: loans and receivables

2 AC: Financial assets or financial liabilities at amortised cost

Note:

Amount
£
RMB'000

ARBTT

1,091,198
639,207

6,221
10

48,237
109,595

1,894,468

213,658
53792

13,142
683,091

4,638
548,607

1,516,928

(i) The gross carrying amounts of the frade and bills receivables and
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
assefs under the column “IAS 39 measurement — Amount” represent the

amounts before the measurement of EClLs.

M I5H =M

22 EXBEREEENEE @)

b) (&)
DREE (F)
B g ERE 0RIB T ME
ENBEREER20184 14
| BAR BB BB 75 3R &5 RIE 95
ERANERZHBRIDT

IFRS 9
measurement
AREEREEN
H0%2itE

Category
Bl

Re-
clossification ECL
Efi7R RNEEFR
RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETR

Other

-
RMB'000
ARETT

Amount
£5
RMB'000
ARETT

1,002,179
639,07

(89,019)

6,221
10

48,297
109,395

(89,019) 1,805,249

213,638
5379

13,142
683,091

4638
548,607

1,516,928

) &R : BB
D REERAIENEREENS
A=K

FiIEE

(i) (Bt ERFE 308 — S5
— T E SRR TR R ERER R
AT IR - E A UGRIA R B A
BENSREAENREERELTE
BHEEEBRENEHE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continved)

2.2 S BERRINENE B 4

i

Financial assets included in FTATERIFIE « HAt
prepayments,other receivables  FEURFRIE Kk H Ath & B
and other assefs HEREE

Amounts due from JE Ui Bt i ) ) K% R
associates and related parties  FIE

o]  (Continued) b) (#&)
Impairment B
The following table reconciles the aggregate opening TREHBEBEE T ERIZE 39
impairment allowances under IAS 39 to the ECL allowances SETE 2 VR ER AR ER
under IFRS 9. BERSBREENEORTHE
ZHEREEBRREZHE -
Impairment

allowances ECL allowances

under under

IAS 39 at IFRS @ ot

31 December 1 January

2017 Re-measurement 2018

R 3 75

REHR S WEERE Q5%

HERIIZE 3955 20184

R 2017 & 1A1E®

2 ARSHE: HHEE

YR E R B E EiRE R

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTTT ARETT ARETT

Trade and bills receivables B 5 e i oE I RN E i 109,927 89,019 198,946
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 S BERRBEENS S (2)
DISCLOSURES (Continued)
(b)  (Continued) b) (&)
Impacts on interests in associates, revaluation reserve U RBENT R B
and accumulated losses BERENSEpE e
The impacts of transition to IFRS @ on inferests in associates, EEE R RS R B oY
revaluation reserve and accumulated losses are as follows: WRBA N T XS BEEEE

RRFBERNZEWT

Interests in
associates,
revaluation
reserve and

accumulated
losses

N =N
K
SRR
REtE R
RMB'0O00
ARETT
Interests in associates REE QT2 ER
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39 IRIZEBIBR 25T 4R 39 5% 166,810
M2017F 12 A31 BRY &
Remeasurement of equity investments designated B ENERIEBR S5 %R 9,600
at fair value through other comprehensive income 28 39 §R¥Zpk At EHIETE
previously measured at cost under IAS 39 REQNTHE AR M E RS
R IR &
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 RIEB R B 1S 3R 5 RS O 57 7T 4]
20184 1 A1 Ba#&
Revaluation reserve EhRHE
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39  RIBERE @ :14R5 395 =
M2017 12 A 31 BRY &
Remeasurement of equity investment designated B8 AT REBER &5 2R 9,600
at fair value through other comprehensive income 28 39 SRz At 2AET A
previously measured at cost under IAS 39 N INCIL L S
included in interests in associates BAFERARMEEKED
AR E
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS @ 5 15 B R B 75 s 5 XE B 55 O 5% 9,600
M2018F 1 A1 A&
Accumulated losses RIER
Balance as at 31 December 2017 under IAS 39  IRIZEBIBR @ 5T4ERI S 39 5% Gl
M2017% 12 A 31 Bay#asr
Recognition of expected credit losses for trade R IR B PR B 75 5 22 BI 28 O 5% 89,019
and bills receivables under IFRS @ ERE 5 E W EIE K E W ER
MIEHEEER
Deferred fax for expected credit losses for trade IRIR BB 1 75 5 22 R 32 O 5 (5,736)
and bills receivables under IFRS @ B 5 WA M ERR IR
TR EEERELERE
Balance as at 1 January 2018 under IFRS 9 AR5 B PR B FS R 2 A 3B O 5% 5% 300

M2018% 1 A 1 HEVEER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(c)

IFRS 15 and its amendments replace IAS 11 Consiruction
Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related inferprefations and
it applies, with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising
from contracts with customers. IFRS 15 establishes a new
fivestep model to account for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised af an
amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity
expects to be entifled in exchange for transferring goods or
services to a customer. The principles in IFRS 15 provide a
more structured approach for measuring and recognising
revenue. The sfandard also infroduces extensive qualitative
and quantitative disclosure requirements, including
disaggregation of total revenue, information about
performance obligations, changes in contract asset and
liability account balances between periods and key
judgements and estimates.

The Group has adopted IFRS 15 using the modified
refrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the
standard can be applied either to all contracts at the date
of initial application or only to contracts that are not
completed at this date. The Group has elected to apply the
standard fo contracts that are not completed as af 1 January

2018.

The cumulative effect of the initial application of IFRS 15, if
any, was recognised as an adjustment to the opening
balance of accumulated losses as at 1 January 2018.
Therefore, the comparative information was not restated
and continues to be reported under IAS 11, IAS 18 and
relafed interpretations.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continved)

(c)

(Continued)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial
1 January 2018 as a

statement line item was affected as at
result of the adoption of IFRS 15:

2.2 EFTHR

() (#&)
R20184F 1 A1 B ER#A BB
e

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

EREME B

EERE 15 M E S ER
REBXTENSREAIOT :
Increase,/
(decrease)
&,/ Crd)
Note RMB$'000

B &t ARETT

Liabilities =Fi

Receipts in advance* AU RIE * (i) (3,780
Contract liabilities* BHEE" (i) 3,780
Total liabilities BEBERE =

*

The balances are included in other payables and accruals, on the face

of the consolidated statement of financial position.

Note:

(i

Consideration received from customers in advance

Before the adoption of IFRS 15, the Group recognised consideration

received from cusfomers in advance as receipt in advance included in

other payables. Under IFRS 15, the amount is classified as contract

liabilities included in other payables.

Therefore, upon adoption of IFRS 15, the Group reclassified

RMB3,780,000 from receipts in advance to confract liabiliies as at 1

January 2018 in relation to the consideration received from cusfomers in

advance as at 1 January 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, RMB30,578,000 classified as “receipt in

advance” under IAS 18 was now classified as “contract liabilities” due to

adoption of IFRS 15.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(d]

IFRIC Interpretation 22 provides guidance on how fo
determine the date of the fransaction when applying I1AS 21
fo the situation where an entfity receives or pays advance
consideration in a foreign currency and recognises a non-
monetary asset or liability. The interprefation clarifies that
the date of the transaction for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income (or part of if] is the date on which
an entity initially recognises the non-monetary asset (such as
a prepayment) or non-monetary liability (such as deferred
income) arising from the payment or receipt of the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in
advance of recognising the related item, the entity must
determine the transaction date for each payment or receipt
of the advance consideration. The inferprefation has had no
impact on the Group's financial statements as the Group's
accounting policy for the determination of the exchange
rate applied for initial recognition of non-monetary assets or
non-monefary liabilities is consistent with the guidance
provided in the interprefation.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
M HTRME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B it BIZ S} + AN E#SI1E)
2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3 B 7818 & R £ ¥ 2 B BR BT i%
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS &= 2R
The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, REBEWARERATEBMHERREZ
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial LSRR B T R S 5T B RR Bt
statements. BmELRER o
Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business? BpR B R 2 B FHEZR?
KL va
Amendments fo IFRS @ Prepayment Features with Negative BIFR A 5 % 2B RIEGERNFEE
Compensation' FOKERT
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets B I s S o 2 REZHEHE
and IAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its 10 RERE S5 AAlE e £ E
Associate or Joint Venture® ZRIE28R (2011 ) BEHEL I
ZIB7]
IFRS 16 leases' BRI TR s 22 B HE'
F16%
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BRI s i o 2 REERHAT
F175%
Amendments o IAS 1 Definition of Material? BResElE 1Rk EEMER®
and IAS 8 B et ERIZE 8%
BT
Amendments to IAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Rt STEISIE »
Settlement’ E19R BRI FEHEE
Amendments fo IAS 28 Llong-term Interests in Associates and Gill S E il REERFARAEE
Joint Ventures' F28HZEF] PRz RBER
IFRIC Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EEMBRELRRE AEHEREL
Treatments! FEe —RBENR THEEHM
Annual Improvements Amendments to IFRS 3, IFRS 201522017 F BB B 75 SR 2 2 Bl
2015-2017 Cycle 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23! B2 FRN# E 35 - BEIRH%
HERE 5
Gl
F12RRERE
SEERE 235
]!
J Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 i R2019F 1 A1 Bk kRBc FREARE
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 z M2020F 1 A1 Bk 2 & Fth < FEMEE
5
g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 R2021F1 A1 Bk RBz FREBARE
38
4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 M REE R FI AR A H - MR ERAR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that for an
infegrated sef of activities and assets o be considered a business,
it must include, at a minimum, an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to creafe output.
A business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed fo create outputs. The amendments remove the
assessment of whether market participants are capable of
acquiring the business and contfinue fo produce outputs. Instead,
the focus is on whether acquired inputs and acquired subsfantive
processes fogether significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs. The amendments have also narrowed the definition of
outputs to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance fo assess whether
an acquired process is substantive and infroduce an optional fair
value concentration test to permit a simplified assessment of
whether an acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from
1 January 2020.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments
require a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or
confribution of assefs between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction involving
assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are fo be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments fo IFRS 10 and IAS 28 (201 1) was removed by the
IASB in January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will
be determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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IFRS 16 replaces IAS 17 leases, IFRIC Interpretation 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a lease, SIC
Interpretation 15 Operating leases — Incentives and SIC
Interpretation 27 FEvaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the legal Form of a lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise assets and
liabilities for most leases. The standard includes two elective
recognition exemptions for lessees — leases of low-value assets
and shortterm leases. At the commencement date of a lease, a
lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments i.e., the
lease liability) and an asset representing the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term [i.e., the rightofuse assef).
The right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless the
rightofuse asset meets the definition of investment property in IAS
40, or relates to a class of property, plant and equipment fo
which the revaluation model is applied. The lease liability is
subsequently increased fo reflect the inferest on the lease liability
and reduced for the lease payments. Lessees will be required to
separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability
and the depreciation expense on the rightofuse asset. lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as change in the lease term
and change in future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate used fo determine those payments. Lessees will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease
liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset. Lessor
accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from the
accounting under IAS 17. lessors will continue fo classify all
leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and
distinguish between operating leases and finance leases. IFRS 16
requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures
than under IAS 17. lessees can choose to apply the standard
using either a full retrospective or a mod|f|ed refrospective
approach. The Group will adopt IFRS 16 from 1 January 2019.
The Group plans to adopt the transitional provisions in IFRS 16 to
recognise the cumulative effect of initial adoption as an
adjustment to the opening balance of accumulated losses at 1
January 2019 and will not restate the comparatives. In addition,
the Group plans to apply the new requirements to contracts that
were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 and
measure the lease liability af the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted using the Group's incremental
borrowing rate at the date of initial application. The rightofuse
asset will be measured at the amount of the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating fo the lease recognised in the statement of
financial position immediately before the date of initial
application. The Group plans to use the exemptions allowed by
the standard on lease contracts whose lease terms end within 12
months as of the date of initial application.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

As disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements,
at 31 December 2018, the Group had future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating leases in aggregate of
approximately RMB5,426,000. Upon adoption of IFRS 16,
certain amounts included therein may need fo be recognised as
new rightofuse assefs and lease liabilities. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of IFRS 16. Further analysis will be needed
to determine the amount of new right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities to be recognised, including, but not limited to,
incremental borrowing rate o be applied for different leases.

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 provide a new definition of
material. The new definition states that information is material if
omifting, missfating or obscuring it could reasonably be expected
fo influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects fo adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected fo have any significant
impact on the Group's financial stafements.

Amendments to IAS 28 clarify that the scope exclusion of IFRS @
only includes interests in an associate or joinf venture fo which the
equity method is applied and does not include longferm interests
that in substance form part of the net investment in the associate
or joint venture, to which the equity method has not been applied.
Therefore, an entity applies IFRS 9, rather than IAS 28, including
the impairment requirements under IFRS @, in accounting for such
longferm interests. IAS 28 is then applied to the net investment,
which includes the long-term interests, only in the context of
recognising losses of an associate or joint venture and impairment
of the net investment in the associate or joint venture. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments on 1 January 2019 and will
assess its business model for such long-term interests based on the
facts and circumstances that exist on 1 January 2019 using the
transitional requirements in the amendments. The Group also
intfends to apply the relief from restating comparative information
for prior periods upon adoption of the amendments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)
IFRIC Inferpretation 23 addresses the accounting for income taxes
(current and deferred) when tax treatments involve uncertainty that
affects the application of 1AS 12 (often referred to as “uncertain
fax positions”). The interpretation does not apply to taxes or levies
outside the scope of IAS 12, nor does it specifically include
requirements relating fo interest and penalties associated with
uncerfain tax freatments. The interprefation specifically addresses
(i) whether an enfity considers uncertain tax freafments separately;
(ii) the assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
freatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity defermines
taxable profits or fax losses, tax bases, unused fax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv)] how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation is fo be
applied refrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect of
application as an adjustment fo the opening equity at the date of
initial application, without the restatement of comparative
information. The Group expects to adopt the interprefation from 1
January 2019. The inferpretfation is not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long ferm
inferest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights
and over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence.
Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control
or joint control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position af the Group's share
of net assefs under the equity method of accounting, less any
impairment losses.

The Group's share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated other
comprehensive income, respectively. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associates,
the Group recognises ifs share of any changes, when applicable,
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in associates (Co
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from transactions between
the Group and ifs associafes are eliminated fo the extent of the
Group's investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates is included as
part of the Group's investments in associates.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration fransferred is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date
fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree
that are present ownership interests and entfitle their holders o a
proportionate share of nef assets in the event of liquidation at fair
value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable
net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assefs and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the confractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date.
This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
confracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value
and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration fo be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent seftlement is accounted for within

equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continved)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group's
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the
net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment,
recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group
performs its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated fo each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups
of cash-generating unifs, that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, irrespective of whether other assets
or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is defermined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. VWhere the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based
on the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion
of the cash-generating unit refained.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its derivative financial instruments and
contingent consideration liabilities af fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid fo fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction fo sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market
for the asset or liability. The principal or the most advantageous
markef must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of an
assef or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markef
parficipants would use when pricing the asset or liability,
assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest.

A fair value measurement of a nonfinancial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in ifs highest and best use or by selling
it fo another market participant that would use the asset in ifs
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continuved)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in acfive markets
for identical assets or liabilities

level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly

level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
fransfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing cafegorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant fo the fair value measurement as a whole| af the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment festing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
financial assets and deferred tax assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An assef's recoverable amount is the higher
of the assef’s or cash-generating unit's value in use and its fair
value less costs of disposal, and is defermined for an individual
assef, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are
largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets,
in which case the recoverable amount is defermined for the cash-
generating unit fo which the assef belongs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted fo their present
value using a prefax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific fo
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as fo
whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If
such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carmying amount that would
have been defermined (nef of any depreciation/amortisation) had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited fo the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises, unless the asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the relevant
accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

() the parly is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i)  one enfity is an associate or joint venture of the other
enfity [or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary
of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same

third party;

[iv] one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other enfity is an associate of the third entity;

(v]  the entity is a postemployment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related fo the Group;

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

(viij a person identified in (a)li) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entfity);

and

(viii) the enfity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services fo
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

iy

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly
affributable costs of bringing the asset to its working condition
and location for its infended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put info operation, such as repairs and mainfenance,
is normally charged fo the statement of profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria
are safisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required fo
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parfs as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straightline basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment fo its residual
value over ifs estimated useful lives as follows:

Buildings The shorter of the unexpired term of
lease and their estimated useful lives,

being no more than 20 years
affer the date of completion
510 10 years

3 to 10 years

4 1o 10 years

Plant and machinery
Furniture fittings and equipment
Motor vehicles
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (Continued
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, af least at
each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when
no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal.
Any gain or loss on disposal or refirement recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction,
which is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is nof
depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when complefed and
ready for use.

Leases

leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal fitle, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum lease payments and recorded together with
the obligation, excluding the interest element, to reflect the
purchase and financing. Assets held under capitalised finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of such leases are
charged fo the statement of profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rafe of charge over the lease ferms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (c
Leases (Con
Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

J)
d)

leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership
of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for as operating
leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets leased by the
Group under operating leases are included in non-current assefs,
and rentals receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the statement of profit or loss on the straightline basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals payable
under operating leases net of any incentives received from the
lessor are charged to the statement of profit or loss on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straightline
basis over the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assefs at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Group’s business model for managing them. With the
exception of frade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial asset not af
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not confain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient are
measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition
(applicable from 1 January 2018)" below.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income,
it needs to give rise fo cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and inferest [“SPPI") on the principal amount outstanding.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers
fo how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash
flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will
result from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial
assets, or both.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assetfs that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
imevocably its equity investments as equity invesiments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is
determined on an instrumentby-instrument basis.

Cains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to
the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of
the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are
recorded in other comprehensive income. Equity investments
designated af fair value through other comprehensive income are
not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continved)

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)
The Group measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of
the following conditions are met:

o The financial asset is held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows.

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dafes to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective inferest method and are subject to impairment.
Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assefs
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial
assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for
the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term.
Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives, are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of
the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments fo be classified at amortised cost or at fair value
through other comprehensive income, as described above, debt
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss
on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position af fair value with net changes
in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continved)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial assefs at
fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment
has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid confract, with a financial
liability or non-financial host, is separated from the host and
accounted for as a separate derivative if the economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to the host; a
separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded
derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the
hybrid confract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the ferms
of the confract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to
be classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under I1AS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables
and availablefor-sale financial investments, or as derivatives
designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. VWhen financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
affributable to the acquisition of the financial assets, except in the
case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or
loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the frade date, that is, the date that the Group
commits fo purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the markefplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial
assets held for frading and financial assefs designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the
purpose of sale in the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments as

defined by IAS 39.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (policies under IAS
39 applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in
the statement of financial position af fair value with net changes
in fair value presented as other income, gain/[loss), net in the
statement of profit or loss. These net fair value changes do not
include any dividends or inferest earned on these financial assets,
which are recognised in accordance with the policies set out for
"Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)"
below.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss are designated at the date of initial
recognition and only if the criteria in IAS 39 are safisfied.

Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted for as
separafe derivatives and recorded at fair value if their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host
contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. These
embedded derivatives are measured af fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the ferms
of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out
of the fair value through profit or loss category.

Loans and receivables

loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Affer initial measurement, such assets are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective inferest rate method
less any allowance for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by faking info account any discount or premium on acquisition
and includes fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective
inferest rate. The effective inferest rate amortisation is included in
other income, gain/(loss), net in the statement of profit or loss.
The loss arising from impairment is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and policies under IAS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018)

A financial assef (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset
or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statfement of financial position) when:

e the rights fo receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay fo a third
party under a “passthrough” arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, or (b] the Group has neither fransferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has enfered into a passthrough arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. VWhen it has neither transferred
nor refained subsfantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
fransferred control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated
liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has refained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018)

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt
instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the confractual cash flows due
in accordance with the confract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects fo receive, discounted at an approximation of the
original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral fo the contractual ferms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two sfages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since inifial
recognition, ECls are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the
default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. VWhen making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as af the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supporfable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 1 year past due. However, in cerfain cases, the
Group may also consider a financial asset fo be in default when
infernal or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
fo receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking
info account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assefs at amortised cost are subject fo impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for frade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as defailed below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 BEAEHBEME#)

g

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018) (Continved)

General approach (Continved)

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since inifial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is measured at an
amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition but
that are not creditimpaired financial assets and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assetfs that are creditimpaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated creditimpaired) and for which the loss
allowance is measured af an amount equal to
lifefime ECls

Simplified approach

For frade receivables that do not confain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group has established
a provision matrix that is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

TRMEERE(BRYBREEAS
95 IH N EH2018F1 A1 HEBBERAMN
BER) (&)

—RIEE)

F—BE — SRIABVHBRERN
RSB R R ok R E
m- BEEBERERE
RI12E R EEBEEE
b=

EFREER — SmIABVIRERE
EERBBZEEM B
WIEERENSHE
ZE B HEEBERER
REEHEEER

F_BER — RBESEHEERED
TREE(ELIFBE
HREEERE) B
EiEREESENEHE
HEEER

Rl eapz=

HRTEEERBEKD HE 5 RYGK
B AKERBEREEZF - T8
REARER D NP ERER - A%E
REBEIDEETRREEHRAE -
REBEBCTE  AEEBTSEREER
e ERERE A HREEHE
HEEBREABEREE AREER
BHELEEERERETRERRE
WREEHAREEREFBHATEE
A= RE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under 1AS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assefs is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset have
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assefs that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty,
default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the
probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial
reorganisation and observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as
changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first
assesses whether impairment exists individually for financial assets
that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets
that are not individually significant. If the Group determines that
no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the
asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is, or continues fo be, recognised are nof
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses
that have not yet been incurred). The present value of the
estimated future cash flows is discounted af the financial assef's
original effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (policies under 1AS 39
applicable before 1 January 2018) (Continued)

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (Continued)

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an
allowance account and the loss is recognised in the statfement of
profit or loss. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount using the rafe of interest used fo
discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. Lloans and receivables together with any
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic
prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been realised or
has been transferred to the Group.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment
loss increases or decreases because of an event occurring affer
the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery
is credited fo the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018)

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Al financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
affributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and bills payables,
note payable, other payables and accruals, finance leases
payables, inferestbearing bank and other borrowings, amounts
due to associates, amount due to a related party, liability
component of convertible bonds and contingent consideration
liabilities.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9 applicable from 1
January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable before 1 January
2018) (Continued)

Loans and borrowings

After inifial recognition, inferest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the effective inferest
rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by faking info account any discount
or premium on acquisiion and fees or costs that are an integral
part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate
amortisation is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Convertible bonds

The component of convertible bonds that exhibits characterisfics
of a liability is recognised as a liability in the statement of
financial position, net of transaction costs. On issuance of
convertible bonds, the fair value of the liability component is
determined using a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond; and this amount is carried as a long term liability on the
amortised cost basis until exftinguished on conversion or
redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is allocated to the
conversion option that is recognised and included in shareholders’
equity, net of transaction costs. The carrying amount of the
conversion option is not remeasured in subsequent years.
Transaction costs are apportioned between the liability and equity
components of the convertible bonds based on the allocation of
proceeds to the liability and equity components when the
instruments are first recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHBRBE @)

POLICIES (Continved)

Derecognition of financial liabilities (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the ferms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments (policies under IFRS 9
applicable from 1 January 2018 and IAS 39 applicable
before 1 January 2018)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there is
a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an infention fo settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assefs and sefile the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and, in
the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Nef realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion and
disposal.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and on hand,
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible info known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of
generally within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an infegral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
on hand, including ferm deposits, and assefs similar in nature fo
cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Consideration shares, options and warrants

Consideration shares, options or warrants issued in exchange for
goods or services are measured af the fair values of the goods or
service received, unless that fair value cannot be reliably
measured, in which case the goods or services received are
measured by reference to the fair value of the consideration
shares, options or warrants granted. The fair values of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses when the Group
obtains the goods or when the counterparties render services
unless the goods or services qualify for recognition as assets, with
a corresponding increase in equity (either in consideration share
reserve, share-based payment reserve or warrant reserve
respectively). The equity amount is recognised in aforementioned
reserve respectively until consideration shares are allotted, or
opfions or warrants are exercised (in such case they are included
in the amount recognised in share capital and share premium for
the shares issued), or the options and warrants expire (in such
case they are released direcily to accumulated losses).
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBERBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
seffle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required fo seffle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value
amount arising from the passage of time is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.

A contingent liability recognised in a business combination is
initially measured at its fair value. Subsequently, it is measured at
the higher of (i) the amount that would be recognised in
accordance with the general guidance for provisions above; and
(i) the amount inifially recognised less, when appropriate,
cumulative amortisation recognised in accordance with the
guidance for revenue recognition.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred fax. Income tax
relafing fo items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid fo the faxation authorifies,
based on fax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, faking
info consideration interprefations and practices prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (co
Income tax (Contin
Deferred fox liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

ved)

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of faxable tfemporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
confrolled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assefs are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised fo the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused fax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax
assefs are only recognised fo the extent that it is probable
that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

RA %5 80 2% P E

2.4 BEABHBEHE &)

FRi&®L (&)
BB ERAERRNERZRET
VARERR - 1

s MEEHBABERNEXERR
B 7 (UHFEHEH  BRXR
FRIAZESH BN TR ER
srptm N REER) 2 BER B ER
Bl

e FHNRMBARKEERRIKRE
ZIERMEREZR  MAl 25T
FEBR o BOREREBELERERR
AITE R ARRAIGE N SREMERID o

BEERIREEAA ARG R Z5E
REVABRIAR R M ARE AR IARIE 2 45
BT DARER - ARTBER A LB A AT AR
R ER - REAHIAE R SRE A
THERZ BN ERTGE AN AR - T
AEFRI -

s FBAMBERERZBIERR
BERNIAHER AR 5 (LI
EBAH ARXSBIFES
At M IR 828 B AR B B Sk s
BIZEERBE R

e FABRMBARNBERRKRE
ZAHBEREZR  BEREBEER
EER N A F8 R K 2K A] gE # Ol
H i =8 M AT REA AR T s F A
BRERZRIEN TR

Annual Report 2018 & —F— \F4FHf
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXEHTBEME 2

POLICIES (C )
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount oI deferred tax assefs is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed af the end of
each reporting period and are recognised fo the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured af the tax rates
that are expected to apply fo the period when the assef is
realised or the liability is seffled, based on tax rafes (and tax
laws| that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offsef if and
only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current
fax assefs and current fax liabilities and the deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities which intend either to seftle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
seffle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Govemnment grants are recognised at their fair value where there
is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all
attaching conditions will be complied with. When the grant
relates to an expense item, if is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, which it is
infended fo compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to o
deferred income account and is released to the statement of profit
or loss over the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments or deducted from the carrying amount of the
asset and released fo the sfatement of profit or loss by way of a
reduced depreciation charge.

Where the Group receives grants of non-monetary assefs, the
grants are recorded at the fair value of the non-monetary assets
and released fo the statement of profit or loss over the expected
useful lives of the relevant assets by equal annual insfalments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from confracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entifled in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and consfrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty with
the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the custfomer a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one vear,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount
receivable, discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between the Group
and the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the Group a
significant financial benefit for more than one year, revenue
recognised under the confract includes the inferest expense
accreted on the contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between the payment
by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or
services is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted
for the effects of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (applicable from 1 January 2018)

(Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(a) Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised at the point in
time when control of the asset is transferred to the customer,
generally on delivery of the goods. Revenue excludes value
added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any
frade discounts.

Revenue recognition (applicable before 1 January 2018)
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) from the sale of goods, revenue is recognised when the
customer has accepted the goods and the related risks and
rewards of ownership. Revenue excludes value added tax
or other sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade
discounts.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life
of the financial instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
fo the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose of
providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
confribute fo the success of the Group’s operations. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the form
of equity-sefiled share option expense, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments (“equity-seftled
transactions”).

The cost of equity-sefiled transactions with employees for grants
after 28 January 2014 is measured by reference to the fair value
at the date at which they are granted. The fair value is
determined by an external valuer using a binomial model, further
details of which are given in note 31 fo the financial statements.

The cost of equity-seffled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in
equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for
equity-seffled transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the
statement of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in
the cumulative expense recognised as af the beginning and end
of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken info
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards,
but the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are
reflected within the grant date fair value. Any other conditions
attached to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be nonwesting conditions. Non-
vesting conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are
also service and/or performance conditions.

24 EXRSHBRBE#

IR G RERBA
ARRIREBRESE - §HERARER
SMERHRE S EE - ASEREYH
ARANER - ARENREE (BRE
) DARE 21 45 B RO B AR 5 S U MR
HE - B ESRERGIERRETAD
RE([ABEEENRF]) -

R2014F1 A28 AR L RS E
TTABRERENRZHRA - V2 ER
HER QA TERFE - A FEHIMNEEE
e —HARRGE - FERERM
BBwRMIEESD -

AR i B X2 5 OB AN [R) M 25 2 MR FE
BN R R, RIS AT Z R EARR 7
BERMASTER REREHRE
EREBAURLBEEE X ZHERN
Rt R EFE YRR IEE LA E
BH SR EBARET ABENORERS
it RE—MMERERMBHEIAZ
SREBENZ RS kA RE DR
Z BFTHAXHES o

REERBPEH B8z X FERITE
At R BRAE M IR ISR IR - MEER IR
2 Al et AT R AR E Y R
SRBZETAMARERERE 2
— 8D e MBERBIEMERRRE L B H]
ZAFE - SEEYRE MY 3 5 K AERE AR
BREKZEEMBIEN - WA RIER
BRI - FFERB IR R 2 A FER
PR ESAREMRIR T - BRIEE
MBERB K, HRBE M -

Annual Report 2018 © —ZF— \FF R m




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXSHBEBE#)

POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments (Continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
safisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-seffled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, i the original terms of the award are met. In addition,
an expense is recognised for any modification that increases the
tofal fair value of the equity-setled share option expense, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured af the date of
modification.

Where an equity-seffled award is cancelled, it is freated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not mef. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated
as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of eamings per share.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”] under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for all of its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the sfatement
of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contfributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's certain subsidiaries which operates
in Mainland China are required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
These subsidiaries is required fo contribute certain percentage of
its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged fo the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly affributable fo the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assefs, i.e., assets that necessarily take
a substantial period of time fo get ready for their infended use or
sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are
substantially ready for their infended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assefs is
deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred. Borrowing costfs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

These financial statements are presented in RMB, while the
Company'’s functional currency is Hong Kong dollars. Each entity
in the Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are measured
using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entfifies in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of
the fransactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency rafes of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on seftlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rafes af
the dates of the initial fransactions. Non-monetary ifems measured
at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rafes at the date when the fair value was measured.
The gain or loss arising on translation of a non-monetary item
measured at fair value is freated in line with the recognition of the
gain or loss on change in fair value of the item [i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial fransaction is the date on which
the Group initially recognises the non-monetfary asset or non-
monetary liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
are currencies other than RMB. As at the end of the reporting
period, the assets and liabilities of these entities are translated
info RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
franslafed info RMB at the weighted average exchange rates for
the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued

Foreign currencies (Confinu
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit

ed)

or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation
and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on acquisition are freated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the closing
rate.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment fo the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving esfimations, which have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Income tax

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax freatment of certain fransactions. Management carefully
evaluates fax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of these transactions is
reconsidered periodically by taking into account all changes in
tax legislations. Deferred tax assefs are recognised for deductible
temporary differences. As deferred tax assets can only be
recognised fo the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available, management's judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management's
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred tax
assets, if any, are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

Withholding taxes arising from the distribution of dividends

In estimating the withholding taxes on dividends expected to be
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008, the directors
have made an assessment based on factors including future
profitability, the dividend policy and the level of capital and working
capifal required for the Group's operations in the foreseeable future.
No deferred tax liabiliies in respect of undistributed profits have
been recognised as at 31 December 2018 (2017: nil) as the
Company controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been defermined that it is not probable that these profits will be
distributed in the foreseeable future.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below.

Fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities for business
combination and impairment assessment on goodwill in
relation to the acquisition of subsidiaries

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
completed the acquisition of several groups as disclosed in note
33 ["Acquisitions”) to the financial statements. The Acquisitions
have been accounted for using the acquisition method.
Determination of fair values of identifiable assets and liabilities
and contingent consideration payables require judgements and
estimations, based on the valuation performed by an independent
professional valuer engaged by the Group. Goodwill of
RMB625,018,000 was recognised from the Acquisitions. The
goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating unit ("CGU") of the
recycled copper products (as defined in nofe 4).

Defermining whether goodwill is impaired requires an estimation
of value in use of the CGU to which goodwill has been
allocated. The value in use calculation requires the Group fo
estimate the future cash flows expected to arise from the CGU,
with key assumptions as set out in note 16 fo the financial
statements, and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value. Where the actual future cash flows are less than
expected, or change in facts and circumstances which results in
downward revision of future cash flows, a material impairment
loss may arise.

Defails of the accounting of business combinations and goodwill
impairment assessment are disclosed in notes 33 and 16 to the
financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
other receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix fo calculate ECLs for trade and
other receivables. The provision rates are based on days past
due for groupings of various customer segments that have similar
loss patterns i.e., by customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group's historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix fo
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions [i.e.,
gross domestic products, industrial producer price index and
purchasing managers’ index| are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults, the
historical default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the
historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the
forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECls is sensifive fo changes in
circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of customer’s actual
default in the future. An impairment analysis of other receivables
including advance payment to suppliers is performed at each
reporting date. Expected credit losses are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group. The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The information about the ECLs on the Group's trade and bills
receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes 19 and
20 fo the financial statements, respectively.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised info business
units based on their products and services and has four reportable
operating segments as follows:

(a) Recycled copper products segment: use of scrap copper
and electrolytic copper for the manufacturing and trading of
recycled copper products, and trading of electrolytic copper
and nickel products;

(b) Power fransmission and distribution cables segment:
manufacturing and sales of power transmission and
distribution cables;

(c) Communication cables segment: manufacturing and sales
of communication cables; and

(d)  Aluminium products segment: sales of aluminium products.

(@) Segment results

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separatfely for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before
tax. The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently
with the Group's profit before tax except that cerfain interest
income, corporate and other unallocated expenses, certain
finance costs as well as share of profits of associates are
excluded from such measurement.

A measurement of segment assets and liabilities is not
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management and accordingly, no segment assets or
liabilities information is presented.

Intersegment sales and fransfers are transacted with

reference fo the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4, BEPHER (2
(@) Segment results (Continued) () 2EBEEE)

2018
20185

Sales fo extemal customers RNPRFETHE

Infersegment scles D EEHE

Reconciliation: B

Elimination of infersegment sales HHHHEHE

Revenue W

Segment results DHEE

Inferest income MEBA

Corporate and oter unallocated ERREMADERR
expenses

Finance cosfs f ?%ﬁjw

Share of profits of associates L Nl

Profit before fox AR

Other segment information At HEEn

Depreciation and amorisafion TELEH

VAT refunds, government grants and

subsidlies
Reversal of provision for doubiful
debts, net

RERER  RERH
Rg
RERERDFE

Recycled

copper
products
BLRER
RMB'000
ARET T

20,574,315
367,579

20,941,894

280,500
VX]

(27,684)

31,366
468,302

(64,054)

Power
transmission
and distribution
cables
ZrRES
RMB'000
ARETT

27,315
515

27,830

15

(2,264)

8,321
12,835

(4,099)

Communication
cables
RMB'000
ARETR

40,935
10,864

51,799

3,058
12,471

(1,452)

Annual Report 2018

Total

@it
RMB'000
ARETR

20,642,565
378,958

21,021,523

(378,958)
20,642,565

296,152

366
(204,625)

(35,153)
8,238

64,978

42,745
493,608

(69,605)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

(@) Segment results (Continued)

2017
2017 %
Power
Recycled  transmission
copper  and distribution - Communication Aluminium
products cables cables producs Tolal
BAGER “IES BAEE mEM @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR R s AR ARETR

Sales to external customers MNP FHITHE 13,693,913 13,489 34,460 - 13,741,862
Infersegment sales PHREEE 269 565 260 930 - 270,755
13,963,478 13,749 35,390 = A2l
Reconciliation: %
Elimination of infersegment sales %1354 Ef & (270,755)
Revenue e 13,741,862
Segment results %S 408,045 47 508 1,109 - 456,662
Interest income =L ON 17,319 5 24 - 17,585
Corporate and other unallocated % &M% 2 B %
expenses (153,398)
Finance costs BBRA 66,845 (707) (1,268 = (68,820)
Share of profits of associates  FEREEE A A F 4375
Profit before fax A 256,404
Other segment information 1S
Depreciation and amorfisation 47 K 8 26,074 8,306 3,504 86 37,970
VAT refunds, goverment grants  2ERRT  BUSHE
and subsidies Rfagh 279,064 17,490 6,940 - 303,494
Reversal of provision for doubiiul REFE & EIFE
debs, net (83,390) (44,418) 351 - (127,457
(b) Geographic information (b) thEE R
The Group carried out ifs business operations in the PRC, AEERPELEER - At
thus no separate geographical segment analysis based on B2V REERPWEMIBREMAE
the location of assets and the revenue and profit or loss are W E DB MR D FE AT -
presenfed.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 4.

REDHER (&)

(c) Information about major customers ) EBREXTEEFMER
Revenue from each of the major customers, which HAREEKE 0% A EHIRE
confributed 10% or more of the Group's revenue, is sef out TEZEHIAT :
below:
2017
2017 4
RMB’'000
PN
Recycled copper product segment BAREMD
Customer A BEA 4,613,764
Customer B ZFEB 1,842,181
6,455,945
5. REVENUE 5. EXEH

Revenue from contracts with customers are mainly derived from
manufacturing and sales of copper and related products in the
PRC, of which the revenue was recognised af a point in time
when goods were transferred.

The amount of each significant category of revenue is as follows:

%:}EE\%WWKEKEEEEPIEE&%
ERMEEER  ERENEERER
B RO B I B FERR ©

BEBREREXBASHMAT

A0

2017 4

RMB'000

ARETT

Revenue from frading of electrolytic ERRNE 5L 55 (M) 10,152,885

copper (Note)

Sales of recycled copper products SHE B AERE®R BEEED-390

Sales of power fransmission and HE X EE 13,489
distribution cables

Sales of communication cables HEREEER 34,460

Sales of scrap materials 85 R HY 5,948

Revenue from trading of electrolytic nickel BAFIRE 5 & ¥ 58 =

Others H 2,684

PRZINERE?

Note: The Group has enfered into trading activities of electrolytic copper since 2015

whereas the Group is considered as the principal of the fransactions as it controls
the electrolytic copper before they are sold to the customers. The gross inflows of
the trading activities are therefore recognised as revenue.

Mk : AEBE05FUARARERROE 5 E
B) - BRAEEER T S T 5 AT
ZEm UAKEHEESZERFINERE
A RIEE S EBAEERN AR AR L
WHER SR -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

5. REVENUE (Confinued) 5. &R #)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised in TREHNARRERHEFTAREHIE
the current reporting period that were included in the contract HEBEHDHERLEESE
liabilities af the beginning of the reporting period:

2018
2018
RMB’000
AR®F

FFABEHVIENAEDN

Revenue recognised that was included in contract

liabilities af the beginning of the reporting period: BRI R
Sale of goods HE S m
Disaggregated revenue information DIREEBEER

2018
20185
Power
Recycled ~ fransmission
copper  and distribution ~ Communication

products cables cables Total

BEBEER ZARER EHER H)

Revenue from frading of electrolytic copper BB 5& %5 13,519,429 13,519,429
Sales of recycled copper producs HERERER 6,790,364 6,790,364
Sales of power fransmission and BEXREE - 27,315

distribution cables

Sales of communication cables HERECEE 40,935

81,807

Sales of scrap materials HEEEMH 81,807
Revenue from frading of electrolytic nickel ~ EfFRE 5E % 173,627 173,627
Others Hi 9,088 9,088
20,574,315 27,315 20,642,565

Performance obligations BREE

ERASEROEENER MR T

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is
summarised below:

Sale of goods HEER

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of the BAEERRNEmBFTT - MR
goods and payment is generally due within 3 months from BEEXMNEIEANRNIE  ERHER
delivery, except for new customers, where payment in advance is mE - QBB EREANK -

normally required.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

6. OTHER INCOME, GAIN/(LOSS), NET 6. HMA - W& (Bi8) FE
2017
20174
Notes RMB’000
Bt et ARETT
VAT refunds IBEBRT
— Comprehensive utilisation — RENAER (i) 130,442
of resources
— Others — Hit 2,740
Govemnment grants T 78 BN (i) 83,012
Government subsidies AT 78 A (iii) 87,300
Interest income FEMBA 1,538
Net gain/(loss) on copper futures  $HHRE A KX E|1EF 1,334
contracts upon seftlement W (E18)
Foreign exchange differences, net  JRIE i =% I i
loss on disposal of property, HEME  BERZES (32)
plant and equipment B1E
Changes in fair value of derivative FJIRREHMITET A5 2,233

component of convertible bonds B FEE
Changes in fair value of contingent skAKRBEEEH A FEE =
considerations liabilities

Others EAb (3,360)

318,340
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

6. OTHER INCOME, GAlN/(LOSS), NET (Continved)

Notes:

fi

(i)

(iii)

The Group is entitled to government grants for refunds of 30% for the year ended

31 December 2018 (2017: 30%) of the net VAT paid/payable.

The Ministry of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation jointly issued a
notice concerning the “Catalogue on Products and Labour Services relating to
Comprehensive Utilisation of Resources Eligible for Concessions of Value-added
Tax" (Cai Shui [2015] (No. 78)) (the “New VAT Policy”) on 12 June 2015,
which replaced, amongst others, Cai Shui [2011] No. 115 (the “Former VAT
Policy”)). Under the Former VAT Policy, certain subsidiaries of the Group are
entifled to government grants for refunds of 50% of the net VAT paid/payable.
The New VAT Policy took effect on 1 July 2015. According to the New VAT
Policy, the applicable VAT refund for such subsidiaries are reduced from 50% to
30%.

The amounts represent local government grants received by operating subsidiaries
of the Group in the PRC for the purpose of providing immediate financial support
to those subsidiaries for general operating use with no future related costs. No

specific conditions are required to meet in connection with these grants.

In 2018, the Group was granted unconditional government subsidies of
RMB132,172,000 (2017: RMB87,300,000) from Youxian District Finance
Bureau, Mianyang City, Sichuan Province. The subsidies were received through
Sichuan Baohe Fushan Resources Recycling Development Co., Lid. (“Bache
Fushan”), an associate of the Group. Baohe Fushan is principally engaged in the
operation and the development of an indusirial park in Mianyang City, Sichuan

Province, where most of the Group's subsidiaries are located.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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(iii)
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HZE2018F12A31HIEFE - AEEHR
BEBIEER 30% (20174 : 30%) BT/ &
BERFENEVERBAHEE
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BB R SR EM (M H[2015]785%) ([
BEBRBR]D ERR(EHEF)FH
20111155 ([ AT B EB B 1) » R A8
EREE  FEEETHBARNESHESR
S0% BT,/ AT ETE R BHERBUT
BN o FIGEBBERN2015F7 A1 HAER -
RIBHIEEHREE - ZEMBARNERE
BEBRTELHIHE 50% = 30%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (5 B it BIZ S} + AN E#SI1E)
7. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 7. BianmF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at affer charging/ AREBBADGEF DB, GEA) A TS
(credifing): TBREL
2017
2017 &%
RMB’000
ARBTTT
Cost of sales (Note) SHERA (FaE) | ol
Depreciation (nofe 13) e (HEE13) 35,848
loss on disposal of property, HEME - BERREEBE 32
plant and equipment
Recognition of prepaid land lease HEREN T EERIE (M5t 14) 2 22
payments (note 14)
Minimum lease payments under REHERTREHEESHR 1,733
operating leases
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 25 B 7 3,586
Professional fees EXEH 24,421
Research and development costs IEEIDRIN 1,414
Reversal of provision for doubitful REARB AR EFRE (N 19) (127,457
debts, net (note 19)
Reversal of provision for inventory TFEREERED (5,288
Employee benefit expense (including BERANAX (BREEEK
directors’ and chief executive's THAEZEME) (MHEQ)
remuneration) (note Q):
Wages and salaries TERF® 29,354
Pension scheme contributions RIREFHEIHR 2270
Equity-settled share option expense VARE 5 4 5 1O B AR B 2 23,210
54,834
Note: Cost of sales includes RMB20,832,000 (2017: RMB16,693,000) relafing to Mizk: SHERABEHEE TRA - TE REHEH
staff cost, depreciation and amortisation, which amount is also included in the M) AR %20,832,000 TT(2017F : AR¥
respective fofal amounts. 16,693,0007T) - EESHEIMNE T AGBAER
A o
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. M
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: FARERRADITAAT
2017
2017 &F
RMB'O00
AREFIT
Interest on bank loans and other RITERREAERAF S 68,885
borrowings
Interest on obligation under finance lease BB HE TEEZFE 1,396
Interest on convertible bonds (note 28) AN ES 2 B (MizE 28) %, 1%
Guarantee fees and other charges ERERANHMIKE 5,802
|48}, 22X0)
9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EENTHEAZME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, B EHEA - BFEQBEME 383(1)
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1](a), (b), (c) [a) ~ (b) ~ ) B (G R AR (HEEEF
and () of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of HER)ROIE BB EERITH
the Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEMEMT
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2017
20174
RMB'O00
INIEe s
Fees we 865
Other emoluments: H Ath FREH
Salaries, allowances and e RUMEREDNZ 4,619
benefits in kind
Equity-settled share option expenses AR HE 45 S BB AR M 7 2 1,324
Pension scheme contributions RIRET IR 30
5,973
6,838
m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FEI% B ERFEER A A
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S BEERTHEARME &)
REMUNERATION (Confinved)
(@) Independent non-executive directors () BIEFITES
The fees paid fo independent non-executive directors during ERNDBYIEHITEET 2SS
the year were as follows: N
2018
2018 &£

Equity-settled

share option
expense Total

UREREEN
BRI X et
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR®T
Mtr. Llee Ting Bun Denny P ST AE 22 191
Ms. Ren Ruxian ikt 181 350
Mr. Pan liansheng EER L yy 191
225 732

20l
2017 F

Equity-settled

share option
Fees expense Tofal

AR S E
ik BiRERA #Et
RMB'O00 RMB'O00 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
M:r. lee Ting Bun Denny FEXH ST A 7 95 268
Ms. Ren Ruxian Eamz+ 173 425 598
M:r. Pan Liansheng R E o3 95 268
519 Ealse [ B
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (Confinued)

(b) Executive directors

ESERTHARIME @)
b) BTEE

pil

2018 2018 %
Executive directors: YiTES:
Mr. Yu Jiangiu AENEL
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson  BYEfa 84
Mr. Huang Weiping BEEE
Ms. Zh Yufen REFRL
2017 20174
Salaries,
allowances  Fquitysefiled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme
Fees in kind expense  confributions Tolal
: oo Rl REER i)\
we REWME BRERX R @5t
RMB'00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TT ARETR AR%TR ARETR
Executive directors: BITES:
Mr. Yu Jiangiu aEMEE - 2,766 - 15 2781
Mr. Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BEERE - 1,554 477 15 2,046
Mr. Huang Weiping EREEE 173 161 39 - 373
Ms. Zh Yufen REFRT 173 138 193 - 504
346 4,619 709 30 5704

During the year ended 31 December 2017, certain
directors were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group, under the share option scheme of the
Company, further defails of which are set out in nofe 31 to
the consolidated financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of
profit loss ore the vesting period, was defermined as at the
date of grant and the amount included in the consolidated
financial statements for the current year is included in the
above directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

There was no agreement under which a director or the chief
executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the year.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © R EI&E&ERAAHR A 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
directors (2017: two), details of whose remuneration are set out
in note @ above. Details of the remuneration for the year of the
remaining two (2017: three) highest paid employees who are
neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are as
follows:

10. iEHREHFMES

FAREERSFMNESBE=RES
(20175 : MB) - HFMFBEN L
XHFES - SR TIMA(017F: =4)
R=aMES GEARRERHITHA
B)NFEFMFBEWT

A

2017 &F

RMB’000

ARETTT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind  #&  EBE R B DR = 203
Equity-seffled share option expense AR BN 818
Pension scheme contributions RIRET SRR 31
3,414

The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is

FIE TR PR S E S R B
BABHBESHHMES ABDT -

as follows:
2007
P AT
Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 =% 1,000,000 7T ]
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 &= =
1,500,000 7T
HK$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & LE 7
2,000,000 7T
3

In prior years, share optfions were granted o non-director and
non-chief executive highest paid employees in respect of their
services to the Group, further details of which are included in the
disclosures in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value of
such options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit
or loss over the vesting period, was defermined as at the date of
grant and the amount included in the financial statements for the
current year is included in the above non-director and non-chief
executive highest paid employees’ remuneration disclosures.

RBEFE  AREHRFEZTLIFER
TRABR=HIMESRAKBIRHN
ARG AR S A - A — PR
MRS W E - 2B A2
MAFEERFBHANERRRDE
R RRLBEE - MEARFERH
BRAZEHECN LMIFEERIETE
TRABREHMESNFMTKE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

11. INCOME TAX 11. 8

Pursuant fo the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands and
the British Virgin Islands ("BVI"), the Group is not subject to any
income fax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision has been made for Hong Kong profits tax as the
Group did not earn any assessable profit subject to Hong Kong
profits tax during the years ended 31 December 2018 and
2017

The Company's subsidiaries in Mainland China are subject to
income fax at the rate of 25% (2017: 25%). In year 2018, 4
subsidiaries (2017: 3] were given the New,/High Tech Enterprise
Award. This award brought these subsidiaries a fax concession
of a lower income tax rate (i.e. 15%) for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2018 and the year ending 31 December
2019. In year 2018, 6 subsidiaries (2017: 6) were in the
western region that engage in the indusfries encouraged by the
government. This brought these subsidiaries a tax concession of a
lower income tax rate (i.e. 15%) for the year ended 31
December 2017 and 2018 and the year ending 31 December
2019.

BENEHERABELHS (XE
REES ) MRAIRES - AEEBE
SRS KRB E L B
8% -

HRAEBREE2018F R 20175

NEBAEFAEREGEH - WL ERE
RS H L EE -

AR BB ARBER B A RIZAR 25%
(20174 = 25%) TR R B PT S ©
20184 - AM(2017F : A ME A
RER T SRR EE - ZIER
ZEMBRAREHZE2017F %20184F
12A31 B IEFEREE20195 12 A
SIHLEFREEZARERSHER(A
15%) & B 7% 8 B/ - R2018F6fH
(20174 : 6F) B~ B R &4t
BRNERASEEERE - Z5WBA
AR E ZE20174F k2018412 A 31
BIEFERBZE2019F12A31 81
FEZEREMABHBE(AI15%) &
MIFEE

2017
2017 &
RMB'O00
ARBTIT
Current — People’s Republic of China BIER — i ARZAME
(the “"PRC") (T E )
Charge for the year FRHE 32,809
Under/(over) provision in prior years BEFERETR
(ERFREME) (2,587)
30,222
Deferred (note 17) B (FFEE17) 41,599
ZAHE2]

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

11. INCOME TAX (Continved)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable o profit before tax
at the sfatutory rafes for the countries in which the Company and
the maijority of ifs subsidiaries are domiciled fo the fax expense af
the effective tax rates, are as follows:

RA %5 80 2% P E

11. REHR @)
BARRIRERBOWMBARIFAERR
BEEMEFTE 2 EARB AR M AT
BRAXAEERTETENRERAZ A
HERAT -

2017
20174
RMB'O00
ARETT
Profit before tax A5 A4 Al 256,404
Tax at the statutory tax rafe REAERERAENTHIA 101,648
Lower tax rates for specific provinces or ' 7E & 17 S AL Hh 75 1 B B 1 (31,005
enacted by local authority B EUE TR K
Withholding tax for inferest charges HEME AR LR EAEAINE 1,859
between the PRC subsidiaries and RN S E RO FENKR
entities outside Mainland China
Adjustments in respect of current tax of i@ 1E B BN HARY 18 38 B (2,587)
previous periods
Profits and losses attributable to associates B & 2~ &) fE1f i K1l &2 E5 18 (1,094)
Income not subject fo tax BARBTUA (2,938)
Expenses not deductible for tax AATHIHE R 2 Lo doaled
Tax losses utlised from previous periods B i1t HAR B A A T IEES 18 (3,605
Tax losses not recognised ANEER RS 680
Temporary differences not recognised AERERER 6,781
Others Hith 370
/1,821
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 12. FEREB A EEERFTAA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amounts is based
on the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company,
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
2,541,850,770 (2017: 2,410,753,862) in issue during the
year.

The calculation of the diluted earnings per share amounts is
based on the profit for the year atiributable to owners of the
Company, adjusted to reflect the interest the convertible bonds,
where applicable (see below). The weighted average number of
ordinary shares used in the calculation is the number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year, as used in the basic earnings per
share calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on the
deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares info ordinary shares.

The calculations of basic and diluted eamings per share are
based on:

iRl
SREABFIRERR ARG AR
F PR T R AF R BT R R IET
¥ 8 B2,541,850,7708 (2017 £ :
2,410,753,862 )5 & -

BEREERNIRIEARREE ARE
FREMNFTE - B(ER) LFHE
RS ESHNES(RTX) - 58
RETE AR E AR D IEFH 8B A
A ETEBREREE (MEBRELRT
AAEMAE)  UREREBBINETFH
HEHCAEFHEEEEBRBRRE
TEXEBHRSEBEK MEREREH

7.

BREAMESBAL N IBEAE

2017
DO
RMB’'000
N s=T

Earnings 2R
Profit aftributable to owners of the KARER AEMRA 184,583

Company

Interest on convertible bonds AR ESF B ey
Profit aftributable to owners of the RRABVEB AEMLET 2708

Company before interest on
convertible bonds

(REF AR ESA B

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

[(Continued)

RA %5 80 2% P E

12. FERBAREBREHFEA
HEREBR @)

Number of shares
i
2017
20174

Shares B4

Weighted average number of ordinary
shares in issue during the year used in
the basic earnings per share calculation

Effect of dilution — weighted average BExrE — LERmgE
number of ordinary shares: FIHHA
Warrants R i 15,484,436
Share opfions R E 63,773,095
Contingent consideration shares SEARERD =
Convertible bonds* AR E & * 148,276,252

AR BREXANARAFEA
BBITEBBINEFHIHE

2,410,753,862

2,638,287,645

convertible bonds into account, the convertible bonds had an anti-dilutive effect
on the basic earnings per share for the year and were ignored in the calculation
of diluted earnings per share. Therefore, the diluted eamings per share amounts
are based on the profit for the year of RMB20,123,000 (2017:
RMB184,583,000) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

2,650,868,276 (2017: 2,490,011,393) in issue during the year.

Because the diluted earnings per share amount is increased when faking

3 EERABRREFZBERT  SRESEF
SN WATRREFHFAZERER
BN AEGREFHE  HHESRESTRF
BATURZEE - At SREFERAZSHE
ToAR AR 4 A% A AR5 20,123,000 7T (2017
£ AR 184,583,0007T) RENE BITE
B INHET S8 2,650,868,276 8 (2017 4 ¢
2,490,011,393 %) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y% - BERRE

Furniture,
Plontand fittings and Motor  Consfruction
Buldings ~ machinery  equipment vehicles i progress
BE %E
BEY  BERMEM & it ERIR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARMTR  ARWTR

31 December 2018 2018F12A318
At 1 Januory 2018 R18F1R1H
Cost KA 343,288 262,625 5,541 165,815 786,431
Accumulated depreciaion and ZEERAESR (88,336) (119,897) (4,316) - [217.9N)
impaiment losses
Net carying amount FESE 254,952 142,728 1205 165,815 568,460
At 1 January 2018, et of R2I8EIATE Mk
accumulated depreciafion and ZHAERHEER 254,952 142,728 1,225 165,815 568,460
impaiment losses
Addifons NE 6,394 30,752 1,160 48,572 87,274
Acquisiion of subsidiories note 33 EEHIB /23] (M3 33) 77 4,406 192 22,881 28,494
Disposals RE - (160) (5) - (189)
Charge for the year ERfil (15,569) (22,738) (629) - (40,194
Transfers &t 36,598 7943 390 (44,931) -

At 31 December 2018, net of R2018%128318 1k
accumulated depreciafion and ZHAELHEEE 282,452 162,931 2133 192,337 643,845

impaiment losses

At 31 December 2018 R2018%12A318
Cost R 386,355 305,597 1,057 10,256 192,337 901,802
Accumulated depreciafion and ZHERRESR (103,903) (142,666) (5124) (6,264) - (257,957)

mpaiment losses

Net carying amount FRSE 282,452 162,931 2133 3992 192,337 643,845

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o
Mk =RME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 13. % - MERRE®)
Fumiture,
Plant and ftings ond Motor ~ Construction
Buildings mochinery equipment vehices ~ in progess Totol
A %2
BEN  BERER bE 1 IR &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETE AREFr  ARETR  ARETx
31 December 2017 WI7E12531H
AT January 2017 R01751/18
Cost A 342,121 235,758 5,405 6,192 186,793 776,269
Accumulated depreciafion and ZEMERTESR (73,515 (100,533) (3,458) (4,693 - (182,199)
impaiment losses
Net carrying amount FEFE 268,606 135,225 1947 1499 186,793 594,070
At 1 January 2017, et of RO17E1A18 1k
accumulated depreciafion and ZHTERFESR 268,606 135,225 1047 1499 186,793 504,070
impaiment losses
Addifions AE 582 1,080 136 2970 5,552 10,270
Disposals RE S 32) - - - (32)
Chorge for e year Erk (14,821 (19,440) (858 (729 - (35,848
Transfers & 635 25,895 - - 26,530| -
At 31 December 2017, net of R2017E128318 « Mk
accumulated depreciation and ZHTERGESE 254,952 142,728 105 3,740 165,815 568,460
impaiment losses
At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A318
Cost AR 343,288 262,625 5,541 9,162 165,815 786,431
Accumulated depreciation and ZEMERTESR (88,336) (119.897| (4,316) (5,422) - 217.971)
impairment losses
Net carrying amount A= 254952 142,728 1225 3,740 165,815 568,460

The net carrying amount of the Group's fixed assets held under
finance leases included in plant and machinery at 31 December

2018 was RMB4,603,000 (2017: RMB44,645,000).

At 31 December 2018, property, plant and equipment with net
book value of RMB200,649,000 (2017: RMB214,419,000)
was pledged to secure general banking facilities granted fo the
Croup (see note 27(b)).

At 31 December 2018, the Group has vet fo obtain property
ownership certificates for buildings with an aggregate net book
value of RMB38,423,000 (2017: RMB40,466,000). The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the Group
owned the beneficial tifle to these buildings as at 31 December

2018 and 2017.

R2018F 12831 H - AEBRER
EHERANBETEEENRmFED
AR R ) 23 AR 4,603,000
TT(20174 : AR¥44,645,0007T) °

M2018%12A318 - EEEEAA
R ¥ 200,649,000t (2017 : AR
#214,419,0007T) W% - BE &R
HOARER T AEEN—RFBITHE
(RFFEE27(b)) T LA -

M2018F 12 A31 8 » "EEB AR
BAREFERSARK384230007T
(20175 : AR %40,466,0007T ) &Y
REMBEMEMEHESE - ARRIES
Tt N 2018 = R 201/ 12 A 31
E'K%@%ﬁ%ﬁ%@é%ﬁ‘ﬂ%ﬁ?&%
Eo
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=
R4 3% 3R R P 2E
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)
14. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 14. FERH LB EN
2017
2017 &
RMB'000
ARETFTT
Carrying amount at 1 January 1A BZEREE Q7,794
Addition during the year FRRNE EN
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 33) Ue B BT A B (B ¥ 33) =
Recognised during the year FRHER (2,122)
Carrying amount at 31 December 12 A31 BRREE 95,672
At 31 December 2018, prepaid land lease payments with an MN2018E 12318 EEAEAA
aggregate carrying amount of RMB86,840,000 (2017: Eﬁ% 86,840,000 (20174 : AR
RMB91,853,000) were pledged to secure general banking 1,853,00070) MTB L E [
facilities granted to the Group (see note 27(b)). E REOERTFAEEN—MRBITEME
(RFF3E27(b)) T LA
15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 15. BtE N Rl
2017
DENETZE
Notes RMB’000
B 5T AREFTT
Share of net assets BIEFEE 64,681
Goodwill on acquisition WRBZE 4 R 102,129
166,810
Amounts due from associates JE Uk B 22 N B FR IR 2] 6,221
Amounts due to associates FE{ST B & A B3R 2 (4,638
168,393
Due fo the adoption of IFRS 9, the interests in associates £ A 4 B [ Hﬁﬁkiﬁﬁtiﬁﬁlj’fﬁogﬁ .
increased by RMBQ,600,000, as af 1 January 2018. ZAAIERN20184F 1 H # 5n A
R # 0,600,000 7T °
China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FEI% B ERFEER A A




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

15. BF&E R E’F“

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

N

E)I

Particulars of the associates are as fo||ows. NG Ok /|E§;z[]‘|§ E
Deda Ho|dings Limited Issued and paid in BVI 30% - Investment holding
EERRERA capital of USD1,000 HERAFES RERKR
ERTRER
&7 1,000% 7T

Hong Kong Fuijian lssued and paid in Hong Kong = 30%  Invesiment holding
Investments Limited capital of HK$1.0 B REZR

BERERERRAT BETRAR

BRAE1.0%T

Sichuan Bache Fushan Resources  Registered capifal of The PRC - 30%  Industrial park operation
Recycling Development Co., lid. ~ RMB100 million h and development
('Baohe Fushon’) AMERARE BERERIAE

mIERANELBEERRAE 100,000,0007
BRAR (MRAELL])

Sichuan )X Ecommerce Trading Registered capital of The PRC E 25%  Operation of renewable
Co., lid. [")X Ecommerce”| RMBT00 million F metal electronic
(Note] EMEAARE commerce platform

mleBREFABERAR 100,000,0007¢ ReBATE
(e RREFEK]) (M) EfAEBTR

Note: On 25 October 2017, a subsidiary of the Group, Fuging Zhongjin, entered info WiEE : R2017F 10825 - AEREINE A RIRE

an equity transfer agreement with Sichuan Xijiulong Investment Co, Ltd.
("Xijiulong”), @ company controlled by Ms. Yu Yanyan and Ms. Yu Jiajia, who
are connected persons of the Company by virtue of them being the daughters of
Mr. Yu Jiangiu, pursuant to which Fuging Zhongjin agreed fo purchase 25%
equity inferest of JX E-commerce from Xijiulong for a cash consideration of
RMB 125,000,000, which was determined with reference to the valuation of JX
E-commerce as at 30 June 2017 performed by an external valver. The
acquisition of JX E-commerce was completed on 6 November 2017 (the

“Acquisition Date").

As at the Acquisition Date, the share of fair value of JX Ecommerce’s net assets is
RMB22,871,000. The difference of RMB102,129,000 between the share of
fair value of JX E-commerce's net assets and the consideration paid was recorded

as goodwill.

PeEM)IAAANEREERAB(AN
Bl —MeEafEatkaEExc (AR
ERAENEEZZAMAERRARZBEA
) IR R]) FT S IR E RS - BULE
BReRESAMNANERESRERETS
RO AER RERBEAARE
125,000,0007C * & &I EP L ERT 3 & IR
BEFEER 201756 A 30 BMHERETE - W
BEBBEFTHER2017F11 A6A TR
(TkEERH]) »

REBEE DEERREFEEFEER
FE/ARE22871,0007T - DhLBRE
FRABFEEATEEDNREZREZRA
R#102,129,000 T ARSI AR °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continved)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of the material associates adjusted for any differences
in accounting policies and reconciled to the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements:

15. BtE DRl ()

AEBERERZEM AR N ERE
MR ANRHRESRNEABZE A
A EMBERFHALT

Baohe Fushan JX E-commere
RAEW SERETHH
2017 2017*
20175 20175+
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT
Current assefs TEEE 70,518 92,368
Noncurrent assefs, excluding goodwil  FiRBEE - TEEHE 178,563 20,169
Goodwill on acquisition of the associale  WEEHHE A AIMEEMEE % 102,129
Current liabilties nBafE (28,13) (18,113
Non-current liabilities FRPAR (82,300) (2,000)
Net assefs FEE 138,646 194,551
Net assets, excluding goodwil FEE TRERE 138,646 92,422
Reconciliation fo the Group's inferest in -~ EAZR SR BIRNBE& A R MR HIFR -
the associae:
Proportion of the Group's ownership KEBFA R 30% 25%
Croup's share of net assets of the AEFEEBRENATFEE 41,594 23,106
associdte, excluding goodwill TRERE
Goodwill on acqpisition of the associate — WEEHEE A RIFTEERISE ¥ 102,129
Carrying amount of the investment RE KA 41,594 125,235
Revenue EXE : 11,677
Profit and fofal comprehensive income  FRMERN K 2 Bl E A 13,821 939

for the year

* Asat 31 December 2017 and the period from 6 November 2017 to 31 December

20N Z.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

16. %

At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017

R2017F1A1BKR2017F12A31 H

Cost B AR 39,308
Accumulated impairment REPRIE (16,081)
Net carrying amount FREHE 23,227

Cost at 1 January 2018, net of accumulated
impairment
Acquisition of subsidiaries (nofe 33)

M2018%F 1 A1 BAIKZ
kR RETRE
Yo B Pt 8 2 =) (BT &£ 33)

Net carrying amount at 31 December 2018

20184 12 A 31 BRRE FE

At 31 December 2018

2018 12A31 H

Cost DS
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
Net carrying amount BREDFE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

16. GOODWILL (Confinved) 16, 8

Impairment testing of goodW|||

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated to
recycled copper product cash-generating unifs in Xiangbei,
Baohe Xinshiji, Baohe Taiyue, Zhaofeng, Rongsheng and
Chengxin for impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of the CGUs is determined based on
value in use calculations. These calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by management
covering a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year
period are extrapolated using a zero growth rate. The growth
rate used do not exceed the longterm average growth rates for
the business in which the CGU operates. The cash flows are
discounted using pre-tax discount rates from approximately 8.33%

14% at 31 December 2018 and 2017. Key assumptions used
for the value in use calculations are the gross margins, growth
rates and the availability of VAT refunds. Management
defermined the budgefed gross margins and growth rates based
on past performance and its expectation for market development.
The values assigned to the key assumptions are consistent with
external information sources. No government grant is assumed fo
be received in the value in use calculations.

Based on the results of the valuation, the recoverable amount of
the above CGUs has been assessed as being higher than its
carrying amount as at 31 December 2018. Accordingly, the
directors are of the opinion that there is no need fo provide any
impairment loss on goodwill as af 31 December 2018.

The carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the cash-
generating unifs is as follows:

PR (B R
BREBEHABBEREDDEEM
it - RAEEAD ~ RANZEE - K2 - Bl
RERBHNBLENEMRSELEME
RERI, o

RerEEMNAKRE SR IREER
BEFEETE - ZFAEEAENER
B eI FPVBRENRSRER
/E\U ° ﬁi@ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’\ﬁﬁimi@iﬁﬁfi‘ﬁ
EHlf - FAIEAMERETHBAREG S
EBMAKEEBHNRATIERE - 1]
fﬁ‘bmi@'ﬁﬁﬁQO 8% K2017F 12 A4

E|i78 33% % 14% ) Bt Al #7 3R & Bh

cHEEREENTIEZERRABEN
$ BERLEERERBOATRML - &
BERBEATREMHEEMISERNTE
HETREENXKRERE - SR TH
RERRHBEEINMER IR —E - 10
=T & B A B R AR 3 4 W ER IR T
B -

REGHESR  FELARESEL SN
AR EE REBER20185F12 A

1RZzREE - At EFRAR/R
2018F 12A31 HBAREEB 2 EM
B R RAT IR R

SREER S AEEM NEENEEE
o :

2017
2017 €
RMB'O00
ARETIT

Recycled copper products BAFEmR
— Xiangbei =il 22,766
— Baohe Xinshiji — RFFTHAD !
— Baohe Taiyue — RAZRH 248
— Zhaofeng — kg 5
— Rongsheng — R B
— Chengxin — R& o
23, 22
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

17. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

At 1 January 2018

Deferred tax charged fo the consolidated sfatement of & R B 47 A 1B & 1Bk A IEE T 18
(FHEE11)

profit or loss during the year [note 11)

R20181H1H

M I5H =M

17. EERIE
BELERIBEERABRFRNZEZEH N
FE

EEBIRRE

2018

2018 &
Depreciation/
amortisation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation/
amortisation
HBHER
wEHE

b EoECLi )
e/
BeaERE
RMB’000
ARET T

2,033

Gross deferred tax liabilities recognised in the

consolidated statement of financial position af RIZE

31 December 2018

20184 12A31H
AR KR IER
EFER IR B B AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIEGHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

17. DEFERRED TAX (Continved) 17. IR IE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE

2018

20184
Losses available
for offsetting
Provisions against future
and accruals  taxable profits Total

AR E 8

BER RRPERBE
st & A HANHER st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AR®T T AR®T R

At 31 December 2017 R2017%12A31H 14,866 7,206 22,072

Effect of adoption of IFRS 9 RNEIR B S | S 2E R 5736 - 5,736
FORMFTE
At 1 January 2018 [restated) R201841 A 1H (KE7) 20,602 27,808
Deferred tax charged to the FREFEBRRMNKRE
consolidated statement of profit or BRI (FEETT)
loss during the year [note 11) (1,523 (4,577)
Gross deferred tox assefs at R20184 12 A31 BAY 19,079 2,629
31 December 2018 ERERIBEERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

17. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 17. ;ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁlﬁ (4&)
For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assefs and MEVMS BTEEHBEEERERE
liabilities have been offset in the consolidated statement of BERGAET AR KPS - LA AA
financial position. The following is an analysis of the deferred tax EE R 2R R T B A R TT
balances of the Group for financial reporting purposes: R DT
Deferred tax liabilities REHRIBEE
2017
20174
Depreciation/
amortisation
allowance in
excess of
related
depreciation/
amortisation
AR
ERES
weE/
HHR R
RMB’000
ARETT
At 1 January 2017 R20171 A4 1H e
Deferred tax credited fo the statement of FRNFFABRKRNIELEIE
profit or loss during the year [nofe 11) (B¥zE11) (98)
Cross deferred fax liabilities recognised in the M2017F12A31 R
consolidated statement of financial position af RERE B SRR R AR
31 December 2017 ELRIA B (B 2,033
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

17. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 17. IEERIE (&)
Deferred tax assets BB EESE
2017
2017 4
losses available
for offseffing
Provisions against future
and accruals  taxable profits Total
A AR 8
Rtm & RN FERTR
et E R i M Y S 1R Bt
RMB’ 000 RMB’000 RMB’ 000

AREFT ARETT ARET T

At 31 December 2017 M20176 1231 H 40,388 23,381 63,769
Deferred tax charged to the FRBBEHKRARAE PR (16,173) (41,697
statement of profit or loss FERCIA (KMIEE11)

during the year (nofed 11)

Gross deferred tax assets at R 20 7 =2 125 eHE = 14,866 700 22,072
31 December 2017 RIERIAE EHEE
For presentation purposes, deferred tax assets and liabilities have MEIME BEMBEEERAGER
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. REMBARRRAEE - R2018F 12
Net deferred tax assets of RMB19,638,000 (2017: H318 ' RiEEaBRRRARRIE
RMB20,039,000) recognised in the consolidated statement of ERREEEFBEARK19,638,0007T
financial position as at 31 December 2018. (2017 F : AR¥20,039,0007T) °
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the WARFIATIE B HERIEERIAEE :
following items:
2L
20175
RMB'O00
ARETFT
Tax losses HIAEE 54,222
Deductible temporary differences A B E B =R 80,222
134,444
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB104,762,000 (2017: RMB54,222,000) that will expire in

one fo five years for offsefting against future taxable profits.

Deferred tax assefs have not been recognised in respect of these
losses and deductible temporary differences as they have arisen
in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time and it is
not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses and deductible temporary differences
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared fo foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises established in
Mainland China. The requirement is effective from 1 January
2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax freaty
between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rafe is 5% or 10%. The
Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of eamnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2018, no deferred tax has been recognised for
withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding faxes of the Group's
subsidiaries and associates established in Mainland China. In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries
will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable future. The
aggregate amount of temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
fax liabilities have not been recognised fofalled approximately
RMB79,068,000 at 31 December 2018 (2017:
RMBS55,328,000.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the payment
of dividends by the Company fo its shareholders.

AEE TR EAREEREBEAR
# 104,762,000 (2017 F : AR ¥
54,222,0007E) - ZEBBEEN —=
T B ¢ A 1R I 5 oK TR A SR
7 o

BHRELGEERNHBARSHEE
B—ERE - B KA REHR FER D A
AR SH R TR B 18 M A HR B R 28 0 iR
BEZ TR R LA RS R E R
BELERIAEE -

RIBFBRERABIA - HETEARE
RSN E R ASNER B B TR
B BRI 10% BN - ZIARTE
B2008F 1 H1ARER - BEAR
2007 12 A31 BEH AT o frH B
REEINEREE B RDERRET AN
TR - BIRTBEEIR BB TEFNRL &
SEZERMERFS5%K10% > FEit
AEEBR R SERT BIAEER A
BATIME2008F 1 A1 BHEEEEH
BN P 73 IR EO B BN TR

M2018F12A31H ' WERAEE
T A BRI KRR R AL Y P B 1 ) Ko Bt 22 2 )
RS TR RO R I th BN RE R A7
HBERR  ZEMBARNA RS
RAKAIgED RZZFEAF - K 20184
12A31 B BARERREHIAAED
PEKREME R RIRERBNEREZR
BEBAOARAREK 79,008,000 (2017
F: AR¥55,328,0007T) °

AN A ) E B BRI A O BB B R AR P
S °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

18. INVENTORIES 18. Z&
2017
2017 &F
RMB'O00
ARETT
Raw materials R 129,306
Work in progress & 14,976
Finished goods RURK i 23,398
Goods in transit &R 2 Em 285,489
453,169

19.

At 31 December 2018, inventories of RMB 10,000,000 (2017:
RMB30,550,000) were pledged for banking facilities granted to
the Group (see note 27(b)).

M2018F12A31H REARX
10,000,0007t(2017 % : 30,550,000
TUNEFEEE TER  EAAKEER
RITRE WIER (HEE27(b))

TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 9. ESEWFEREKNEE
201 7
2017 &
RMB'O00
AR®ET T
Trade receivables E 5 W kT8 e 2S
less: allowance for impairment loss B OREE R (109,927
951,198
Bills receivables B R 140,000
1,091,198

The Group's frading ferms with its customers are mainly on credit,
except for new customers, where payment in advance is normally
required. The credit period is generally 3 months. Each customer
has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks fo maintain sfrict
confrol over ifs oufstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are
reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its frade
receivable balances. Trade receivables are non-inferestbearing.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

An ageing analysis of the frade and bills receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice dafe and net of

RA %5 80 2% P E

unless otherwise indicated)] (55 B i 8FZ 51 + AN BB Z1/1E)

=)

19. EZEWREAERERRE @)
RIBEER - B 5 RKOA R BN ER
HBRES DT (DABE 32 B B R A 1R 8

loss allowance, is as follows: BEEE)MT :
2017
20174
RMB'O00
N T
Within 30 days 30KA 615,758
31 to 60 days BHECOS 318,384
61 to 180 days 612 180K 109,630
Over 180 days 8 180K 47,426
1,091,198

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade

B RYGRIEREBERENESH N

receivables are as follows: 5=

2017
2017 &
RMB'O00
ARET T
At 1 January ®R1A1H 237,384

Effect of adoption of IFRS @ BRA% B B 75 3R 5 42 B
FORMT L& =
At 1 January (restated) R®1A1BEE) 237,384
Reversal of provision for bad debts, net  ZZBR# {4 0] )55 (127,457)
At 31 December ®12H31H 109,927
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Impairment under IFRS 9 for the year ended 31 December
2018

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of
various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e. by
cusfomer type and rating). The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and
supportable information that is available at the reporting date
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off
if past due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on
the Group's frade receivables using provision mafrices:

As at 31 December 2018

19. EZRURERERREE @)

HZE2018F12A31B L FERE
[ BE% 5 75 ¥ 5 2 R 56 9 SRR
REHE B EE R R BREETRED
i UEtERBEEER - BEXER
BROEERA (AR PR &FR)
MEEFPRDANBHRE - ZtER
R R IIEGER - EEEHEEENLR
BEBHAESHEMBESE - A0
AR B AR SR AL RO TR ) & 32 B ] 32
FEM - —R&ME - EZREFRNE
HEe—F Y ABAZRNEHINITE
BRI T UAMIEH -

LA T 85175 B AR B 5 e IR OB 5 D
4B RS 05 AR MO &R

R2018512A31H

Group A A&
Expected credit loss rate BHEEERX
Gross carrying amount RMB'000)  BRTIAA(E

(ARET )
Expected credit losses RMB'000]  EEHifEERE
(ARETTT)
Group B B4
Expected credit loss rafe BHEEBRE

Gross carrying amount RMB'000) BRE&(E
(AEBFT)

Expected credit losses RMB'000]  FEHifEEEE
(AEBFT)

The Group cafegorised the customers by making reference fo their
historical repayment records into the following groups:

Croup A: independent cusfomers that had good track records
with the Group

Group B:  remaining independent customers

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continved)

Impairment under IAS 39 for the year ended 31 December
2017

Included in the above provision for impairment of trade
receivables, which was measured based on incurred credit losses
under 1AS 39, as at 31 December 2017 was a provision for
individually impaired trade receivables of RMB109,927,000
with a carrying amount before provision of RMB109,927,000.

The individually impaired trade receivables as at 31 December
2017 related to customers that were in financial difficulties and
none of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at 31
December 2017 that were not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired under IAS 39 is as follows:

19. EZRURERERREE @)

HZE2017F12A31B L FERE
BIFRE RIS 39 SRR E

B8 5 e WS IRE E R A R IR AR
RIREER/ARK109,927,000TH
EERRER S REGRNBEEARSE
109,927,000 7T (R BB & 5+ 2RI
3OFETEELEEFIRELEAE)

R2017€ 12831 BEEAIRENE
SRERNGIRER MG RNEN TP AR -
FEH% S R WG IR Y A WA o

R-ZT—+F+=-A=1+—HEEEE
SR 3057 I A (& Bl sk HE AR
BRERE Z UG IE & R EEA R
BTN

24BN
20174
RMB'000
ARETT
Current BNER 686,973
Less than 30 days past due BHILR 30K 181,558
31 to 60 days past due BEA31 EOO0KR 100,343
61 to 180 days past due BEIO1 £ 180K 20,960
Over 180 days past due BHAEEB 180K 31,364
Amounts past due 60 BASRIE 404,225
1,091,198

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related fo a BT A 480 HR IR Rk (B B 8 R T B3 HA A

large number of diversified customers for whom there was no
recent hisfory of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of independent customers that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company were of the opinion that no provision for impairment
under IAS 39 was necessary in respect of these balances as
there had not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances were still considered fully recoverable.

EXRBOABZTIEEFAR -

EEHME R E R YR S T B AR
SEERFEERENBIEFLEM -
RIBEELR  ARAESAL AR
EEERVEEAZHAZFERIIK
BAAI 28 E - BT RIS ERR
REIBR e At AR 395 (E R B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

20. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 20. a4 & - Eft B RE R Hib
ASSETS BE
2017
2017 %
RMB'O00
ARETT
Advance payments to suppliers B R FIR 609,823
Government grants receivable & M5 IR 7 B 63,865
VAT in-put accrued F{hEEB 81,350
Prepayments for property, plant and ME - BB RREBBRNRE
equipment and prepaid land lease Taft A E K
payments SHPZ7:5
Other deposits, prepayments and Hipire - BN R R EWR
receivables 29,384
816,197
less: non-current portion B FERNERER (31,846
Current portion BIERER 7> /84,351

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date by
considering the probability of default of comparable companies
with published credit ratings. As at 31 December 2018,
expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the
Group. The loss rate is adjusted fo reflect the current conditions

and forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The
loss rate applied as at 31 December 2018 was minimal.

None of the above assels is either past due or impaired. The
financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

21. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) RELATED PARTIES/ 21. B (FE) BB 5 B

ASSOCIATES CIE/CE]
The amounts due from/[to) related parties/associates are el (FER) BB 77 /B A TR IB A
unsecured, inferestfree and are repayable on demand. I B NRBIRERES o

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED 22 ReRkRREFEHEAUREE

DEPOSITS Wiz
2017
2017 &%
RMB'O00
AREFT
Cash and bank balances e MIRTTAE R 109,595
Time deposits EHIE R 48,237
157,832
less: Pledged time deposits: - BEEREEER
Deposits with guarantee companies RERDBINRES (1,500
Deposits with banks RITFR (12,900)
Deposits with other companies REMARNRES (29,037)
Non-current deposits with lessors of RELEHE R AR
finance leases SERNEARE S (4,800)
109,595
Pledged deposits with banks were mainly placed as security for RBITHEERFEREZRMAEEN
bills payable of the Group. RN SRR F MRS -
Pledged deposits were placed with lessors of finance leases as FRARBEHEARNEERRER T
security for the obligations under finance leases. MRERE BT FRERRR -
Pledged deposits were placed with other companies for the FEIFIR1TE KA K # 40,000,000 7T
purpose of obtaining bank loans of RMB40,000,000 (2017: (20174 : AR #40,000,0007T ) ifn
RMB40,000,000), which were secured by the property, plant REMARFREEFRES - BAR
and equipment of such companies (see note 27(b)). TEFHZEARNYE - BERXE

ER(RME27(0) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

22. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED

DEPOSITS (Continved)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances
of the Group denominated in Renminbi ("RMB”) amounted to
RMB100,189,000 (2017: RMB62,622,000). The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however, under Mainland
China's Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Seftlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised o conduct foreign exchange
business.

Cash at banks eams interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made for varying
periods of between one day and three months depending on the
immediate cash requirements of the Group, and earn interest at
the respective short term time deposit rates. The bank balances
and pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy banks and
companies with no recent history of default.

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

2. BERBSEEEBEUREIE
HERE)
RBEBR XEBUARBE(TAR
D EMNRERBTESREARKE
100,189,0007C (20174 : A R #
62,622,0007C) « AR A A/
RN EE RSP B AR INEE
RGP K2 4508~ B8 RS IEE RG] -
A& B RIBEREEITINEETEH
RITHARBE B AEME -

RITHESIREN T HRITERN R Z
B R BRERA 2. o 52 B BATF RO R R
HRNMN-BE=EAATE  BFAE
B ARRESFRME @ LIRERHE
HATE SR R BRERRIS. - SRITREB R EHE
WA DR EIEREEREEER
WFEIRTT R A F] ©

23. EZENRERENRE

2017
2017 %
RMB'000
ARET T

B RMNBIA
ANES

Trade payables
Bills payables

187,858
25,800

213,658
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

23. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES (Continued) 23. éﬁ-’i%@ﬁ?ﬁﬁ&@ﬁf—%?ﬁ (&)
An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end BEEZAH  BHEREHRNESE
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows: NRBRENEENRRDITOT -

2017
2017 %
RMB'O00
ARBTFT
Within 30 days 30RA 179,469
31 to 60 days 31 260K O3l
61 to 180 days 61 2180XK 5,366
Over 180 days #8i@ 180K 25, 522
213,658
The trade payables are non-interestbearing and are normally BHRNRIBTEE - BERIORD
setled on 30-day terms. HR#&EE o
24. NOTE PAYABLE 24. ERRE
2017
2017 %
RMB’000
AREBTT
Note payable, at amortised cost REB KA ENENRE =
The note payable with an aggregate principal amount of N & M8 %8 420,000,000 T (HE R
HK$20,000,000 (equivalent to RMB17,524,000) is unsecured AR®17,524,00070) WER RIE R
and bears interest at 12% per annum with 1-year maturity period EER RI2NFMNERGFE - BRI
repayable on 6 April 2019. FERFHR2019F4 A6 BIEE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

25. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

25. Hitt BN RERETAEA

(i)

Defails of contract liabilities as at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018 are

as follows:

2017
20174
RMB’000
ARETT
Salaries, wages, bonus and other He 1E ek
accrued benefits H A FEET 12 7 227
Payables for the purchase of property,
plant and equipment and prepaid BEWE - WERRED
land lease payment e RIE R TR £ 3 A & FRIE 33,681
VAT payable e 1B BT 251,244
Unearned government grants (Note (i) TEUEY B4 Bh (B 5E (i) 1,128
Other taxes payable Hip TR 34,772
Advances from government authorities BT EB P B K 9,650
Contract liabilities (Note {i)) AHaE ) =
Receipts in advance AW FRIA 3,780
Others Hth 2R
356,638
Note: P -

(i) M20184 12 A31 HK20185F 1 A1 HME
WREFBNT

1 January 2018
201841 A 1H
RMB'000
ARETT
Short-term advances received from customers BEE,/ B ERENESR R
Sale of goods HEEM 3,780

Contract liabilities include shortterm advances received to deliver copper related
products. The increase in confract liabilities in 2018 was mainly due fo the
increase in shortferm advances received from customers in relation fo the sales of

copper related products af the end of the year.

The amount represented conditional government grants received from various
government authorities including Mianyang Youxian District Finance Bureau,
Sichuan Province, and the Provincial Finance Depariment, Hunan Province. The
government grants from Mianyang Youxian District Finance Bureau are
conditional to meeting certain tax payment thresholds by the Group. The
govermnment grants from the Provincial Finance Department, Hunan Province are
conditional to utilising the funds for the designated purpose of procurement of

fixed assefs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
=
M35 R R
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)
26. FINANCE LEASES PAYABLE 26. BMEHERENRIEA
The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery. These leases NEBRSET IRRGMEN - ZZ=HRE
are classified as finance leases and have remaining lease terms SEARAHE  HFSAEEHNT
ranging from one fo five years. e s R
At 31 December 2018, the fotal future minimum lease payments M2018F12H31H - BEMEET
under finance leases and their present values were as follows: MARRFEREFBERERERAEN
5
Present value
Minimum of the minimum
lease lease
payments payments
RERETA
RIEHERE BiE
2017 2017
2017 % 20175
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT
Within 1 year 15/ 13,215 12,451
After 1 year but within 2 years | FRE2FR 414 360
After 2 years but within 5 years 2ERESER 348 331
762 691
13,977 13,142
Less: Total future inferest expenses W KRN ER X EE (835)
Present value of finance
lease obligations RMERERANRE 13,142
Pledged deposits of RMB4,800,000 (2017: RMB4,800,000) M2018F12A 318 EEBEERA
were placed as security for the finance leases payable as at 31 R ¥4 800,0007C(2017F : AR ¥
December 2018 (see nofe 22). 4,800,00078) B 17 B fE 5 54 7 B e
NRIRNER (R KL 22) »
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MIEGHRRME

BORROWINGS

Current Ik

Bank loans — secured RITER — AEM

Other borrowings — secured ~ HAfifg 3 — A

Entrusted loans — secured  Z3EER — B
note (d)) (BizE(d)

Non-current E il
Bank loans — secured PITER — BEE
Other borrowings — secured ~ EftifEFx — H#EH
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27. INTEREST BEARING BANK AND OTHER 27. StERITREMER @
BORROWINGS (Continved)
2087
20174
RMB'000
ARETT
Analysed info: DA
Bank loans and overdrafts repayable: ERIRTERRES ¢
Within one year or on demand —FRHIEEK 219,500
In the second year RE—F =
219,500
Other borrowings and entrusted EEMEREEZLER
loan payable:
Within one year =22l 463,060
In the second year RE_F 391
In the third o fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZ2FRF(BFE) 140
463,591
683,091
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

27. INTEREST BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a)

(o)

()

The Group's facilities amounting to RMB394,818,000 (2017:
RMB354,373,000), of which RMB232,800,000 (2017: RMB245,300,000)
had been utilised as at the end of the reporting period, are secured by the
pledge of the Group's time deposits amounting fo RMB51,812,000 (2017:
RMB48,237,000).

Certain of the Group's Interestbearing bank and other borrowings are secured

by:

(i) mortgages over the Group's property, plant and equipment, which had
an aggregate carrying value at the end of the reporting period of
RMB200,649,000 (2017: RMB214,419,000);

(ii) mortgages over the Group's prepaid land lease payments, which had an
aggregate carrying value af the end of the reporting period of

approximately RMB86,840,000 (2017: RMB91,853,000);

(iii)

floating charges over certain of the Group's inventories totalling
RMB 10,000,000 (2017: RMB30,550,000);

the pledge of the Group's time deposits amounting to RMB5 1,812,000
(2017: RMB48,237,000;

(iv)

(v) the pledge of property, plant and equipment of a third party;

the pledge of 310,317,000 ordinary shares (2017: 310,317 000
ordinary shares) in the Company held by Mr. Huang Weiping, key
management personnel of the Group, representing 11.9% (2017:

12.6%) of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31 December
2018;

(vi)

At 31 December 2018, bank loans of RMB3 1,000,000 (2017:
RMB31,000,000) were secured by prepayment for lease payment of
Baohe Fushan; and

(vii)

(viiij At 31 December 2018, bank loans of RMB 10,000,000 (2017:
RMB10,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of

Gushan Vegetable.

All borrowings are in RMB.

At 31 December 2018, entrusted loans are repayable within one year or on
demand, and were interest-bearing at 9% to 12% (2017: 9% to 12%) per

annum.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group had defaulted in its
repayment of entrusted loans which matured in August and September 2016 (“the
loans payable”). The loans payable of RMB299,116,000 were secured by
310,317 000 ordinary shares (2016: 310,317,000 ordinary shares) in the
Company held by Mr. Huang Weiping, key management personnel of the
Group, representing 11.9% (2017: 12.6%) of the issued share capital of the
Company as af 31 December 2018. At 31 December 2018, the negotiation
to settle the outstanding entrusted loans of RMB299,116,000 (2017:
RMB299,116,000) was still ongoing. The abovementioned defaulted loans
were recorded in current liabilities as at 31 December 2018.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS

(a)

The convertible bonds issued on 12 April 2017 (“the
April 2017 CBs”):

On 12 April 2017, the Company issued April 2017 CBs
with an aggregate principal amount of HK$250,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB221,793,000) in two
tranches, tranche | amounted to HK$ 135,000,000 and
tranche I amounted to HK$115,000,000 at face value.
The Company incurred fransactions cost of approximately
HK$7,500,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB6,654,000) for the issue of the April 2017 CBs. For
defails, please refer to the Company’s announcement on @
April 2017. Major terms of the April 2017 CBs are as
below:

(i) The April 2017 CBs carry 12% coupon interest per
annum payable in arrears quarterly. Unless redeemed
or repurchased early, the original maturity dafe of the
April 2017 CBs is the first anniversary of the issue
date (the “Original Maturity Date”), subject to the
bondholder’s right fo extend the maturity date initially
for a period of up to one year (the "Extended
Maturity”) and also for a period of up to one year
after the Extended Maturity by notice in writing to the
Company (the “Further Extended Maturity”). If the April
2017 CBs are not fully converted before the maturity
date, the Company will redeem all the outstanding
convertible bonds plus the inferest accrued but unpaid

to the bondholder.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continved)
(@) The convertible bonds issued on 12 April 2017 (“the
Apri| 2017 CBs"): (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

If the average closing share price of the Company
during any six consecutive months within the period
commencing from issuance date on 12 April 2017 to
the maturity date has never, at any point of time,
reached or exceeded the conversion price, the
Company shall, upon redemption of the April 2017
CBs, compensate the bondholder in cash so that the
bondholder is guaranteed an annualised return of
13% for the period commencing from issuance date
to the first anniversary of issuance date and an
annualised retun of 16% for the period commencing
from the day following the first anniversary of issuance
date to the date of redemption.

Commencing from the third month after the issue date
to the maturity date, the Company may with the
consent from the bondholder, request for early
redemption of the outstanding tranche | of the April
2 017 - CBs: instlve prin Gt somoumtaot
HK$135,000,000, in whole or in part. Upon
redemption due to such event, the Company shall
compensate the bondholder in cash so that such
bondholder is guaranteed an annualised return of
12% for the period commencing from the issue date
to the date of early redemption.

If the aggregate shareholding of the management
level shareholders in the Company is less than 30% of
the entire share capital of the Company on a fully
diluted basis, or on any trading day, the average
closing price of the Company is lower than 50% of
the closing price of the Company on the issue date,
the bondholder may request for early redemption.

The bondholder has the right fo convert the principal
amount of the April 2017 CBs info ordinary shares of
HK$0.1 each of the Company from the first business
day following the first anniversary of the issue date up
to and including the day preceding the Extended
Maturity or Further Extended Maturity at an initial
conversion price of HK$3.0 per share but subject to
adjustments at any time during the term of the April
2017 CBs, subject to the minimum public float
requirement.
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(a)

The convertible bonds issued on 12 April 2017 (“the
Apri| 2017 CBs”): (Continued)

The April 2017 CBs contain two components, the liability
and equity components. The initial fair value of the two
components was defermined based on gross proceeds at
issuance. The initial fair value less allocated transaction
costs of the liability component was estimated fo be
approximately RMB214,020,000 as at the issuance date
using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing
Model, taking into account the terms and conditions of the
April 2017 CBs. In subsequent periods, the liability
component is measured at amortised cost using effective
inferest rate method. The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the April 2017 CBs is 16% per annum. The
residual amount less allocated transaction costs representing
the value of the equity component of approximately
RMB1,119,000, was presented in equity under the
heading “convertible bonds equity reserve”.

The fair value of the liability component was defermined
using the Monte Carlo Model and Binomial Option Pricing
Model and the major inputs info the model are as follows:

RA %5 80 2% P E
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Pursuant to the terms and conditions, commencing from the
third month affer the issue date to the maturity date, the
Company may notify the bondholder for early redemption
of the outstanding April 2017 CBs in the principal amount
of HK$135,000,000. In the event of such early
redemption, the Company would compensate the
bondholder an annualised refurn of 12%, which is equal to
the inferest rafe, for the period commencing from the issue
date to the date of early redemption.

The Company redeemed the April 2017 CBs tranche | in
the principal amount of HK$135,000,000 on 11 August
LA

HK$3.097%& T
HK$3.007& 7T
39%

0%

12 months & A
0.97%
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)

(a)

28. AIARRES (&)

The convertible bonds issued on 12 April 2017 (“the (@ R2017F4B8 128 BTH A
Apri| 2017 CBs”): (Continued) BREZH(2017F48 2R E
1) &)
The Board of Directors (the “Board”) announces that the Bxg((Exg)EMh  AodE
tranche Il of the April 2017 CBs in the principal amount of R2018F4A12BEEB R KX ¢
HK$35,000,000, together with the interest accrued 35,000,000 Jt #) #2017 F
thereon, has been repaid by the Company on 12 April AR EBBMBRESEREFHE -
2018. In addition, the Company is notified by the BEoh - RATR2018F4A11H
bondholder on 11 April 2018 that the bondholder has BEEFHEASH  BEFFEAEAR
transferred the Tranche Il CBs in the principal amount of MERERERAR ([HARAE
HK$80,000,000 (the “Remaining Tranche Il Convertible E K4 %380,000,000 TTHIZE |1 #E
Bonds”) to Peaceful Wealth International Limited (the 2017 FA A EBBRESH (AT F
"Transferee”) and the Transferee has exercised its right to I g EmRES ) - RAEABRTT
extend the maturity date of the Remaining Tranche Il R EAER - BIR2017F 4 A ER
Convertible Bonds for one (1) year in accordance with the REHGERRIEGERG T E I
terms and conditions of April 2017 CBs. AIEBRESEEE—(1)F -
The convertible bonds have been split info the liability and AMBRESFE SRS T BERE
equity components as follows: MmED
Tranche | Tranche I Remaining Tranche Il
I Eg BTEENH
Liability Equity Liability Equity Liability Equity
component  component component component component  component Totol
BEHS &34 BEHS E&dS &S5 i) @t
(At amortsed (Residual (At amorfised Residual (At amortised [Residual
cosf] amount] cosf amount] cosf] amount]
(EEEA)  (BTeE) (REERE)  (BTeE) (REMIA)  (BTeE)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  AR%TE ARMTT AR%TR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
At the date of issue RETEE 115,571 604 08,449 515 - - 215,139
Inferest charge &R 8,747 - 11,067 - - - 19814
Inferest peid BRFE [4,671) - (8,569) - - - (13,240)
Exchange realignment B AR 4,578) - 5,776) - - - (10,354)
Repayment 7 (115,069 (604) = 2 = Z (115,673)
At 31 December 2017 ond - R2017%12A31R
1 Jonuary 2018 R2018F1A1R = = 95,171 315 = = 95,686
Infres charge fSER = = 4,104 - 5,800 - 9913
Inferest peid BRFIE - - (3,174) - (5,809) - (8,983
Exchange realignment 5 EE = = (4,046 - 6,058 - 2012
Repayment &R 5 = 28,017) (157) = = (28,174)
Transfer o Remaining Tranche I AZA T &5 137
Converfible Bonds Bl {p = > (64,038) (358) 64,038 358 %
At 31 December 2018 R2018€12A318 = = = - 70,096 358 70,454
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
The convertible bonds issued on 11 August 2017 (“the
August 2017 CBs"):

(b)

On 11 August 2017, the Company issued August 2017
CBs with an aggregate principal amount of
HK$600,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB511,416,000) at face value. The Company incurred
transactions cost of approximately HK$ 18,000,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB15,343,000) for the
issue of the August 2017 CBs. For defails, please refer fo
the Company’s announcement on 31 July 2017. Major
terms of the August 2017 CBs are as below:

(i)

(i)

The August 2017 CBs carry 8% coupon interest per
annum payable in arrears quarterly. Unless redeemed
or repurchased early, the original maturity date of the
August 2017 CBs is the second anniversary of the
issue date (the “Maturity Date”). If the August 2017
CBs are not fully converted before the Maturity Date,
the Company will redeem all the outstanding
convertible bonds at nominal value plus the interest
accrued but unpaid to the bondholder.

If the average closing share price of the Company
during any six consecutive months within the period
commencing from the issue date to the Maturity Date
has never, at any point of time, reached or exceeded
the conversion price of August 2017 CBs, the
Company shall, upon redemption of August 2017
CBs amounting to HK$400,000,000, compensate
the bondholders in cash so that the bondholder of
such HK$400,000,000 August 2017 CBs is
guaranteed an annualised return of 12% for the
period commencing from the issue dafe to the date of
redemption.

The bondholder has the right fo convert the principal
amount of the August 2017 CBs info ordinary shares
of HK$0.1 each of the Company on any business
day from the issue date up to and including the
Maturity Date at an initial conversion price of HK$3.0
per share but subject to adjustments at any time during
the term of the August 2017 CBs, subject to the
minimum public float requirement.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Continued)
(b) The convertible bonds issued on 11 August 2017 (“the
August 2017 CBs”): (Continued)

The August 2017 CBs contain two components, the liability
and equity components. The initial fair value of the two
components was defermined based on gross proceeds at
issuance. The initial fair value less allocated transaction
costs of the host liability was estimated o be approximately
RMB448,959,000 as af the issuance date using the Monte
Carlo Model and Discounted Cash Flow Method, taking
into account the terms and conditions of the August 2017
CBs. In subsequent periods, the liability component is
measured at amortised cost using effective interest rate
method. The effective interest rate of the liability component
of the August 2017 CBs is 12% (2017: 15.23%) per
annum. The redemption compensation right is initially and
subsequently measured at fair value of RMB6,933,000.
The residual amount less allocated transaction costs
representing the value of the equity component of
approximately RMB40, 181,000, was presented in equity
under the heading “convertible bonds equity reserve”.

Fair value of the liability component was determined using
the Monte Carlo Model and Discounted Cash Flow Method
and the major inputs into the model are as follows:
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28. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (Confinved)
The convertible bonds issued on 11 August 2017 (“the

(b)
August 2017 CBs”): (Continved)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M I5H =M

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

(b)

The convertible bonds have been split into the liability and

equity components as follows:

At the date of issue
Interest charge
Interest paid
Change in fair value
Exchange realignment

28. AR ES (@)

R201758 A 11 HE&ITH A
REZH (201768 TR E
1) : (&)

AMBEFE N F AW TRERE

N2

=

Liability component

BEHS

Host liability

TEE

(At amortised cost
(FRESER )
RMB’000
AR%T R

At 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Interest charge

Interest paid

Change in fair value

Exchange realignment

RETAH 448,959
MEER 27,038
ERFIE (13,417)
DY EEH -
] (9,144)
R2017% 128318

R2018F1A1R 453,436
M2 B 70,847
ERFIE (40,526)
R EEE =
B R 23,001

At 31 December 2018

M2018F1 A1 H

506,758

29. DEFERRED GOVERNMENT GRANTS

The amount represents government grants received from the
Provincial Finance Bureau, Hunan Province. These government
grants are assetsrelated and are amortised over the useful life of
the related assefs, which is ten years since July 2014.

BN

Redemption
compensation
right

FEEE
(At fair value)
(BAF¥E)
RMB'000
AR®BTT

Equity
component
BRI
(Residual amount)
(T 2£%8)
RMB’000
AR%TR

6,933

40,181

(7,048)
115

29. EFE BT B

SRR $e M ) o £ 0 7 4 B TR RO B
- RSO AERR RN AR
BETEAEREE 20145 7 A 10
£ OB -
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. g
Authorised and Issued Share Capital EERDBITRA

2018 2017
2018 2017 %
RMB’000 RMB'0O00
AR®T R ARETTT

Authorised: RIE
100,000,000,000 ordinary shares 100,000,000,000 %
at HK$0.1 each FRO.1ETHEBER 8,071,000 8,071,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRE#AR :
2,614,994, 419 (2017: 2,614,994 41985 (2017 4 :
2,466,900,969) ordinary shares 2,466,900,9609 j%) 57k 210,244 197,495
A summary of movements in the Company's share capital is as RATIPEARE AT
follows:
Number of Share
shares in issue capital
ERTRAHA [N
RMB'000
AREFTT
At T January 2017 w2017 1 A1H 2,297 445,600 182,579
Exercise of share options T BB AR ) 4,500,000 308
Conversion of the 2015 CB o equity i) 38 001 5 F A PR (E 5 ERES (ii) 00,881,295 8,063
lssuance of ordinary shares {ii) BT ESEIR (i) 74,074,074 6,455
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 MR2017/F12A31B8B X
201841 A1H 2,466,900,969 197,495
Exercise of shape opfions (v) 1T{ERBARHE (iv) 17,282,000 1,394
Issuance of ordinary shares (v} BITLBAR V) 75,980,000 6,687
Exercise of warrants [vi) 1TIERIRRERE vi) 18,101,372 1,462
Issuance of consideration shares (vii) BLTRBIRD (vii) 36,730,078 3,206

At 31 December 2018 2018412431 H 2,614,994,419 210,244

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

fi

(i)

(i)

fiv)

(vi)

(vii)

The subscription right attaching to 4,500,000 share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$2.16 per share resulting in the issue of 4,500,000
shares for a fotal cash consideration, before expenses, of RMB8,592,000. An
amount of RMB841,000 was transferred from the share-based payment reserve
to share premium upon the exercise of the share options.

On 18 April 2017, conversion rights of the 2015 CBs were exercised to convert
the 2015 CBs in the principal amount of USD16,300,000 (equivalent to
RMB112,071,000] at the adjusted conversion price of HK$1.39 to subscribe
90,881,295 ordinary shares of the Company. RMB8,063,000 and
RMB241,075,000 were credited to share capital and share premium
respectively.

On 12 June 2017, 74,074,074 ordinary shares were issued at HK$2.70 each
to an independent third party, Prosper Rich Investments Limited, which resulted in

proceeds of HK$ 194,000,000 (equivalent to RMB168,978,000).

The subscription rights atfaching to 17,282,000 share options were exercised at
the subscription price of HK$1.13 per share, resulting in the issue of
17,282,000 shares for a total cash consideration, before expenses, of
HK$19,528,000 (equivalent to RMB15,750,000). An amount of
RMBS5, 374,000 was transferred from the share-based payment reserve to share
premium upon the exercise of the share options.

On 4 October 2018, 75,980,000 ordinary shares were issued at HK$4.80
each fo an independent third party Hongkong Fule International Investment
Limited (“Hongkong Fule”), which resulted in proceeds of HK$364,704,000
lequivalent to RMB320,922,000).

18,101,372 shares were issued for cash at a weighted average subscription
price of HK$1.39 per share pursuant fo the exercise of the Company's warrants
for a total cash considerations, before expenses, of HK$25,197,000 (equivalent

to RMB20,355,000).

On 17 September 2018, the Company issued 36,730,078 ordinary shares to
the suppliers pursuant fo an agreement as disclosed in the announcement dated
15 August 2017. RMB3,206,000 and RMB90,813,000 had been transferred
from consideration share reserve to share capital and share premium respectively.

30. A& (&)

RA %5 80 2% P E

Wik

(i) 4,500,00017 FE AR AP SRR VIR AR 2.16
BILRBETE  ERURSRREBECTE
FEFRX) ARY 8,592,000 7T %77 4,500,000
BRA% 17 - BEARMETTIEIR - —F AR¥ 841,000
B FIR T i AR D B ER N R R HEER

BEE -

(ii) R2017F4818H 17 2015 F A[ R &
Z5H SRR A SR S B R (B 1 398 gk
A& HER16,300,000F T(HERARE
112,071,0007T) #2015 F AR EH + LA
REARRF0,881 205K E B - AR
8,063,0007T } A E # 241,075,000 7T 5 5l
AR R A A B

(iii) R2017F6R128 ' XRREREKR2.70%
THERMBIE=-FFTEREARAAE
1774074074k E @R G HRIE R
194,000,000 t( # & BN A R ¥
168,978,0007T) °

(iv) 17,282,00017 IR AT RE R E R TR
1B T RBEITE BERAMN
19,528,000 7T (HBER AR 15,750,000
TINREEREBE(TEERX) &7
17,282,000 i f&fn - —% AR ¥ 5,374,000
TERFIRT R ERERETREHARD AR
BEREEEERDEE -

v) M2018 104 H » 75,980,000 A% % i ik
TIRERAB0BTHERETTELE=H
EEERLBERREARAR([HEETL]
¥ 15364,704000%8 T(HER AR %
320,922,000 7T) WP 1S 3KIA

Vi REAARBREZINTEBR - NREIER
BRIGETHMEFORBEET
18,101,372 /% fxfn - LARER4AIR & KRB (T
BIERX) /25,197,000 T (HHERARK
20,355,0007T) °

(vl H201859A17H  RIEBHR201748
A15AMAEAMRE RS @ AREMHE
7 % 736,730,078/ * @ K- AR
3,206,000t & AR ¥ 90,813,000 LE 2 5l
mAREROFEEEERA KR EE
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

share option scheme are as follows; all options are to be
seffled by the physical delivery of shares.

31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. EREE

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted on RATREEBRESE - HR20144 1
28 January 2014 and has come info effect upon the Company’s R28BERAM RN ARFR2014F2 A8
listing on 21 February 2014 whereby the directors of the Q1 B EMRBRAER Bt XAARESRE
Company, are authorised, at their discretion, to invite any director BEE TRBEREERRADHEY
or employee of the Group and any other person who in the sole AEEFELERNASEEAESNIE
discretion of the directors has contributed or will contribute to the B REMEMA T FBERE - UREA
Group to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. NERRAD o

(o)  The key terms and conditions related to the grants under the (o) ERARIRBEASME ST B LA A

M EZERRIEFEDOT - BB
BREEERINRNEE -

Options granted fo
execufive directors
RIYTEENBERE
— On 2 uly 2014 24,000 One third on the first anniversary,
—R2014%€7 828 one fhird on the second anniversary,
and the remaining on the third
anniversary of the grant
=AZ-REENE—BE -
A RE_REREBRE=RE
— On7 May 2015 8,000  Same as above
—R2015%587H AL
— On 31 Moy 2016 1,000  Same as above
- R2016%5A318 Eis
Options granted fo
employees
Ry EEMERE
—On2uly 2014 89,000  Same as above
- R2014%7A2H Eis
— On7 May 2015 94,360 Same as above
—R2015%5878 Bl
— On 31 May 2016 26,930  Same as above
—R2016F5A31H Eis

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

31. BT E ()

(a) (Continued) (@ &)
Options granted fo certain
eligible participants
RYETRERSEANERRE
— On 23 uly 2015 7,600 On the first amniversary of the date upon which the ~ Six months commencing from the
—R2015%7 8238 share opfions are accepted subject fo the grantees  expiry of the first anniversary of the
remaining as eligible persons at the date of vesfing  date of acceptance and expiring on
REREEZANEBFER  HARAR the lost day
BEASANALERAL BRI S BF RN
EERE—ARERZAEA
— On 31 May 2016 5,200 On the first anniversary of the date of the grant, 10 years
- R2016E5831 8 subject fo their respecive predetermined annudl -~ 104
sales fargef were achieved
REH AR E—EEEER  WEEKER
BTMRFEHERAR
— On 12 December 2017 29,564 On 31 March 2019 subject fo the grantees 6.3 years
—R2017%E128128 achieving the pre-defermined performance farget 6,34
for the period from 1 December 2017 to
31 December 2018 and the grantees remaining
as eligible persons at the dafe of vesfing
R2019F3A31 R AKX ABTAIETER
2017€12R1BE2018F12 431 AMER
AREARARGERSERARERAL
Total share options 285,654

RhREay

The fair value of services received in refurn for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on the Binomial Opfion
Pricing Model. The contractual life of the share option is
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early

exercise are incorporated info the Binomial Option Pricing
Model.

BRI 2 B AR W 2 [ 3R AR 7% 2 A F
ENS2EEREBEREZAFEFE B
REBREZ A FEGIRE-_ERERX
HIEEEREAFE - BREZANFHT
REZRA 28 AR - IRPE1THE B
ERMA—HAREEBER -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Confinved)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BRESTE (2

(b)

23 July 2015
Share opfions
granted fo
20155
7TA23R
BRERT
Cerfain
eligible
participants
ETRER
98%

BREZAFERRBRR

12 December
2017

Share opions
granted fo
20175
12R12A
BRERT
Certain
eligible
parficipants
ETRER
98%

31 May 2016
Share options granted fo

2016558318
BRERT
Cerfain
Other eligible
employees  parficipants
ETRER
98%

Executive
directors

HrEs  HiER

(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions
2y 2014 7 May 2015
Share options granted fo  Share opfions granted to
201457728 015£5A7H
BRERT BRERT
Executive Other  Executive Other
directors  employees  directors  employees
HtifES S
Fair value af WitEREZ
meosurement dote (HKS) — ATE(HET) 0.44 0.39 0.71 0.58
Share price [HKS) RE (T 1.07 1.07 1.68 1.68
Exercise price (HKS) BT 1.13 5 1.68 1.68
Expected volatiity BEHRR 45.54% 45.54% 46.20% 46.20%
Historical volaiiffy it 45.54%  45.54%  46.20%  46.20%
Expected Ife BHEH 10years  10vears  10yeas  10years
105 108 105 105
Expected dividend yield ~ EEIRE 3h b 3% 3%
Riskfree inferest rate EFRFIE
lbosed on Hong Kong ~ (BEBINEES
Exchange Fund Notes) ZEFIRALE) 2.059% 2.059% 1.745% 1.745%
Exercise muliple g 2.8 2.2 28 )
Postesting exit rate BEGTLE 0% 5.44% 0% 16.12%

The expected life of the options is based on the historical
data over the past three years and is not necessarily
indicative of the exercise patterns that may occur. The
expected volatility reflects the assumption that the hisforical
volatility is indicative of future trends, which may also not
necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the options granfed was incorporated
info the measurement of fair value.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR

022 122 1117 145 145
1.67 3.05 3.05 3.05 370
216 3.60 3.60 3.66 370
4943 5000%  50.00%  5000%  41.61%
4943 5000%  50.00%  5000%  41.61%
1.5vears  10yeas  10years  10years 6.3 years
1.5% 105 105 106 635
3% 1.47% 1.47% 1.47% 0.92%
0239%  1286%  1.286%  1.286%  1.647%
E 28 22 = B

= 9.22% 9.22% = =

BREsBRFHINENBE=F
MWESLBEAE  RORAEHR
MTTEENAIER - AR IERR
BERDHERRRRBE 2 BR&
MARBHRERERER

EROBREL BT AQFEFE
B EL {45 B o
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continved) 31. BRERE (2
(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions (Continved) b) BREZATERBRE)
The following share options were outstanding under the FERIBIEAZ EARITEAT B -
scheme during the year:
2018 2017
2018 F 2017 &%
Weighted- Weighted-
Number of average average
options SEETEN  Number of exercise
price options price
pilk: R il B
BREHE Gl BERRES A 1T1EE
‘000 HKS$ ‘000 HK$
FB BT TR BT
At 1 January R1A1H 187,998 y i 167,756 1.99
Granted during the year ERNFELH - - 29,564 3.70
Exercised during the year ER{TE (17,282) (1.13) [4,500) (2.16)
lapsed during the year F R CARY) (1.83) (4,822) (2.23)
At 31 December 2 et 161,602 24 187,998 RIS
Exercisable af 31 December 712 A 31 H
Al F17E 120,149 . 1O AHeH! 772
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
The share price at the date of exercise for share options exercised
during the year was HK$5.00 per share (2017: HK$5.23).

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share opfions
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

31. BREE

FARBRETEABMAITEZRER
FAR5.00%T (20174 : 5.23%7T) °

RB|EBMRARITENBRAENTTEE
RATHEHLAT -

Number of options

Exercise price

2018 2018 &
11,928 L3 2 July 2014 to 1 July 2024
20147 HA2HE 202471 H
88,470 1.68 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025
20155 R7BE2025F5H6H
31,640 3.66 31 May 2016 to 30 May 2026
2016531 B2 202645 H30H
29,564 3.70 12 December 2017 to 11 December 2022
P ONa=R 2wl R ® 7212 A RINE
161,602
2017 2017 &

Exercise period

HExEE H IfEE  17EHE
‘000 HK$ per share
TR BT
30,754 113 2]July 2014 1o 1 July 2024
2014%7H2B&E2024%7 A1 H
95,600 1.68 7 May 2015 to 6 May 2025
2015578220255 H6H
32,080 3.66 31 May 2016 to 30 May 2026
2016531 BE2026% 5 H30H
29,564 3.70 12 December 2017 to 11 December 2022
D@l osim U ) | 7 P [
187,998

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

In the prior year, the fair value of the share options granted was
HK$109,387,000 (HK$1.45 each), of which the Group
recognised a share option expense of RMB2,339,000 during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

The 17,282,000 share options exercised during the year
resulted in the issue of 17,282,000 ordinary shares of the
Company and new share capital of RMB1,394,000 (before
issue expenses), as further detailed in note 30 to the financial
statements.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
161,602,000 share options outstanding under the scheme
representing approximately 6.2% of the Company’s shares in
issue as af the date of approval of these financial statements. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
161,602,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and
additional share capital of HK$ 16,160,200 and share premium
of HK$362,737,000 (before issue expenses).

31.

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

BT El )

RBEFE  BENBREORTEA
109,387,000 T (Bp1.4587T) - &
R AR®2,339,0007T B B AN 5 B R &
E2017F12A31 AL FEHRRER
MBI -

FATTE 17,282,000 17 B IR IE B B 21T
KRR T 17,282,000 B 18 Az b ¥ 18 AR
AR 1,394,000 7T (HIBR TR AT) -
ABEENMEHRERMES0

RBEER - ARBREHEIE T HARITE
BVRERRHE /R 161,602,00013 © #E R R
ZEMBRRELEBBRARRE BT
WD #96.2%  RIBARRIRGEARERE -
BRTERRTENERESEHET
161,602,000 & 28 2 A] #5388 AR K %8
SN IR 216,160,200 T K& B 13 4% B
362,737,000 7T (R EFTRZAN)
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32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity on pages 96 to 97 of the financial
statements.

() Exchange reserve
The exchange reserve comprises all foreign currency
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of the Company and certain subsidiaries with
functional currency other than Renminbi. The reserve is dealt
with in accordance with the accounting policy set out in
nofe 2.4 to the financial statements.

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises mainly capital contributions
from shareholder in respect of the contingent considerations
for the acquisition of Jinxin and Xiangbei in November
2010 and August 2011 amounted to RMB33,226,000
and RMB11,555,000 respectively borne by the
shareholder and deemed capital contribution of
RMB77,700,000 being the amount due fo shareholder
waived by the shareholder on 31 December 2012

(iii) Share premium
The application of the share premium account is governed
by the Companies Llaw of the Cayman Islands. Under the
Companies law of the Cayman Islands, the funds in the
share premium account of the Company are distributable to
shareholders of the Company provided that immediately
following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of the business.

(iv) Statutory reserves

In accordance with the Wholly Foreign Owned Enterprise
Llaw applicable to the subsidiaries in the PRC, the
subsidiaries are required to make appropriations to the
Statutory Reserve Fund (the “SRF”). At least 10% of the after
tax profits as determined in accordance with the applicable
PRC accounting standards and regulations must be
allocated to the SRF until the cumulative total of the SRF
reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered capital. Subject
to approval from the relevant PRC authorities, the SRF may
be used to offset any accumulated losses or increase the
registered capital of the subsidiaries. The SRF is not
available for dividend distribution to shareholders.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

32. f#E
AEBRAFERBEFENRESR
REBBRMBHRER ORI ANGFAER
HERZT

(i)

i)

(i)

(iv)

Eifﬁﬁ

AFBRELRE I?ELA/\E@?F;
Ijjﬁﬁféiﬁ%%ﬂ’]$ ARETHEA
mﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁiéﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ\\ﬁ%%
B ZHEREMBERERME24
PRt & st IR R B -

EXRfFEE
BABEBEIZEREREMRRN2010
F11AR0INE8AKELER
MM KAREB(DRBARE
SMehe 010100 BN N S
11,555,000 © BB EAHE) E
B LARBEMN 201241283118
REEMNBREREBEARE
77,700,0007¢C - ERIEEE »

HXT)J/ 15

B RERNEAXFAEHE AR
EERE - BRERERERARE K
RARMDEERNES A DK T A
NAMER - EREEEEDIKIREZ
Bi&  ARBIZABRENNAEER
BIZFIFEDIHRE -

EEREE
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(v)

(vi)

Share-based payment reserve

Share-based payment reserve represents the portion of the
fair value of unexercised share options granted to
employees of the Group at grant date that has been
recognised in accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for equity-seftled share option expense in note 2.4
to the financial statements.

The amount will either be transferred to the share premium
account when the option is exercised, or be released
directly to retained profits if the option is lapsed or forfeited.

Warrant reserve

Warrant reserve arises from the issue of warrants less the
expenses incurred pertaining to the warranfs issue. Upon
the exercise of the warrants, the warrant reserve will be
transferred to share capital and share premium.

On 19 January 2015, the Company issued 133,650,000
warrants fo 7 subscribers at an issue price of HK$0.001
per warrant. Each warrant will entitle its holder to subscribe
for one share of the Company at a subscription price of
HK$1.30 per share. The warrants will be vested in phases
according fo the vesting conditions. The vesting condition is
that the suppliers shall carry out the transactions under their
respective annual procurement agreements, pursuant fo
which the suppliers in aggregate, agree to supply 49,500
fons of copper scrap raw materials to the Group in 2015
at a fixed discount of RMB1,000 per ton. For details,
please refer to the Company's announcement on 19
December 2014,

On 24 February 2015, the Company issued
102,000,000 warrants fo 3 subscribers at an issue price
of HK$0.001 per warrant. Each warrant will entitle its
holder fo subscribe for one share of the Company at a
subscription price of HK$1.50 per share. The warrants will
be vested in phases according fo the vesting conditions.
The vesting condition is that the suppliers shall carry out the
fransactions under their respective annual procurement
agreements, pursuant fo which the suppliers, in aggregate,
agree to supply 30,000 tons of copper scrap raw materials
to the Group from 1 February 2015 to 31 January 2016 at
a fixed discount of RMB2,000 per ton. For details, please
refer to the Company’s announcement on 5 February
20002

32. @B

(v)

(vi)

IR RER AR

UB I RERNNRFEEREEET
AEE R B MARITENBRERE
HEBNQFERD - ZAFES
RBMBRRMNE24TNEREE
BB R S TR BV 2 5t BURRER

ZEBERNERREETERERS
Bt e (B R - o fied 8 AR SR AR Bl 1R
AR AEERERSREREN -

oo IR HE R e

R B (5 1R IR B 3R 1T AR R B R
REEBRITHELZNRAX - B
BEETER RBEEHESE
BERANBDEE -

R2015F1 198 AR A%
TESHRRBRERCCOETA/
% RHE 77 317 133,650,000 17 R AX
BE- - SOHRBREESHTERSE
AERBESKR.0BTRBAR
ARt o RBEERRIESRB
EHEDRERBE - BRI SR
BRRERES B FERERZR
TRZET Bt SHEBRE
R2015F LB EHETWA R
1,000 7T M A &£ B & 7t FE B & 4
R ¥149, 50008 - FIFHF2E AR
RIBAIR2014F 12198 AE °

M2015%2H248 » A alikE#
TEESRAKRERO0.COETM 3
2 R85 #17 102,000,000 17 7R AR
BE - SHRBEERETERA
ABRRBESKR.S0BTRBAR
A=A o RBREE B RIESE
R DR - 7B IR S ILE
AR RERES A FEHERZEER
TRET Bl SHEFRE
R201542H 18 & E2016%F 1
ABTBENBEEFESWARKE
2,000 TRAAEEAHEREER
# #130,000M - FEHFLHE AR
AIHMR2015F2A5SHNARSE -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

(vi)

(vii)

Warrant reserve (Continved)

No warrant was issued in 2016, 2017 and 2018. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, 18,101,000 (2017:
nil) warrants were exercised. As a result, RMB8,519,000
was released from the warrant reserve, RMB 1,462,000
and RMB27,412,000 were credited to share capital and
share premium respectively. As at 31 December 2018,
there were 9,613,000 (2017: 27,714,000} warrants
outstanding and to be expired on 29 December 2019
(2017: 29 December 2018).

Consideration shares reserve

Consideration shares reserve arises from the issue of
consideration shares less cash consideration incurred
perfaining fo the consideration shares issue. Upon the
allotment of the consideration shares, the consideration
shares reserve will be transferred to share capital and share
premium.

On 15 August 2017, the Company, each of the relevant
suppliers and each of the relevant subscribers entered info
an Annual Procurement Agreement (“the APA"), pursuant to
which each of the suppliers agreed to supply a targeted
amount of copper scrap raw materials fo the Group from
15 August 2017 to 14 August 2018. For each ton of
copper scrap raw materials supplied under the APA, the
Company will pay up to RMB3,000 by way of issuance of
a maximum number of 1,172 consideration shares at an
issue price of HK$3.00 per consideration share and settle
the remainder in cash. For details, please refer to the
Company's announcement on 15 August 2017.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

32. RESERVES (Conti

(vii) Con5|derqhon shares reserve (Co

As the targeted amount of supp|y of copper scrap raw
materials from the suppliers is 56,000 tfons in aggregate,
the maximum number of consideration shares that the
Company may issue pursuant fo the APA is 65,632,000
shares. The outstanding consideration shares will be allotted
and issued fo the subscribers in one lot within 10 business
days from 26 June 2019

During the year, the Group purchased 36,541 fons (2017
16,323 tons) of copper scrap raw materials from these
suppliers and accordingly, the Group recognised
consideration share reserve of RMB109,625,000 (2017
RMB48,970,000).

(viii) Convertible bonds equity reserve

Convertible bonds equity reserve arises from the residual
amount of the net proceeds of convertible bonds less the
fair value of liability component and derivative component
at the datfe of issuance. The equity component will remain
as a separate line item within equity until the conversion
option is exercised (in which case the corresponding portion
of the equity component will be transferred to share capital
and share premium). Where the conversion option remains
unexercised at the expiry date, the balance will be released
fo the refained earnings/accumulated losses.

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION

(al

On 27 March 2018, the Group acquired 100% inferest in
Silver Eminent Limited (“Silver Eminent”) and its subsidiaries
(“Silver Eminent Group”). Silver Eminent is engaged in
trading of copper products through Zhaofeng, ifs subsidiary
in the PRC. The acquisition was made as part of the
Group's strategy fo expand its market share of recycled
copper products in the PRC. The purchase consideration for
the acquisition was in the form of cash amounting fo
RMB139,161,000 (equivalent to HK$158,824,000) of
which RMB63,567,000 (equivalent to HK$79,412,000)
was paid in March 2018 with the remaining subject fo
earn-out arrangement as further discussed below and by
way of allotment and issuance of consideration shares,
which are also subject to earn-out arrangement as further
detailed below, with an estimated value of RMB467,000
at the acquisition date.

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

32. #®E )

(vii)

(viii) 7

RERGD 8 (E)
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26HE10EEXE R —RMERH
NEBEITTREET °

REE ARERZFHEABE
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33. XHAH

(a)
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fﬁﬁf BEPEMNBARKENRSE
MEREE - RANBRAAEERE
AERTEBEFERT SR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) 33. XBEH @

pill

(a)  (Continued) (@) (&)
The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Silver RUEE B - RFEE 2 AI# A&
Eminent Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ERBEZATFENT :
Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Yo B A HE AR
TR ST
RMB’000
ARETT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB LR 17
Inventories A 432
Trade and other receivables, gross BE5 R EMEWRIEEZE 106,775
Provision for impairment of trade and

other receivables B 5 K E A YR IRRE R =
Cash and cash equivalents HekReFEER 15
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e IR (106,769)
Total identifiable net assefs af fair value RAFER 2 AIBRFEERR 470
Goodwill on acquisition WB P EE R 2 63,564
Consideration KB 64,034

Consideration KB
— Satisfied by cash — UREEE 63,567
— Shares subject to eam-out payment (note) — RBRAENRBEITHORS () 467
64,034

Note: As part of the sale and purchase agreement, contingent consideration, in
the form of cash and shares (“Contingent Shares”), is payable, which is
dependent on net profits of Silver Eminent Group during the 36-month
period subsequent to the acquisition. The initial amounts recognised were
based on the closing market price of the Company on the Stock
Exchange at the date of acquisition and the probability to meet the nef
profit target and is within Level 3 fair value measurement. The
consideration is due for final measurement and payment to the former
shareholders 90 days affer each financial statements approval date. At
the date of approval of these financial statements, no further significant
changes fo the consideration are expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value measurement
of contingent consideration are as follows:

= Sales volume growth ranging from 6% to 15% from 2018 to
2020; and

= Pre-tax discount rate at 8.33%.

A significant increase (decrease) in the net profit of Silver Eminent Group
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
contingent consideration liability. A significant increase (decrease) in the
discount rate would result in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair
value of the contingent consideration liability.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(al

(Continued)

Based on the sale and purchase agreement dated 15
December 2017, the contingent consideration will be satisfied
by the issuance of Contfingent Shares in three tranches in the
following manner:

(i) If Silver Eminent Group achieves net profits of
RMB25,000,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018, a maximum of 11,610,000 Contingent Shares

shall be issued:

() If Silver Eminent Group achieves net profits of
RMB55,000,000 for the two years ending 31
December 2019, a maximum of 37,305,000

Contingent Shares shall be issued; and

i) If Silver Eminent Group achieves net profits of
RMB95,000,000 for the three years ending 31
December 2020, a maximum of 41,796,000

Contingent Shares shall be issued.

Assuming the maximum number of Contingent Shares is being
allotted and issued to the seller, 41,796,000 shares will be
issued under the sale and purchase agreement, representing
approximately 1.69% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the acquisition date and approximately 1.67%
of the issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by the
allotment and issue of the Contingent Shares. The Contingent
Shares to be issued will rank pari passu in all respect with the
shares then in issue on the relevant issue date.

The fair values of the trade and other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to RMB106,775,000. The gross
contractual amounts of trade and other receivables was

RMB106,775,000. No frade and other receivables are
expected fo be uncollectible.

33. %i%él{# (4&

(a)

(%)
BEBEA217F128158H
BEE e IAREBATI AR
D= HEOR BT ARRAD AT

(i) MR EE N EZE 2018F 12
B3 ALFEEEREMAR
#25000,0007T * Bl&x%
2% 1711,610,000 8% =k 28 %
1%

i) (HEEMHEBREZ2019F 12
A 31 8 I-M1EFEERLEF
AR #55,000,0007T * Bll &
% ¥ %517 37,305,000 f& 5 A
&1 &

i) fHERHFEE R B ZE 20205 12
A3 HIE=AFEERMAF
AR ¥ G5 000,000t @ Al &
% #8217 41,796,000 B& 5 A
B o

SRBAESTREENETRSHE
BHARD - AIRBEEBH S %
741,796,000 fx 7 - #H & R &
AARKBEMEBETRALY
1.69% A R 8 B % R 31T S A B D
BARADRADHTRALD
1.67% ° % T 81T 2 AR 1§ 2
REEZETEPEREHITHRND
KRBT EZFA RS

B 5 MHEMEYRIEN KSR B2
ANTEER/ARE106,775,0007T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(al

(b)

(Continued)
An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

(a)

(&)
BERWEBEMNBRRMNREREDIT
LI

RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration ReERE 63,567
Cash and bank balances acquired FTIEE VIR © MERTT 48R (15)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents  FFAREEEBAMSREREZRE R
included in cash flows from BeEEREFRL
investing activities 8957

Since the acquisition, Silver Eminent Group contributed
RMB129,862,000 to the Group's revenue and loss of
RMB10,595,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place af the beginning of the year,
the revenue and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB20,802,029,000 and RMB20,549,000,

respectively.

On 4 April 2018, the Group acquired a 100% inferest in
Value Link and its subsidiaries (“Value Link Group”). Value Link
is engaged in production of copper products through
Rongcheng, its subsidiary in the PRC. The acquisition was
made as part of the Group's strategy to expand ifs market
share of recycled copper products in the PRC. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash
amounting to RMB115,309,000 (equivalent to
HK$131,601,000), by way of allotment and issuance of
Contingent Shares estimated at RMB6 1,266,000 at the
acquisition date and by way of assumption of a loan issued by
Sure Victor Global Limited (“Sure Victor”), the seller, to China
Rongsheng Metal limited, a subsidiary of Value link, atf the
prevailing benchmark inferest rate as specified by the People's
Bank of China ("PBOC") per annum for a term commencing
from the complefion date to 31 March 2021, estimated at
RMB115,309K at the acquisition date. Both the Contingent
Shares and the loan are subject to an earn-out arrangement as
further detailed below.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

(b)

BB AR - R E AR EER
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20,802,029,0007t & A E %
20,549,000 7T °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Confinved)
(b)  (Continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Value
Link Group as af the date of acquisition were as follows:

RA %5 80 2% P E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

33. ¥¥E6t@
b) (&)
RUWEHE  MBEEE A #AE
ErBEBEZATENT :

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
Wi s s B2
R
RMB'000
AREBTIT

Property, plant and equipment

ME - WE MK 5,506

Inventories rE 54,714
Trade and other receivables, gross B 5 NHEMEWFIEERE 20,542
Provision for impairment of frade and B 5 K E A R R IRR BB
other receivables =
Cash and cash equivalents RehReFEEHR 168
Trade and other payables B 5 N H MR RIA (75,741
Obligation under finance leases MERETEE (4,282)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAER 2 A RRFEER R 907
Goodwill on acquisition Wi P EE g & ACIGOT
Consideration rRE 291,884
Consideration RE
— Satisfied by cash — UNHeH&EE [BERE00
— Shares subject to earn-out payment — RBEAENRBEITHRG (BHEE(I)
(note (i) 61,266
— loan subject fo eam-out payment — RBEEAN @A RETE R B (i)
(note {ii)) RIESHES)
291,884
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (c

(b)

tinued)

(Continued)

Notfes:

(i

(il

As part of the sale and purchase agreement, Contingent Shares are fo be
sefiled is payable, which is dependent on net profits of Value Link Group
during the 36-month period subsequent to the acquisition. The initial
amounts recognised were based on the closing market price of the
Company on the Stock Exchange at the date of acquisition and the
probability to meet the net profit target and is within Level 3 fair value
measurement. The consideration is due for final measurement and
payment to the former shareholders 9O days after each financial
statement approval date. At the date of approval of these financial
statements, no further significant changes to the consideration are
expected.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value measurement
of contingent consideration are as follows:

— Sales growth ranging from 6 to 15% from 2018 to 2020; and

o Pre-tax discount rate at 8.33%.

A significant increase (decrease] in the discount rate would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the contingent
consideration liability.

Based on the sale and purchase agreement dated 7 February 2018, the
Contingent Shares will be issued in three tranches in the following
manner:

(a) If Value Link Group achieves net profits of RMB45,000,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2018, a maximum of

23,621,000 Contingent Shares shall be issued;

(b) If Value Link Group achieves net profits of RMB105,000,000 for
the two years ending 31 December 2019, a maximum of
55,116,000 Contingent Shares shall be issued; and

(c) If Value Link Group achieves net profits of RMB 180,000,000 for
the three years ending 31 December 2020, a maximum of
94,485,000 Contingent Shares shall be issued.

Assuming the maximum number of Contingent Shares is being allotted
and issued to the seller, 94,485,000 shares will be issued under the
sale and purchase agreement, representing approximately 3.83% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the acquisition date and
approximately 3.69% of the issued share capital of the Company as
enlarged by the allotment and issue of the Contingent Shares. The
Contingent Shares to be issued will rank pari passu in all respect with the
shares then in issue on the relevant issue date.

If Value link Group fails to achieve an aggregate net profits of
approximately RMB69,857,000 for the three years ending 31
December 2020, Sure Victor shall unconditionally waive a maximum of
100% of the loan.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

(b)

(%)
B

(i)
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b)

(Continued)

The fair values of the trade and other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to RMB20,542,000. The gross
contractual amounts of trade and other receivables was
RMB20,542,000. No trade and other receivables are

expected to be uncollectible.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of

(b)

RA %5 80 2% P E

pill

(&)

B 5 & E b e W R IE R Y B B ey
AT EEAR®20,542,0007T
B REMEWRKIENBE N TR
A AR ¥ 20,542,0007T T8 HA #E
B8 5 R EMEWGIE AT UkE o

ERARBHBARNBRSRESN

subsidiaries is as follows: m

RMB'000
ARETT
Cash consideration ReRE 115,309
Cash and bank balances acquired FTUEE VIR & M IRTT A5 8R (168)

Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents  FFAREBEEEAMSREREZRE R

included in cash flows from ReEEREFRL

investing acfivities 115,141

Since the acquisition, Value Link Group contributed
RMB1,006,694,000 to the Group's revenue and
RMB43,848,000 to the consolidated profit for the year ended
31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place af the beginning of the year,
the revenue and the profit of the Group for the year would

have been RMB20,874,046,000 and RMB17,498,000,

respectively.

BUBLAK  HEEERAEEDN
WA BB A K ®1,0006,694,000
L RBREZE2018F12H31HIE
FENHEARNERARE
43,848,000 7T °

HWEHRZEENEE  AAKE
F RS g M o Bls AR
20,874,046,000Tt k& A R #
17,498,000 7T °
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (c
[c)  On 19 October 2018, the Group och|reo| a 100% inferest in
Sky Harvest and its subsidiaries (“Sky Harvest Group”). Sky
Harvest Group is engaged in production of copper products
through Chengxin, ifs subsidiary in the PRC. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group's strafegy to expand its market
share of recycled copper products in the PRC. The purchase
consideration for the acquisition was in the form of cash
amounting to RMB88,532,000 (equivalent to
HK$1,010,409,000), by way of allotment and issue of
Contingent Shares estimated at RMB195,428,000 (equivalent
to HK$223,040,000) at the acquisition date and by way of
assumption of a loan issued by Advance Splendid limited
(“Advance Splendid”), the seller, to China Sanmei Copper
Limited, a subsidiary of Sky Harvest, at the prevailing
benchmark interest rate as specified by the PBOC per annum
for a ferm commencing from the completion date to 31 March
2021, estimated at RMB70,826,000 (equivalent fo
HK$80,833,000) at the acquisition date. Both the Contingent
Shares and the loan are subject fo an eam-out arrangement as
further defailed below.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Sky

ed) 33. XAt @)
) R2018F10A 198 - AEEKHE

RELEMBRAR(IREEE])
100% - REKEEBEFH
MBARRBRERERLE - £
KRB RAEERBRAERTEBFE
EMM SN EBRHN—ED o i
BHNBERERRESARE
88,532,000 ( # & R
1,010,409,0007% 7t ) & Ac 8 K 0
WEBRHBRTHFASEAARSE
195,428,000t ( # & »
223,040,000 7T ) #9 3k A B 17 LA
MBBAERDBERKRER QA
(&) BH)RNKERRZHE
ARSBITHEENRITELEERNEMR
REZMBARTBE=RFEER
NABETHFEERARE
Fo820000m( M B »B
80,833,0007% 7t ) (Eﬁsﬁ?‘%é TEAX
Elﬁyﬁ;t 2021 3H31B)ME
Koo HRRMEERBE T X~
F AV ERMET L BERR o

RUERE - XREEEZAI#MNE

Harvest Group as at the date of acquisition were as follows: ENBEZAFENT :
Fair value
recognised
on ocqumhon
Wi B s B2
> AT
RMB'000
ARETT
Properg/ plant and equipment mME - MEN LA
Prepaid land lease payments ANt fﬂﬁcﬂ‘i;’( 10,070
Inventories FE 18
Trade and other receivables, gross =E e ey e evit 13,318
Provision for impairment of trade and Z 5 K H ith FE BGRIE R B B
other receivables =
Cash and cash equivalents HekReEEER 404
Tofal identifiable net assefs af fair value RN FER 2 BRI R EERR 46,776
Goodwill on acquisition W Bs P EE HE g & 308,010
Consideration RE 354,786
Consideration B
— Satisfied by cash — UReHE 88,532
— Shares subject to earn-out payment *ET)%EW:'J@:H BITEURRD (ML ()
(note i) 195,428
— Loan subject fo earn-out payments — REBERF B RBETOER ()
(note (iil) 70,826
354,786
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Confinued)
(c)  (Continued)

Notes:

(i

As part of the sale and purchase agreement, Contingent Shares are fo be
issued, which is dependent on net profits of Sky Harvest Group during
the 36-month period subsequent to the acquisition. The initial amount
recognised were based on the closing market price of the Company on
the Stock Exchange at the date of acquisition and the probability to meet
the net profit target and is within Level 3 fair value measurement. The
consideration is due for final measurement and payment to the former
shareholders 90 days affer each financial statements approval date. At
the date of approval of these financial statements, no further significant
changes to the consideration are expectfed.

Significant unobservable valuation inputs for the fair value measurement
of confingent consideration are as follows:

— Sales volume growth from 6% to 15% from 2018 to 2020; and

= Pre-tax discount rafe is at 8.33%.

A significant increase/(decrease) in the net profit of Sky Harvest Group
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
contingent consideration liability. A significant increase/(decrease] in the
discount rate would result in a significant decrease/(increase) in the fair
value of the contingent consideration liability.

Based on the sale and purchase agreement dated 19 October 2018,
the Contingent Shares will be issued in three tranches in the following
manner:

(a) If Sky Harvest Group achieves net profits of RMB35,000,000 for
the year ending 31 December 2019, a maximum of
15,361,000 Confingent Shares shall be issued;

33. ¥¥66t@)

(el

i

(i)

ERBEERHN—B5  BRIRR
B - BURTMHE f4 3618 A BRS X 2
EE AT - P18 FIRIEIE A 5
5 23 TR 9 BB 52 B A M T 1B R A
WFIE BB 3 B R EIR
AT EH BRER - KEHRE
BRBIEZ B EOORETRIH B
RABBRREN « R0 RS0 5
F2EE EHTEHRMEELE—
SEAED -

ERREZAFEFENERTAE
EEERABENT

= #2018 5|20204 - tHE I
RENFORE15%: &

= BRIBAE R £ 8.33%

REEE 2 HFIRRE N ORD), /15
BHHIARARBREZ A FEKNEE
n/CRA) - BERERIEE N, OR L)
BERRARBEEZ A FEKREE
/R

RIEEMAB2018F 104 19AMERE
% - RARBIATIH RS =t
RET -

(a) fHREEHAREE2019F12
H31 BLEFRERMATNARYE
35,000,0007T * AIERZ #3517
15,361,000 Bk 8RR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Confinued)
(c)  (Continued)

(i) (Continued)

(b) If Sky Harvest Group achieves net profits of RMB85,000,000 for
the two years ending 31 December 2020, a maximum of

37,305,000 Contingent Shares shall be issued; and

lc) If Sky Harvest Group achieves net profits of RMB 150,000,000
for the three years ending 31 December 2021, a maximum of

65,833,000 Contingent Shares shall be issued.

Assuming the maximum number of Contingent Shares is being allotted and issued
to the seller, 65,833,000 shares will be issued under the sale and purchase
agreement, representing approximately 2.52% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the acquisition date and approximately 2.46% of the issued
share capital of the Company as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Contingent Shares. The Contingent Shares to be issued will rank pari passu in all
respect with the shares then in issue on the relevant issue date.

(ii) If Sky Harvest Group fails to achieve an aggregate net profits of
approximately RMB53,028,000 for the three years ending 31
December 2021, Advance Splendid shall unconditionally waive a
maximum of 100% of the loan.

China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

(c)

(%)

m=

(b) fi R 2 & B REZE2020F 12
A3 BIEMEFEERLANA
R #85,000,0007T * Bl & %
# 2% 77 37,305,000 i% 8% & B&
fa: &

() R EEBREZE2021F12
A3 BIE=EFEERLMAFA
R # 150,000,000 * BI&%
# %% 77 65,833,000 A% 8% A P&

{/\ 2

BREAESRERETRSEENIAR
1 BIIRIR B & 1525 5 317 65,833,000 A& A%
7 HMERARRRIKRERPEHTRAL
2 52% ARAEAC B RBEITTHARMD AR AR
RIE BITIRANKY 2.46% © 1§ T 81T 2 AR
HENERETHRERERTHROER
BHEZAREA -

(ii) i KRG EEARENRBZE2021F12 A
SIRLE=AFEERAFNBENAR
# 53,028,000 7T + BII$R B S {50
®E&% 1006 ERK °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

33. BUSINESS COMBINATION (Confinved)
(c)  (Continued)
The fair values of the trade and other receivables as at the date
of acquisition amounted to RMB13,318,000. The gross
contractual amounts of trade and other receivables was
RMB13,318,000. No trade and other receivables are

expected to be uncollectible.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

33. ¥ 58t &)

RA %5 80 2% P E

I

[ (#)
B REMBYGAREEARZ
NFERAAKREI3,3180007T °
BHREMEYHRRANANEES
AR#¥13,318000w HHE S
K E Al A IR A Y m]

BERARBHBARNBRSRESN
o

RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration ReRE 88,532
Cash and bank balances acquired FTIEE VIR & MIRTT A5 ER (404)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents  FFAREBEEEAMSREREZRE R
included in cash flows from ReEEREFRL
investing activities 88,128

Since the acquisition, Sky Harvest Group contributed nil fo the
Group’s revenue and profit of RMB450,000 to the
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue and the profit of the Group for the year would
have been RMB20,642,565,000 and RMB19,956,000

respectively.

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

(a)  Major non-cash transactions
Certain additions of property, plant and equipment of
RMB36,065,000 (2017: RMB33,681,000] were not
paid at the end of the reporting period and were recorded
as payables.

34.

BUEELAR  REEEAREENKART
BZx RRBEZE2018F12A31 81k
FENGE BN ERERARE 450,000

7T

MaHRNZERNEE MAKESF
REREMNEIRNRBARE
L ANS 6 COQgTREEE s A o

19,956,0007% °
meReRERMEE

(a) EFEFREXRH
ETHE BEERREBIAEAR
% 36,065,000 (20175 : A R
#33,681,0007C) IR & HIR K
ST R PAFE A SRIB AR ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIEGHRRME

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continved)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2018
At1 Janvary 2018 RAIBEIATA
Changes from financing cash flows: HERLNERE:
Proceeds from inferestbeoring bonk TERTREMEN AR
and oher borowings
Repaymen of infrestbearing bork BREAERRAMES
and ofer borrowings
New nofe payable Gl e
Repayment of nofe payable ERENZE
Repoyment of converbl bonds EEMARES
Repayment of finance lease payoble EERERERNTE
Inrease in pledged deposs BEARHEN
Guarantee fees ond ot charges EREARAMAR
Adiance fom/repayment o ReBRANLS/ (WERAR
related portes and associotes BEARER)
Inferest expenses paid BfERR
Tolol chenges from financing HERCEREE
cash fows
Exchange adjustments Eiag
Other changes: A9
New finance leoses poyable MRARERNE
Finance cosis s
Reclosficafion rom o] ol payobles ENER/(2)EHERGE
Increcse arsing from acquision of subsidiories  RIRHBA A £
Toil oher changes LpReeE
At31 December 2018 R018£125318

Inferest-bearing
bank and

other
borrowings
fig:t i
REMEH
RMB'000
ARBTR

683,091

346,683

(481,227)

(45,436

(179,980)

52,589
(7,152

45437

548,548

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR

Finance
leases
poyables

HEER
Efi7E
RMB'000
ARBTT

13,142

(14,659)

(2052

(16711)

3. ZEBEERERMTE®)

b) MEEFBELZRESH
2018 F

Loy
component of
convertble
bonds

TERES
SRS
RMB'000

ARETT

548,607

(28,017)

(49,509)

(77,526)

25013

105,773

576,854

Amount due
(from)/to
associates/
related parfies
(FE) /Rt
Beng/
BRAE
RMB'000
AEBTR

(1599

91,720

B

8,547

8,539

98,666

Note
poyobles

EfiRE
RMB'000
ARBTR

Other

accruols

At
iR
RMB000

ARETT

1,836

Peded

deposts Totol

BERER a3t
RMB'000 RMB000
ARBTT  ARMBTT

/07 19330

346,683

{461,227
87,620
(700%)
(28,017
(14,659

3574
I8

91,720
(9,997)

(161,483)

25,006

25713
135,089
1,395
4.8

168,345

1,300,180




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

34. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (Continved)
(b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

RA %5 80 2% P E

4. FERETRERWFE®)

(b)

METHELECEERE(E)

(Continued)
2017 2017 &
Inerestbearing liabily ~ Derivafive
bank and Finonce  componentof  component of
oher lkass  convetible  converfble Oter Pledged
borowings ~ payables bonds bonds accruals depos Totol
itREf WERE  WEREF TERER i
REMER  ERFE  AENS (EIA¥S  EHBR  CEAER fa3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT  ARBTn ARETRT ARMTL ARETR ARBTn  ARETR
At1 January 2017 RO17EIATA 681,536 24658 211810 133344 1,866 60726 1113940
Changes from financing cosh flows:  BEB&%ERE !
Procesds fiom inferesthearing bonk ~ Ft 81T R AR ETA
and oter borowings 551,075 - - - - - 551075
Repayment of inerestbearing bork B3t BRITREBIER
and oter borowings (568,270) - - - - - [568,270)
Decrease in pledged deposis BEAGRED - - - - - (11,239 (11,239
Net proceeds fom issiance of BT ARESAS
converfiole bonds TEFE - - 602971 6,933 - - 600912
Repayment of converible bonds ~ BE TR (ER - - U0 - - - 2700
Repayment of finance lease payables BB RETREREMA £ (12.391) - - - - (12,391)
Cuararfee fees and oler charges ~ ERERREMFR - - - - (5,802 - (5,802
Inferest expenses paid EffIEHR 68.919) (1,602) (32.860] - - e 103877
Tolol changes fiom financing HERSRERYLR
cash flows (86,110) (13993 402909 6,933 [9,802) (11239 292698
Exchange realignment ERE - - 2178 977) = IR
Changes i fair value ATESE 3 S . (2.233) - - (2.233)
Other changes: 00, B
Bonk loans sefled by pledged deposis BBEAEEERTER (1,250 - - - - (1,250 (2,500)
Conversion of convertble bonds BT ES - - 2071 (137.067) - - (49138
New finance leoses payoble HHAEERMTE - 1,081 - = = - 1,081
Inerest expenses EEKT 68915 1,39 67,137 = 5771 - 143220
Reclossfication from other poyables ~ BEERFEEHAH 20,000 - - - - - 20,000
Totol oher changes EfpReE 87,605 2477 (66,112 (140.277) 5772 12500 (111,729
At 31 December 2017 R17E12831R 683,091 13142 548607 - 1,83 827 1294913
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

Defails of the Group's assefs pledged are included in note 27(b)
fo the financial statements.

The Group leases certain of ifs staff quarters and office premises
under operating lease arrangements. leases for staff quarters are
negotiated for terms ranging from three fo six years, and those for
office premises are for terms ranging between two and five years.

At 31 December 2018, the Group had tofal future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

35. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 35.

36. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 36.

BEERM
7 B R 2 A 0 S WA B A 3R
RIS E27(b) -

REHERH
AEERBEEMERHBELETET
mERRER - B TEENBEFRAT
AREEXF WEEZBEFHARER
& o

M2018F12H31 B - AEERETA
ML EHENRRRERERALE
W

2017
2017 &
RMB’000
ARETT

Within 1 year 1R
After 1 year but less than 5 years 1 FREBESFR

3,524
4,874

8,398

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in note
36 above, the Group had the following capital commitments af
the end of the reporting period:

37. COMMITMENTS 37. EiE

B £ XCPHRESORTRHL BV AR & HH EAES)
REBNRERRE AT EAAIE -

2017
2017
RMB'000
AREFTT

Contracted but not provided for: ERTAVE N B
— property, plant and equipment — W% - BERHZE 50,860
— land lease — TS 26,071
76,931

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi

37. COMMITMENTS (Continuved)

38.

In addition, at 31 December 2018, the Group had outstanding
purchase agreements with some of its suppliers and was required
to purchase from the suppliers an aggregate of 28,088 metric
tons (2017 4,587 metric tons) of scrap copper with the price to
be defermined af the time of purchases based on market price.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

RA %5 80 2% P E

unless otherwise indicated) (k5 Bt BHZ S - AN B ¥51/1E)

37. EiEE)
N R2018F 12 A31H » AEEH
o EmE AT R A R s - WA
BRIBERENMEEENERAEE
PR EAsT28 088 AME(201 /4 : 4,587
AME) FER o

38. SRR 5

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these (a) BRZEEBHEREMI D
financial statements, the Group had the following transactions RSN AEB R AFE E R
with related parties during the year: FINLATRA S

2017
2017
Notes RMB’000
B EE ARETT
Delivery cost charged by Mianyang#2f5 & fBIRE @A A R
Jin Xunhuan Finance Storage AR (—EEE QT
Limited, a subsidiary of associate  FffE 72 &) FTULER B9 2 1+
AR (i) 8,162
Inferest expense on loan from 2R B 8BRS A BT I A
Epoch Keen Limited, a private AMARBEEER AT
company contfrolled by Mr. Yu BWEFHFERX
Jiangiu (ii) 5
Security provided by Baohe RERME L (REER
Fushan, an associate of B A A He 9 HE 48
the Group (note 27) (BFsE27) (iii) 31,000
Security provided by Gushan R 2MME (BB ES
Vegefable, a private company BEHZIARTD
controlled by Mr. Yu Jiangiu RAEREM (H3E27)
(note 27) (iv) 10,000
Notes: FsE -

(i) The delivery cost is charged at a rate ranging from RMB28 per fon to
RMB3Q0 per ton.

(ii) The loan from Epoch Keen Limited which is unsecured, bears interest at
4.35% per annum and repayable on demand was settled during the
year.

(iii) At 31 December 2018, bank loans of RMB3 1,000,000 (2017:
RMB31,000,000) were secured by prepayment for lease payment of
Baohe Fushan.

At 31 December 2018, bank loans of RMB10,000,000 (2017:
RMB10,000,000) were secured by property, plant and equipment of

(iv)

Gushan Vegetable.

(i) RNRAREREARE 28 TEFHEA
R¥3907T -

REBRARANERAMER
ASSHMEFIRIN B AREARE
SRALE -

(il

R2018F 12831 8 ' RTERAR
#31,000,000 (2017 % :
31,000,0007t) MR E L 2 A
ERTRRIELR -

(i)

R20185F 12831 B RITERAR
10,000,000 (2017 F :
10,000,0007T) B th #Z3M fE 2 1 3 -
RS B AR fR FE AR
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(b)

(d)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

38. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continved)

38. BEEA RS (&)

Other transactions with related parties: (b) EERAEESMIHMAS

[i)  Entrusted loans of RMB299,116,000 were secured i) ZFEERXRARE209,116,000
by an aggregate amount of 310,317,000 ordinary TR ESRAT - BLR
shares (2017: 310,317,000 ordinary shares) in the KARATRESELCEXERA
Company held by Ocean Through Limited, First Al ¥ A BN AR LQAE H
Harvest Global Limited and Gold Wide Enterprises 310,317,0000% (2017 4 :
limited, which are companies wholly-owned by Mr. 310,317,000 %) & @A 12 ft
Huang Weiping, key management personnel of the B EZEARBALEE
Group. TEEEEASRENLLESR

BEER o

(i)  Convertible bonds of HK$400,000,000 issued in li) M2017F8ABITAIRRE
August 2017 were secured by 278,000,000 % 400,000,000 7t J5 &1 A&
ordinary shares in the Company held by Epoch Keen, REIEFERATER RN
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Jiangiu, the EREEARNRAREBEAARARD
chairman and an executive director of the Company. 7] 278,000,000 f% & 8 % 12

IR -

Outstanding balances with related parties: () EER@EtL 2 AREEERR:

()  Details of the Group’s amounts due to/from its i) ANEBRREERENSTEKR
associates as at the end of the reporting period are i8N BT IE 2 B EN B S
included in note 21 o the financial statements. HRMEE21 o

(i)  Defails of the Group's amounts due to/from its related i) ANEERIREHARENS B
parties as at the end of the reporting period are REES T 2UE 2 FEIS HN B R
included in note 21 fo the financial statements. RMFE21 o

Compensation of key management personnel of the d ZTEBXZEEEBEASHH

Group:

2@

A7 7

RMB'O00

ARETT

Shortferm employee benefits RHEE RN 8,536

Postemployment benefits BEER IR B A 125

Equity-settled share option expense  #E%S 45 54 B AR #E B 2 3,421
Total compensation paid to key ENEEERABBEH

management personnel 12,082

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR




38.

39.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Confinued)

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group: (Continued)
Further details of directors’ and the chief executive's
emoluments are included in note @ to the financial
statements.

The related party transactions in respect of items (al(i) above also
consfitute continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the listing Rules.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as af the end of the reporting period are as follows:

RA %5 80 2% P E

38. BEE AR Z (&)
d ZEBIEEEASHMH: (2)

BRESREZTHRABFMAE
—HHBERRYERERME

B bt (ai) TRV BEESE 77 2 5 TR B R LT
RAE UAZEFRRENKBBERS -

39. ZRAETHEMTE
EFSHMTARRERROEAEMT -

2018
2018 &

Financial

assets at
Financial assets amortised cost Total

TR G R AR

FrEMN
SREE cMEE MEt
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET TET
Trade and bills receivables B S RBGRIE R EWRE 879,331 879,331

Financial assets included in prepayments, — &F AFEfTFR « E b fE U FIE &

other receivables and other assets HEMEENSREE 1,362,431 1,362,431
Amounts due from associates JE Ui Bt = A R R IE 5,038 5,038
Amounts due from related parties JiE U5 B B 5 3R IR 10 10
Pledged deposits BEEMER 51,812 51,812
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEEE 112,935 112,935

2,411,557 2,411,557
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 88 R B E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZEFIETHWEMIT A
(Continued)
2018
2018

Financial

liabilities

at amortised
Financial liabilities cost Total

R AT E
ek HemasE st
HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHxT
Trade and bills payables B O RNFIBRENERE 543,355 543,355
Note payable AR 17,524 17,524

Financial liabilities included in other HAEMENZERESER

payables and accruals (note 25) e maEEE25) 102,482 102,482
Liability component of convertible bonds B EANBERS 576,854 576,854
Inferestbearing bank and other borrowings  &HERTT R E M E K 548,548 548,548
Finance leases payable BMERESENFIE 4,940 4,940
Amounts due to associates FENEE S N B FRIB 103,709 103,709
Amount due to a related party JE BB 5 SRR 5 5

1,879,417 1,879,417

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Mk =RME
(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (4 5 Bt BFZ ) » LKA E#Z)1E)
39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. ZERESTHWEMIE &)
[Continued)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EHSMITARNBEHARNERENT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
207
2017 %
Loans and
Financial assets receivables Total
ERk
TREE FEUWSRIE Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHTT
Trade and bills receivables B S FIA R EKREE 1,091,198 1,091,198
FTATER K - 12 e RE MUK
Financial assets included in prepayments, T8
deposits and other receivables NEmMEE 639,207 639,207
Amounts due from associates A NI ere) 6,221
Amounts due from related parties FE M BA R 75 SR IE 10 10
Pledged deposits EHEBER 48,237 48,237
Cash and cash equivalents HEe NS EEER 109,595 109,595
1,894,468 1,894,468
2017
2017 %
Financial
liabilities at
Financial liabilities amortised cost Total
REH AT =
TERAE HEFAR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000
T FHTT
Trade and bills payables BHRNFRBERENRE 213,658 213,658
Financial liabilities included in other SFAREMENFKIERETERN
payables and accruals (note 24) e E(fHE24) SIS 53,792
Liability component of convertible bonds T%‘*‘Hﬁﬁ%ﬁ’]ﬁfx+ %) 548,607 548,607
Inerest-bearing bank loans and FFRBITER KR EAMEK
other borrowings 683,091 683,091
Finance leases payable BEHE RN AIE A2 ek
Amounts due fo associates FETHSE & N B IR 4,638 4,638
1,516,928 1,516,928
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RA 35 80 R B o

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. TR T AR FERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate fo fair values, are as follows:

Carrying amounts

REEEEAEMEAE AN FEESHESR
TESN AEESRTANEEERAT
ER NN

Fair values

ARTEE D¥E

2017 2017

20174 2017 &

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHAT

Financial liability THEeE

Liability component of AR B AR

convertible bonds BEILD 548,607 548,607
Contingent consideration FAREBE

liabilities & 5

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, trade and bills receivables, trade and bills payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets, financial liabilities included in other payables and
accruals, amounts due from/to associates, amounts due from/to
related parties, current portion of pledged deposits, finance
leases payable and current portion of note payable and interest
bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The Group's finance department headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the
fair value measurement of financial instruments. The finance
manager reports directly to the chief financial officer and the audit
committee. At each reporting date, the finance department
analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments and
determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The
valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation process and results are discussed with the audit
committee twice a year for inferim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assefs and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current fransaction between willing parties, other than in a forced
or liquidation sale. The following methods and assumptions were
used fo estimate the fair values:

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

EEECHEREMASEFEERE - BEH
YRR R BN RE - BRRNFAEKE
NEE - FEATRMNR - A EURRRE
EENTREE  fFARMEBNRIER
BAERNERARE  BER EBABEL
FIFRIR ~ R TEAS AR T FUR - R
FRRBVEAREE D - MEMERMNFIA - &
NRENBRAHD Mt BRITERME
fER e A HEREREERS - REAS
ZETAMBIHAERE -

MU BRERENASENBHIFIEE
BELBTARTEFENBRMIER
MBREEERMGREREREZES
HE - NEREDH - BHEHFFIOT R
TAEENED  YEEHEPERNE
ZHARE - HEAVBEEEZNLL
o BFMAEERZ B ImGERE
KRR DETHHERFEVNHERE -

TREENRBENQAFEFABERS
TORRIBERERIN) 2HNER
ZPZTANAIZ ST ° LT IDEMR
RAREFAFE



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Other than the calculation method of fair value of contingent
consideration liabilities as disclosed in note 33, the fair values of
the non-current portion of pledged deposits, non-current portion of
finance leases payable and non-current portion of inferestbearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group's own non-performance risk for finance leases payable
and interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2018 was assessed to be insignificant. The fair value
of the liability portion of the convertible bonds is estimated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using an equivalent
market inferest rate for a similar convertible bond with
consideration of the Group’s own non-performance risk.

Fair value hierarchy
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's financial instruments:

Liabilities measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2018

40.

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

ERMIARNFERATFEER

BRI IBEBRAREBEBE R FEN
SEIEN  BERERIEREED - B
BHRERNFAN IRV D Kt B iR
17 R E AR ERA BN B 0 T8 3R B
AAREEREMEK - EERR MR TF
M TANNEURBHRRKRERE
FTEAFEER2018F12H318 K
SEESNRERERNFENL LR
RITREAMERNOTBEORR K ES
M EE - IR EFAESDNATFE
TyfE MBI E RN FETHME
BEREHARRR S RESF RAKEB

FTBARBR AR
NFERER

ATRBREIAKE SR T AR FER
BER

BRATEFENERE
201812431 H

FARERIE

Contingent consideration
liabilities

Annual Report 2018 & —F— \F4FHf




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

recognised upon business combinations
Gains recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss included in
other income gain/(loss), net
Gains recognised in other
comprehensive income

KA B R ER RIS -
W (E1R) F4

FEARAEKA

40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. eMTEAFERAFEEBR
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (#)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AFEERE)
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during FRE=ZFARNTEFELEWOT :
the year are as follows:
At 1 January e =
Contingent consideration liabilities REBEHEBAXAREBAR

443,296

(1,696)

(33,933)

At 31 December R+—-_A=+—H

407,667

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers info
or out of level 3 for both financial assets and financial liabilities
(2017: Nil). There were no liabilities measured at fair value as af
31 December 2017.

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed:
As at 31 December 2018

Quoted prices
in active
markets
(Level 1)

RERTS
KB E
(B14%)
HK$’000
TER

R ESFNRESD

Liability component of
convertible bonds

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR

TR CREERSRAMGES 1 MEE2
MAFEEHELEEE - 5 3RINE
BARELH (20174 : £) - R2017F
12A31 B AV EFEZAE -

DAFEESHBOHRENT :
M2018 12431 H

Fair value measurement using

ERNTBENAFEE

Significant
unobservable
inputs

(Level 3)

EDN
FABE

g A\ S8
(E34%)
HK$’000
TET

Significant
observable
inputs
(Level 2)
EDN
AEE

W A BE
(B2
HK$’000
TET

it
HK$'000
FBT

576,854

576,854
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40. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 40. R T AAFERAFEER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) DNREBRE)
As at 31 December 2017 M2017612AH31H

Fair value measurement using
ERATRENAFEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
ESPN BX

IR E™ 5 AT PR ERER
H)¥R(E WAZUR BRI
(% 14%) (B28) (B 34) gt
HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000
ST TAET TAET THET

Liability component of AR EENEEID
convertible bonds - - 548,607 548,607

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 41. cRIEBREEBFERBUR

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise pledged AEENTIZSRTABRDEMIER

deposits, trade and bills receivables, financial assefs included in BZRIFIBRERER - 5T ABAR

prepayments, other receivables and other assefs, cash and cash B HtBRESREREMEENSBE

equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other E RekBReEEER EHEMAR

payables and accruals, convertible bonds, finance leases B StARMENFER R ERO SR

payable and interestbearing bank and other borrowings. The BE - AHARES  SREERMNTIEN

main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for KIRITREAMER - ZEEMTANTE

the Group's operations. BHRAAEENEEEEEST -

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are AEEEHMTAEEANTIERRAFX

inferest rate risk, commodity price risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. Rz - mmERERR  FERREREE

The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for managing TER - EEZSERLRAEEERSEZS

each of these risks and they are summarised below. The Group's REREERER - BN TX - NREE BT

accounting policies in relation to derivatives are set out in note AT ANEBEREN MBS wAM 2.4 -

2.4 to the financial statements.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (45 Bt BHZE Sl » KA R#S)1E)

41. FINANCIAL RISK. MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continved)

(a) Interest rate risk
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from interest-
bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at variable rafes
and at fixed rates expose the Group fo cash flow inferest
rate risk and fair value interest rate risk respectively. The
Group's inferest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out in (i) below.

(i)  Interest rate profile
The following fable details the interest rate profile of
the Group's tfofal inferest-bearing borrowings at the
end of reporting period:

4]. sREREZERERBE

(a)

A = [
REBEFEEREZRNEEME
o LUZB REBMHBERD R
SAREEEAZRESRENEEL
RAFENERRE AEBHER
[EEER AT RBRE RT3 (]) °

BIES
TREAAREE BT SEK
R EARAOM B -

(

-

Liability component of —Hﬁﬂ%i%‘éﬁ’]@fii n

convertible bonds

2007
20174
Effective
interest rate Amount
P G
% RMB'000
% - ARBTT
Fixed rate borrowings: TEEMER:
Notes payable RS = >
Bank loans and other RITEFREMER
borrowings 10.98 683,091
Finance leases payables B & TAE BN FIE 5.56 13,142

5¥S 548,607

Tofal fixed rate borrowings & B A&7 4858

1,244,840

(i)  Sensitivity analysis
At 31 December 2018 and 2017, all of the Group's
inferest-bearing borrowings are fixed rate borrowings,
no sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR

i) BBEDHF
%2018@&2017¢ 2 A 31
F AEBMAFEERES
ig{%%ﬂ B 5 2 51 Kl 2R
BREBURE DA
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Commodity price risk

The major raw materials used in the production of the
Group's products is scrap copper. The Group is exposed to
fluctuations in the price of copper which are influenced by
global as well as regional supply and demand conditions.

Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials could adversely
affect the Group's financial performance. The Group uses
copper futures contracts to mitigate its exposure against
price fluctuations of copper raw materials. The market value
of futures contracts is based on quoted market price af
setflement or the end of the reporting period. As at 31
December 2018 and 2017, the Group did not have

outstanding copper futures contracts.

Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily aftributable fo trade and
other receivables.

Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure
fo these credit risks are monifored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring credit
over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on the
cusfomers’ past hisfory of making payments when due and
current ability to pay, and take info account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the customer operates.
Trade debtors are normally due within 3 months from the
date of transaction. The Group also provided advance
payments to certain suppliers in order fo secure the scrap
copper supply. The Group also offers revolving credit fo ifs
customers and cerfain suppliers. The revolving credit, which
provides for a maximum credit limit that may be outstanding
at any one time, is defermined based on such factors as
current market conditions and the cusfomers’ and suppliers’
credit history and current ability to pay. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from those customers and
suppliers.

4]. EREREERERER#)

(b)

(c)

7 mn B AR L B
EEASEERMANEEEMH
REESR - AEBARZRZR NI
6B M SRR S T 28 2R O 8 (B A% R B
AR ©

R FL BRI ) A] Be B AR SR B e Bt
BRBEUANTE - AEEFEH
R H S A KOIRER H AT A SR R A Y
EREBOER - HESNNME
EAEER S RERROTHERE
BEE R2018F k2017612
A3 B AEBRWEEFARFAEH
MMEAH -

EERE
AEBEEERRIBZREEZ RE
i FEUCKIA o

EEEREEERR  MERMAX

MZEFEERREXBIHFEER -

B ZREMEYFENS » A&
EeHmAERRT —E2BEE
MEPETESMEERE o iEF
HEEFFPHBEIMERLEN
REBRERESN  YEEEBER
BEFUREPREMERKEREN
HEEH - BESER—REXFHH
HIEE SEAREH - KEEIRE
5 {7 7 A SRR DA e R B A {1
& REETFAETP RETHER
REBREE (AR EAREM—
RIEDNERREER) @ ILTRER
BhakEr REEENEELE
MIRFERENEEARETE - — K
mE  AREINEERZFEREFRK
HEE R E A
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Cont

Credit risk (Confinuec
The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each debtor rather than the
industry or country in which the debtors operate and
therefore significant concentrations of credit risk primarily
arise when the Group has significant exposure fo individual
cusfomer. As at 31 December 2018, top two customers

contributed 53% (2017: 47%) of the total trade receivables.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure fo credit risk based on the Group's credit policy,
which is mainly based on past due information unless other
information is available without undue cost or effort, and
yearend staging classification as at 31 December 2018.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for
financial assets.

. TREREER

(c)

0

ENRBR (&)

EERK (&)
AEEAZNEERBREIEXEE
BAMAEEBALBMBITE
HER)MERBERNTE  Eitt
EACEETRBEIEELEEAE
BAZEANZFEXNRBRE - ®
201812 A31 H ' sIRAZFE{H
B S EWGRIABEE 2 53%(2017F
47%) o

R2018F12A31 HMESARK
FRER
TRERERARENEEBREN
EREZkGEREERR ZEE
BREEBENBEBHER (BRIF
HERBAN DN D ERALSE
NENAI RS AR K 2018412 A
1 BRFEREBRIE - FI25IZ22
BRTREENREERRE -

Trade ond bills receivables* BARYGAR R E *
Financial assets included in prepoyments, s AT - EftEMEE
oher receivables and other assefs** REMEENSREE
JEYBE ARl
TR e

Amounts due from ssociofes* *
Amounts due from reloted parfies* *

Pledged deposis B
— Not yet past due - a8
Cash and cash equivalens ReRReFERR
— Not yet past due - a8

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited ® H Bl /@& RFHAR AR
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Con

(c)

(d)

Credit risk (Confinued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at 31
December 2018 (Continued)

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach
for impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in
note 19 to the financial statements.

s The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other

receivables and other assets and amounts due from group companies
and related parties is considered to be “normal” when they are not past
due and there is no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the
credit quality of the financial assefs is considered to be “doubtful”.

Maximum exposure as at 31 December 2017

The maximum exposure fo credit risk without taking account
of any collateral held is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position after deducting any impairment
allowance.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade and bills receivable
are set out in nofe 19 to the financial statements.

Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, to
ensure that it mainfains sufficient reserves of cash and
readily realisable marketable securities and adequate
committed lines of funding from maijor financial institutions to
meet ifs liquidity requirements in the short and longer ferm.

1. ERERERER

(c)

(d)

ERBER

FERR(#)
R2018F 12431 A& & AR

EX%&#%
574 82 B4R AR EL AL 07 A0 B 5
W S - ER B R ERR
AR 101558 -

o FGTARMR RiEKRFAREME
VAR FEMR S 1B 1) R % BBt 7 SR IRLEY
ERMEENEEEERN AP AHRE
EERAZEREEB IR ERR(E
ERRBEEMEHRRRIES] -8
8] ERMEENERERRE R RE]
%o

R2017F12 B 31 HWHEKER
RAREBEAAFKERROBR
T ZXEERBR SR EMREE
BERREEPBHRRARAZIN
EERMEENKRMAE -

BRAASEE SRR R EEE
BRELANEERRNE-TEL
WEHNMEHRERME 10

REE = E
AEEHNBREERERERDE

TR RNETRELZONER - 78
DARER H 4 1558 R 3R & W A1 AT BB
HERANEEZFRETZ S K
BREZRESHE  UENHERE
HERBRBHESHF K -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Confinued)
(d) Liquidity risk (Continved)
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments, is as follows:

. EREREERERBEK®)

(d) REESEEE)
AEERREHRNS A ERE
BRRBBNRNZRAERAT -

2018 2018 5
More than More than
Within 1year but 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
—FR —FLE MEULE
HRER MELRA AEHUR #ct
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARWTR AR®BTR AR¥TR
Trade and bills payables BIHRNTER
JENRIE 543,355 543,355
Note payabe JERT IR 19,627 19,627
Financial liabilities included in & AL A B F K
other payables and accruals  EFTEFAM SR AR 102,482 102,482
Finance lease payables MEHERNTIA 2,573 11,020
Interestbearing bank and FTRRITR
other borrowings HfEmR 546,331 562,829
Amounts due fo associates JE{S B = A RIFRIB 103,709 103,709
Amount due fo a related party  FE{ BEE 5 5K I8 5 5
Liability component of AR E
convertible bonds BEE D 626,689 626,689
Contingent consideration FAREERE
liabilities = 407,667 407,667
1,944,771 426,673 2,377,383
2017 2017 %
More than More than
Within 1 yearbut 2 years but
1 year or less than less than
on demand 2 years 5 years Total
sl —EDAE MEA L =
HIREK MELAR AFUR st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
e PRSI, AP o A B T
Trade and bills payables B S HE 213,658 - = 213,658
Financial liabilities included in &1 A EL 40 FE 5 Fi &
other payables and accruals  EFFERAM SR EE 53,792 = = 53,792
Finance lease payables AT EERN RIE FeR2FS; 414 348 13,977
Interestbearing bank and FTRIRITR
other borrowings HibEzx 710,039 483 173 710,695
Amounts due fo associates FET B = A RIFRIA 4,638 - - 4,638
Liability component of AR E )
convertible bonds BESD 169,541 494,533 - 664,074
1,164,883 495,430 521 1,660,834
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated) (b7 5 B it B2 S -

41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

(f

Capital management

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access fo financing at a reasonable cost.

The Group manages its capital structure to maintain a
balance between the higher shareholders’ returns that might
be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure in
light of changes in economic conditions affecting the
Group. No changes were made in the objectives, policies
or processes for managing capital during the years ended

31 December 2018 and 2017.

The Group monifors its capital sfructure on the basis of a net
debto-capifal ratio. For this purpose, the Group defines net
debt as fofal interest-bearing borrowings less cash. The
Group defines “capital” as all components of equity.

4. sREREEBEERBR @)

(f

RA %5 80 2% P E

UAEBSE)

g

EXREE
AEEEREANTER R RER
AEERBELENEN  RIEAR
RN E A RS EE LR A 2
MR ARSRE  BESKRRKLE
L ) 25 4 B8 2 e SR B SR ) 2

AEEERHEERER  AERK
RSBmO ®H(AJEBKSEEK
e E B BMRE B AN P KA
BB RRENFE  YREZER
SENEERNESABRE ARG
e B E20189F &2017F12H
SIALFEREARNEENBRF - HXK

AEBRFEBEA L R HERES
BEAGZB LM E - AEEAH
FEBER B EERBERER
T o ARER [EAX]| EERERD
FRAMRER S -
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41. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 4. cREREEEERBE @)
AND POLICIES (Continved)
()  Capital management (Confinved) ) EBEXREEE)
The net debto-capital ratio was as follows: FEHEARLEMT
2017
2017
Notes RMB’000
B ARETT
Nofe payable AR 24 =
Inferestbearing bank and FTEIRTT R EMER
other borrowings 27 683,091
Finance leases payables AMERE RN RIEA 26 13,142
Liability component of RRESFNEEE S
convertible bonds 28 548,607
less: cash and cash equivalents g : & RIRSFEER 22 (109,595)
Net debt FHETE 1135, 245
Total equity YA RESS e 0, FAO
Net debtto-capital ratio TFEBE AL & 73.9%
Except for the banking facilities which require the fulfilment BREERITE TRENRITRE
of certain covenants, neither the Company nor any of the S ANRB KRB QR ES
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital RSP ANEY B AR TE PIAR IR

requirements.

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR
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42. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

Information about the statement of financial position of the
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

42. 2B IR &

BBEARDRRRHEHROTBERNERED
AR

2017
2017
RMB’'000
AREF T

Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries R B R ANEE 2 98¥82:3
Interests in associates KB &R E R E 4BSZS
339,898

Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N SN RE 1,317,856
Amounts due from related parties JE LA R Bt 75 TR IA 10
Other receivables H b i U 5178 438
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEER 47,386
1,365,690
Current liabilities REBAEE

Trade and other payables B 5 K E At e RIE 5,595
Loan from a third party KE—BE=ZTNERK 83,591
Note payable e 15 =
Amounts due fo subsidiaries AR EPNEIE e =
Amount due fo a related party JE < — & RR s 5 k1A =
Liability component of convertible bonds ~ AJ & fEHH & EH D S
. 35Z
Net current assets FREEE 1,181,333
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAE L S2L7eH

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Liability component of convertible bonds AR ESR B EZ D 453,436
NET ASSETS REE 1,067,795

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRE #E
Share capital A 197,495
Reserves (Note) 1 (BIsE) 870,300
TOTAL EQUITY HEER Il.OZ 795
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. QB MIBARR T (#)

Balance f 31 December 2018

R1BE12 31 Ais

1,468,419

(16,310

289,836 80,475

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © B4 B ERAHARE AR

COMPANY (Continved)
Note: BiE
A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows: RATRFEERROT

(833,117)

Share- Convertible
based Consideration bonds
Share  Exchange payment  Warrant share equity  Accumuloted  Revaluation
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses reserve
HRH
REEN  ZRER  RERH TARES
ROEE  EXRGE  EARE  (RER Rl @ BERE  EHER  EMER
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARMTT ARMTRZ ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AREBTR
Balance ot 1 January 2018 RN A= o757 016,229 (16,409 289,836 81,270 12,079 48970 40,696 (602,371)
Efect on adopion of RS 9, FRERSBERSENE
retol o 9EHYE  ENRRE 5600
1,016,229 (16409 289,83 81,270 12,079 48,970 40,69 (602,371) 879,900
Loss forthe yeor FnER (233,887) (233,887)
Other comprehensive loss: A 2mEiE:
Exchange diferences on BEANTIEEY
fronslafon of e Company EizB
Totol comprefensive loss EMEEFRER
for he year (233,887) (233,788)
Issuance of ordinary shares EERR 314,235 314,235
Equitysefled share opion EREENRRETSE
arangemens 7,563 7,563
lopse of share opfon Blgsn (2984) E
Exercise of shore opfion i RRE (5,374) 14,356
Issuance of Consideration Shores ond bonds ~ Z7RERHRER - 106,419
Exercise of waront I PRES - 18,893
Redemption of convertble bond EEmkES . -

1,107,578
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 43. KT BN R R (40)

COMPANY (Continved)

Note: (Continued)

A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

fE - ()

RARMRHEERALT

Shore- Converfible
bosed Consicerafion bonds
Share Exchange Capil poyment Warront shore equy  Accumulated
premium reserve Teseive reserve fesenve reserve Tesenve losses Tolal
SR
BEED PR haRES
ki & ER & BRGfE 3G G RERGGE EatE 255 5t
RAMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMVB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RAMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Balonce of 1 Jonuary 2017 R2017E1 71 Bfvs 605,992 28,955 289,836 59,680 12079 = - 460,770] 535,372
Loss for the yeor ERER - - - - - - - [142,380) [142,380)
Other comprehensive loss: Afb2EER
Exchonge diferences on BEARAELN
fronslaion of the Company ERES - 44.964) = = = = - - (44,964)
Tolol comprehensive loss ENEEERLR
for he year = 44.964) = = i 3 = [142,380] [187,344]
Issuance of ordinary shares RILEk 162,523 - - - - - - - 162,523
Equilysetled share opfion IERSENBRERE
arangements - - - 23,210 - - - - 23210
lapse of share opiions BREAN = - - [779) = = = 779 =
Evercise of share opfion i mE 9,035 - - 841) - - - - 8,194
Issuance of consideration shares BIRERG - - - - - 48970 - - 48970
Conversion of the 2015 CBs BR015ETH
fo equily RE#ZER 241,075 - - - - - - - 241,075
Redemption of he Aprl 2017 CBs 0017 A ek 604 - - - - - (604) - -
Issuance of convertble bonds EUakES 5 = = - ~ g 41,300 = 41,300
Balance ot 31 December 2017 R2017E128317
fiEs 1,019,229 16,409 289,836 81,270 12,079 48970 40,696 602,371) 873,300

44. HtEMIEHREK
HEUIEHMEDN2019F 3 A28 AEHE
EEHE RITETE

44. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statfements were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of directors on 28 March 2019.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
AFEMBEBE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAR

2017 2016 2015 2014
2017 201645 20154 20145
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT AR%TT ARETR

Total assets BEE 3,398,835 2,278,476 2385311 2,408,196
Total liabilities BAEE (1,862,459) (1,470,768) (1,581,128) (1,134,893)
Net assefs FEE I, 580,870 807,708 754,183 1,273,303
Results ES
Profit/{loss) for the year FREF,(F1E) 184,583 (311,618 (503,130) 248,266
Total comprehensive FER2EBA

income/loss) for the year (518 #8%8 188,480 (329,086) (516,416) 251,218

m China Metal Resources Utilization Limited © FFE& B & RFIBAERE AR
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
LFEH
AUDIT AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE ERRGLEERETESR
COMMITTEE
lee Ting Bun Denny (Chairperson) FEM(F/E)
Pan Lliansheng B
Ren Ruxian (g
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEER
Pan liangsheng (Chairperson) EERs (L/E)
Lee Ting Bun Denny P
Ren Ruxian %1
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®
Ren Ruxian (Chairperson) B2 (/)
Lee Ting Bun Denny FER
Pan Liansheng EER
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES PURSUANT TO THE BRELTHRANRERE
LISTING RULES
Kwong Wai Sun Wilson BEE
Cheung Ying Kwan o & e
PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND R BEEGEER
TRANSFER OFFICE
Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
PO Box 2681 PO Box 2681
Grand Cayman, KY1-1111 Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman lslands Cayman lslands
HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND EERMDBFELTE
TRANSFER OFFICE
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited BETABLBELARAA
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre B
183 Queen’s Road East, VWanchai BTERAER 1835
Hong Kong EMELI7BIZI2EN/I6F
PRINCIPAL BANKERS FEEREIT
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited BITRTT (EH) BRAA
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China AR B TR ERTT
Mianyang Commercial Bank W T R IRTT
Huarong Xiangjiang Bank FEROMTIRTT
COMPANY WEBSITE YNGR
http:/ /www.cmru.com.cn http: / /www.cmru.com.cn
STOCK CODE B% 124X 5%
1636 1636
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